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At the start of 2020 no one could have predicted what the coming (¢
months would bring. Throughout the year every aspect of life was
impacted by a terrible global pandemic. Inline with government
restrictions and through the hard work and dedication of Loughs
Agency staff, we continued to deliver a unique and valuable public
service. Providing a safe and healthy environment for employees,
stakeholders and the public while continuing to deliver our -.
business, which was and continues to be our main priority. |

2020 heralded the introduction of our Strategic Direction

for a New Decade 2020 - 2030, which was co-designed in
consultation with the employees and Board. In taking this
forward the Agency will focus on our core purpose to oversee
the necessary intergovernmental approach required to deliver
our functions and statutory remit. Itis dynamic, ambitious and
realistic. A new suite of strategic priorities, goals and objectives
have been developed which will enable development of future
Corporate and Business Plans. A

The plan sets out our new vision, revised values and key strategic development goals, objectives
and outcomes. The plan recognises the impact of climate change and the importance of
collaborative working to develop the work of the Agency, create better local environments that
will enhance people’s lives, and support sustainable green growth in the local economy.

Throughout the year our programme of digital and technology transformation continued to
advance with the upgrade of our scientific fisheries monitoring infrastructure. New innovative
monitoring techniques have been developed and will be introduced during 2021.

Our commitment to the reduction of carbon emissions saw the purchase of our first electric
vehicle, which will be used to deliver our outreach and education programmes.

| was delighted when the Agency featured on two very successful local broadcast media
programmes - Lough Foyle with Joe Mahon and Barra on the Foyle with Barra Best. Both
programmes highlighted the important conservation work of the Agency while showcasing the
amazing, rich, natural and built heritage of the Foyle catchment.

Our collaborative approach to working continued in 2020 delivering a range of projects including
scientific fisheries research and climate change initiatives with local, national and international
partners.

| am extremely proud of the resilience of our workforce during this difficult time. | would like to
pay tribute to their commitment and dedication, ensuring business continuity and delivering our
statutory obligations as a public service. | would also like to acknowledge the continued support
of the Board and our Sponsor Departments.

S oMe M N\

Sharon McMahon
Designated Officer
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Loughs Agency is an agency of the Foyle,
Carlingford and Irish Lights Commission
(FCILC), established as one of the North South
Implementation Bodies under the Good Friday/
Belfast Agreement, constituted under the
North South Co-operation (Implementation
Bodies) (Northern Ireland) Order 1999 and the
British Irish Agreement Acts 1999 and 2002.

The Board of Loughs Agency reports to the
North South Ministerial Council (NSMC) and

its government Sponsor Departments - the
Department of Agriculture, Environment and
Rural Affairs (DAERA) in the North, and the
Department of the Environment, Climate and
Communications (DECC) in the South. The
Agency is funded on a 50:50 basis by DAERA in
Northern Ireland and DECC in Ireland.

Our Headquarters are based in
Derry~Londonderry, with a Regional Office
in Carlingford, Co Louth and an operational
depot in Omagh.

The Agency'’s Vision is:

“Through partnership and science, protecting
and developing our fisheries and natural
resources”.

Our mission is to:

“Sustainably manage, promote and develop
the fisheries and resources of the Foyle and
Carlingford areas”.

The Agency has responsibility for 4,070km?2

of catchment in the Foyle area and 480km?

in Carlingford, with responsibility for the 2
sealoughs and an area extending 12 miles out
to sea from Lough Foyle, which stretches to
Downhillin Northern Ireland, and Malin Head in
Donegal. Loughs Agency has been delivering
transboundary fisheries management in

these waters since the establishment of its
predecessor in 1952, the Foyle Fisheries
Commission, with the remit of overseeing the
management and protection of Atlantic salmon
and the inland fisheries of the Foyle catchment.

Loughs Agency aims to provide sustainable
social, economic and environmental
benefits through the effective conservation,
management, promotion and development
of the fisheries and marine resources of the
Foyle and Carlingford Areas.

The Agency'’s statutory functions are:

+  Promotion of development of Lough
Foyle and Carlingford Lough for
commercial and recreational purposes in
respect of marine, fishery and aquaculture
matters.

+ Management, conservation, protection,
improvement and development of
the inland fisheries of the Foyle and
Carlingford Areas.

* Development and licensing of Aquaculture
and Shellfisheries.

* Development of Marine Tourism.

The high level Strategic Priorities
identified in our Strategic Direction
for a New Decade 2020-30, enabling
Loughs Agency to fulfil its statutory

remit are:

* Our Remit: Raising the Standard
+ Making Connections

+ Just Transition

+ Organisational Excellence

Our Goals are to:
« Sustainably deliver our conservation and
protection statutory remit.

+ Making connections through effective
engagement and communication.

* Understanding and strategically
promoting Just Transition.

+ Valuing all staff, inspire our workforce and
improve performance through innovation.
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Loughs Agency is committed to creating and
sustaining a positive and inclusive working
environment for our employees. Our aimis

to ensure that employees are equally valued
and respected and that our organisation is
representative of all members of society.

We define diversity as valuing everyone as

an individual - we value our employees, job
applicants, students, associates and visitors as
people. This is reflected within our values and
behaviours and our leadership habits that:

+  We treat everyone well and with empathy.

*  Welead with integrity and authenticity.

Commitment to Equality, Diversity and

Inclusion

We believe that everyone stands to benefit
when we embrace and value the diversity

of thoughts, ideas and ways of working

that people from different backgrounds,
experiences and identities bring. It helps our
employees to grow and learn, enables them
to realise their potential, improves decision-
making, boosts engagement and innovation,
and enables us to better meet the needs of our
diverse customer base.

To this end, we have made the

following commitments:

* To create an environment in which individual
differences and the contribution of all team
members are recognised and valued.

+ To not tolerate any form of unacceptable
behaviour, harassment, discrimination,
bullying (including cyber bullying) or
victimisation in any area of employment
or in the provision of our services to our
customers.

« To provide guidance and training to
the Board, employees and contractors
on diversity, inclusion and equality of
opportunity.

+ To encourage anyone who feels they have
been subject to or witnessed discrimination
to raise their concerns with their Line
Manager or Trade Union representative.

+ To make every person aware of their
personal responsibility for implementing
and promoting equal opportunitiesin
their day to day dealings with people and
encourage employees to treat everyone
with dignity and respect.

+ Toregularly review all our employment
practices, policies and procedures to
ensure compliance with the requirements
of this statement.

« To monitor the effectiveness of our
commitment to diversity and inclusion and
the supporting policies and procedures and
share with the consultative bodies at least
annually.

We require all members of staff to recognise
these commitments and act in accordance
with them. In addition, we will comply with all
relevant legislation and good practice.

No individual will be unjustly discriminated
against. This includes, butis not limited to,
discrimination because of age, disability,
gender reassignment, marriage and civil
partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race,
religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation.

Dealing with Discrimination
Unacceptable behaviour, harassment,
discrimination, bullying (including cyber
bullying) or victimisation of any individual is
perceived as contradictory to our aspirations
for a supportive working environment and
will not be tolerated. Any allegations of such
behaviour will be investigated, and ultimately
disciplined, in accordance with the Dignity at
Work Policy and Procedure.
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Responsibility

+ The Board has overall responsibility
for ensuring that we operate within a
framework of equality of opportunity.

* The Senior Management Team has overall
management responsibility, delegated to all
managers throughout the organisation.

+ Allemployees have a duty to support and
uphold the principles of our commitment
to equality, diversity and inclusion and its
supporting policies and procedures.

» Responsibility for the review of this
statement lies with the Director of
Corporate Services.

This statement is reviewed regularly and if
necessary, revised in the light of legislative or
organisational changes. It is made available to
the public through Loughs Agency's website
and other means.

Loughs Agency Annual Report 2020 12



Board
Members

|£U\QK\gSenCy Annual Report

Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna
Factrie fur Loughs



The Board
The Board of Loughs Agency:

The FCILC Board comprises of 12 Members *
appointed by the NSMC. The Board exercises
the functions of the Body in relation to the
Foyle and Carlingford Areas through Loughs
Agency. The Board is made up of 3 female and
7 male Board Members.

Throughout 2020 there were 2 vacancies
within the Board. 1 vacancy, the Chairman
was filled in December 2020 by Mr Laurence
Arbuckle'. T vacancy remains. Mr Terry
McWilliams? was reappointed to the Board in
December 2020 for a second term.

Governance

The roles and responsibilities of Loughs
Agency’'s Board are set out in the Financial
Memorandum for the Agency, matters
specifically considered by the Board include:
+ Declaration of Interests;

Setting Board Strategy, in agreement with
the NSMC;

* Reports from Committees;

* Financial Reports / Management Accounts;
+ Performance Reports, and;

* Reserved Matters.

Under the obligations set out inits Code

of Conduct, the Board has corporate
responsibility for ensuring that the Agency
fulfils the aims and objectives set by its
Sponsor Departments; DAERA and DECC,
which are approved by the NSMC, and for
promoting the efficient, economic and
effective use of staff and other resources by
the Agency.

establishes the overall strategic direction
of the Agency within the policy and
resources framework determined by the
NSMC, relevant Ministers and Sponsor
Departments;

constructively challenges the Agency’s
Senior Management Team in their planning,
target setting and delivery of performance;

ensures that Sponsor Departments are kept
informed of any changes which are likely

to impact on the strategic direction of the
Agency, or on the attainability of its targets,
and determine the steps needed to deal
with such changes;

ensures that any statutory or administrative
requirements for the use of public funds are
complied with; that the Agency operates
within the limits of its statutory authority
and any delegated authority agreed with
Sponsor Departments, and in accordance
with any other conditions relating to the
use of public funds; and that, in reaching
decisions, the Board takes into account

all relevant guidance issued by the NSMC,
the Finance Departments and Sponsor
Departments;

ensures that it receives and reviews regular
financial information concerning the
management of the Agency; is informed in

a timely manner of any concerns regarding
the activities of the Agency; and provides
positive assurance to Sponsor Departments
that appropriate action has been taken on
such concerns;

demonstrates high standards of corporate
governance at all times, including using the
independent Audit and Risk Committee to

assist the Board in addressing key financial
and other risks facing the Agency.

"Mr Laurence Arbuckle appointed as Chairman on 16th December 2020 and attended first Board Meeting on 23rd

February 2021.

2 Mr Terry McWilliams reappointed for a second term, for 5 years, on 16th December 2020.
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There were 6 Board Meetings held in 2020. Details of Board membership and attendance at
meetings held during 2020 are as follows:

Board Member Position Attendance
Andrew Duncan Vice Chair 6
Phil Mahon Member 6
Michael McCormick Member 4
Terry McWilliams Member 5
Allan Ewart Member 6
Alastair Patterson Member 4
lan McCrea Member 1
Fiona Walsh Member 5
Heather Mackey Member 6
Patrick Gibbons Member 6

Board Meetings

No. Date

19 21st February 2020
120 5th May 2020

121 30th June 2020

122 4th September 2020
123 30th October 2020
124 18th December 2020

Minutes of the above meetings are available on the Agency’s website: www.loughs-agency.org
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The FCILC Board established an Audit and
Risk Committee to support them in their
responsibilities for issues of risk, control and
governance and associated assurance.

The Audit and Risk Committee advises
the Accounting Officer and the Board
on.:

+ the strategic processes for risk, control and

governance and the Statement of Internal
Control;

» the accounting policies and the Annual
Report and Accounts of the Agency;

+ the planned activity and results of both
Internal and External Audit;

+ adequacy of management response to
issues identified by Internal and External
audit reports;

+ assurances relating to the management
of risk and corporate governance
requirements for the Agency;

+ consider anti-fraud policies, whistleblowing
processes and arrangement for special
investigations;

* receive any relevant reports from the
Comptroller and Auditor General's, and
other organisations;

« consider the findings of any relevant
internal and external reviews which have
significant implications for the Agency.

There were 4 Audit and Risk Committee
Meetings held in 2020. Details of Audit and
Risk Committee membership and attendance
at meetings held during 2020 are as follows:

Board Member Position Attendance
Patrick Gibbons Chairman 4
Fiona Walsh Member 3
Allan Ewart Member 3
Alastair Patterson Member 4

Andrew Walker

Audit and Risk Committee Meetings

25th March 2020

22nd June 2020

23rd September 2020

3rd December 2020

Co-Opted Member 4
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North South
Ministerial
Council

There was one Aquaculture and Marine
Sectoral Meeting of the North South Ministerial
Council held in 2020. The thirtieth Aquaculture
and Marine meeting was held in the NSMC
Joint Secretariat Offices, Armagh and by
videoconference on 21st October 2020. The
meeting was attended by Minister for the
Environment, Climate and Communications
Eamon Ryan TD, Minister for Agriculture,
Environment and Rural Affairs Edwin Poots

MLA and Minister for Infrastructure Nichola
Mallon MLA. Minister Ryan chaired the meeting.

Ministers welcomed the report on the activities
of Loughs Agency including the ongoing
conservation and protection efforts, and
noted in particular Loughs Agency's response
to COVID-19; Loughs Agency'’s Strategic
Direction for a New Decade 2020-30; the
collaborative work in delivery of a number

of conservation, angling and marine tourism
development projects; and the success

of the Foyle and Carlingford Ambassador
Programme. The Council also welcomed
Loughs Agency’s continued investment in its
scientific fisheries monitoring programme.

Minutes of NSMC meetings are available on the
NSMC website at:
https://www.northsouthministerialcouncil.org

Loughs Agency Annual Report 2020


https://www.northsouthministerialcouncil.org

Corporate
Governance

LQJ\Q@GDCV Annual Report

Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna
Factrie fur Loughs



The Corporate Services Directorate is a key
enabler for the delivery of the Agency's
strategic goals. The Agency continued to meet
its Corporate Governance responsibilities
throughout 2020. This was evidenced through
regular Board and Audit and Risk Committee
meetings, complying with risk management
processes and ensuring an effective system of
internal control.

The Agency monitored its expenditure against
approved budgets and reported to its Sponsor
Departments on aregular basis. Regular
Governance and Accountability meetings with
Sponsor Departments as well as day to day
engagement, continued throughout 2020 to
ensure ongoing compliance with the Code of
Practice for the Governance of State Bodies
and Oversight Agreement (DECC) and the
Sponsorship Manual (DAERA).

Internal Audit

Internal Audit is an important part of the
overall Corporate Governance of the Agency.
The Internal Audit tests systems, associated
procedures and controls and reports upon
their effectiveness. In 2020 the Agency
received a satisfactory rating.

4 T ———
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Staffing

The Agency operates within a four Directorate structure (Development, Aquaculture &
Shellfisheries, Conservation & Protection and Corporate Services) with a current approved
permanent core staffing complement of 53.

Senior Management Organisational Chart as at 31st December
2020

Chief
Executive

Director of Director of : Director of
Director of

Development

Aquaculture and
Shellfisheres

Corporate Conservation
Services and Protection
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Staff Development

The Agency recognises the importance of staff development and the delivery of appropriate
continuous personal development initiatives for all staff. Throughout the year, the Agency
addressed the training and development needs of staff, focusing on knowledge and skills
retention and motivation appropriate to the achievements of the Agency's objectives and
individuals' needs.

Complaints Handling

The Agency has a complaints handling procedure. The procedure can be found at https://
www.loughs-agency.org/customer-service One complaint was received in 2020, which was
successfully resolved.

Loughs Agency Annual Report 2020
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Throughout the COVID-19 pandemic Loughs
Agency remained committed to providing a
safe and healthy environment for employees,
stakeholders and members of the public while
ensuring business continuity.

Our offices and Riverwatch Visitor Centre
remained closed to the public and all office
based staff moved to working from home

in line with government advice in March
2020. Throughout the year all administration,
technical and professional staff continued to
work successfully and securely from home.

The Senior Management Team implemented,
reviewed and updated a COVID-19 response
plan, including a range of secure working
practices.

Guidelines and communication plans were
initiated to facilitate home working and
connectivity with staff. The Agency’s new

intranet platform “RIPPLE" proved to be an
effective method of communication between
the various teams.

Allinternal and external meetings moved to a
virtual platform and continued to be held in line
with government guidelines.

Following the initial lockdown restrictions

of March 2020, Fishery Protection staff
returned to full operational duties on 18th May
2020. Our scientific and project staff also
recommenced scientific surveys to meet our
statutory obligations. As part of thisreturn

to work, relevant procedures, an induction
and health declaration were introduced. Safe
operating procedures were revised to comply
with public health advice.

Itis hoped that the Agency can return to the
office environment during 2021 following the
easing of government restrictions. Due to the
success of home working the Agency’s Senior
Management Team will consider a hybrid model
of working, which facilitates a blend of home
and office working with ongoing monitoring
and adherence to public health guidance.

Loughs Agency Annual Report 2020
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Enforcement
Despite COVID-19 restrictions illegal fishing activity continued throughout 2020, with both illegal
salmon netting and a variety of angling offences.

The Agency is grateful for support from the Police Service of Northern Ireland and An Garda
Siochana.

Seizures

Boats and Cars 8 3 1 2 7
Net 49 78 41 31 37
Other 20 17 7 8 7
Fishing Rods 57 46 42 48 55
Salmonid 27 27 17 14 75
Other Fish 26 4 27 215 15
La ¢ T z

Pollution Incidents

Throughout 2020 Loughs Agency staff dealt with an increase in water pollution related issues
and have instigated a significant number of prosecution cases stemming from these enforcement
actions.

The Agency investigated 281 incidents in 2020. The nature of these investigations from 2017 to
2020 are detailed in the table below:

2017 2018 2019 2020

g;)slz;é?;i:ulture Waste 14 13 . 24
Agriculture 87 57 82 107
Chemical 4 4 8 4

No Pollution Found 79 64 60 33
Oil 4 14 17 18
Other 41 24 54 68
Sewage 23 12 17 26
Fallen Animals 4 3 2 1
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Meenbog

On the 13th November 2020 a section of
approximately 4.5 hectares of peat bog
adjacent to a wind farm development site in
Co Donegal slipped into a feeder stream and
subsequently into the Mourne Beg River. The
volume of material was difficult to estimate,
however is likely to runinto hundreds of tons.

The incident continues to be investigated by
Loughs Agency, Northern Ireland Environment
Agency (NIEA), National Parks and Wildlife
Service, Environmental Protection Agency,
Donegal County Council and Derry City and
Strabane District Council.

DAERA Minister Edwin Poots MLA and Minister
for Agriculture, Food and the Marine Charlie
McConalouge TD visited Meenbog, Co
Donegal on the 20th November 2020. Minister
Poots also visited Corgary Fish Farm which
has been seriously impacted by the pollution
incident.

The Rivers Mourne Beg and Derg all form part
of alarge river system flowing into the River
Foyle and subsequently Lough Foyle. This river
system is important for the species it contains
and supports, notably Atlantic salmon and
species of lamprey and otter, and also because
of its range of river and associated habitats
such as woodland.

The system is protected as an Area of

Special Scientific Interest (ASSI) and also is
recognised internationally as a Special Area of
Conservation (SAC). It is not possible at the
moment to quantify the impact of the landslide
on the conservation status of the system,
however staff continue to work to establish a
joined response to achieve early restorative
actions.

Two Inter-Agency Working Groups have
been set up, one for enforcement and one for
restoration. The groups are currently meeting
weekly to review the incident as it develops.
These groups are chaired by Loughs Agency
and include the following:

* Donegal County Council (Planning
Enforcement, Environment Section and
Engineers).

* Environmental Protection Agency Ireland
(Biologists and Liability Directive Staff).

« National Parks and Wildlife Service.

* NorthernlIreland Environment Agency
(Environmental Liability Directive, Water
Quality and Natural Designations Section).

* Derry and Strabane District Council.

* Northern Ireland Water (Water Treatment
staff).

Scientific Fisheries Monitoring

Programme

Loughs Agency's management of salmon
fisheries is designed to comply with the
fundamental principles of the North Atlantic
Salmon Conservation Organization (NASCO).
These principles and objectives are to promote
the diversity and abundance of salmon

stocks and maintain all stocks above their
conservation limits.

Salmon numbers have declined globally. In the
1980s for every 100 smolts that left the rivers
approximately 30 would return to the coast.
This is now around 5, which equates to 95%
mortality at sea (River Bush, ICES Index River).

With the support of its Sponsor Departments,
the Agency has undertaken a significant
investment in fish counter operations and
telemetry river gauges. The Agency operates
the only real-time management regime for
Atlantic salmon internationally, with in-season
targets to control exploitation based on
numbers of fish crossing the key fish counter
sites. There are currently seven fish counters
operating in the Foyle and Carlingford system,
four of which are statutory counters.

Loughs Agency Annual Report 2020

30



In overview for 2020, the following data was derived from the legislative cited fish counters:
* The River Finn failed to meet its conservation limit.

+ Using the data from the University of Glasgow's work on the weir at Sion Mills the River
Mourne met its conservation limit, and there was an improvement on the 2019 count.

* The River Faughan met its conservation limit and management target.

* The River Roe met its conservation limit and management target.

Conservation % Management o Compliance

Limit Compliance  Target ° P
River Finn 4,328 53 5,410 43 2,302
River 6,287 62 7.859 49 3,915
Mourne
River Roe 1,466 396 1,811 495 3,696
River 640 984 800 788 6,300
Faughan

The 2020 salmon runs appear to have improved on previous years for most of the rivers,
however, the River Finn remains a significant concern. Given the failure of the River Finn to meet
its conservation limit in 2019 a Declaration was made in early 2020, in pursuance of Article 3 of
the Foyle Area (Control of Fishing) Regulations 2010, Section 13(1) of the Foyle Fisheries Act 1952
and Section 13 (1) of the Foyle Fisheries Act (Northern Ireland) 1952.

This Declaration suspended netting in the River Foyle, Lough Foyle and seaward of Lough Foyle,
and restricted angling in the River Finn to angling on a catch and release basis only for the whole
of the 2020 season.

Fish Count Summary 2016 - 2020

2016 2017 2018 2019
River Finn 2,589 1,985 3,955 4,247 2,302
River Mourne 1,350 912 1,214 2,820 3,915
River Roe 3,809 2,371 4,305 1,573 3,696
River Faughan 3,791 1,763 1,046 3,976 6,300
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Salmonid Habitat

The Agency undertook significant habitat
works during 2020, these included riparian
fencing, tree planting schemes to prevent
habitat encroachment and livestock trampling,
the development of instream salmonid habitat
structures and erosion control schemes to
protect juvenile salmonid habitat.

Instream works, once completed can only be
successful if they are protected from both
environmental damage and water pollution.
Loughs Agency staff continued to focus on
protection of all juvenile habitat throughout
2020.

River Faughan Special Area of

Conservation Enhancement Projects
In partnership with the Woodland Trust
Northern Ireland and Northern Ireland Water,
the Agency has delivered native tree planting
projects, associated stock proof fencing and
improved access on the River Faughan.

The Agency's first ever wet woods
development has been constructed ona

4.8 acre field along the banks of the River
Faughan, in association and agreement with
the landowner. The wet woods includes the
construction of several leaky dams and ponds
with adjoining lands, planted with 2,000 native
trees, which will improve water quality, provide
new havens for wildlife and allow farmers and
landowners to actively engage in connecting
biodiversity and business gains.

Glenelly Flood Relief Project
Throughout 2020 the Agency continued to
progress the delivery of fisheries management
measures in the Glenelly Valley, following

Number of Licence
Season

the aftermath of the August 2017 flood.
Following a tender exercise facilitated by the
Construction and Procurement Delivery (CPD)
of the Department of Finance NI, a contract
was awarded through CPDs Dynamic Tender
Assessment process. The £500,000 funding
provided by DAERA, between 2018 and 2020,
was predominantly used for riparian fencing.
Approximately 38km of riparian fencing and
118 access gates have been erected along the
Owenkillew and Glenelly rivers. A number

of bankside revetment schemes have also
been completed. During 2021 the remaining
budget will be expended on round boulder
rock revetment works on the Owenreagh
River. Loughs Agency continues to monitor
all theriversin the flood affected areas, and
restore habitat degradation using its core
Conservation and Protection budget, where
applicable.

Native Oyster Fishery Lough Foyle

The 2019/20 fishery closed on 23rd March
2020. The final catch for the 2019/2020 fishery
was 48,628kg.

The 2020/21 native oyster fishery opened on
6th October 2020. In total 39 licences were
sold. The fishery was closed for the month of
November 2020 and reopened for 6 days in
December 2020.

The total catch from log returns received up to
end of December 2020 was 32,732kg.

Number of Days Fished Total Landings (t)

sold
2016/17 57 33 185
2017/18 55 17 205
2018/19 79 14 19
2019/20 40 32 48
2020/21 39 14* 33*

* as at December 2020
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Native Oyster Stock Assessments
Native oyster stock assessments were
conducted from April to May (post fishery)
and August to September (pre fishery)

2020. There was no unusually high mortality
observed during either survey. Total biomass
of the stock was estimated to be 378 tonnes

in spring and 1,055 tonnes in autumn. The
large increase in biomass during 2020 was
attributed to the good survival and growth in
the large cohort of oysters that settled in large
numbers during summer 2018. The majority of

Total (predicted)

this cohort of oystersis now in the 45-65mm
size classes.

There was evidence of a limited spatfall

in summer 2020 with 21% of the stations
sampled yielding spat with a spat density of
0.12m2. Total fishable tonnage was estimated
to be 69 tonnes in autumn 2020. It was
recommended that only partial removal of the
fishable stock take place to help maintain an
effective spawning stock biomass within the
fishery.

Total . : . Total Fishable Biomass
Year Survey Biomass :;s(;\:‘g:e Biomass Spring Autumn >80mm
Spring 366 155
2016
Autumn 616 174
Spring 438 248
2017
Autumn 684 315
Spring 509 372
2018
Autumn 724 269
Spring 504 329
2019
Autumn 479 1né
Spring 378 66
2020
Autumn 1,055 69
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Native Oyster Larval Assessment

The presence of bivalve larvae was monitored
within the Lough Foyle native oyster fishery in
summer 2020 for the tenth successive year.
Monitoring took place between June and
September 2020, with sampling of plankton
and environmental parameters being carried
out weekly on five oyster beds until 1st
September 2020.

Mean water temperature (16.4°C +1.99) and
salinity (30.8 psu * 1.49) were both slightly
higher than in 2019 and variation amongst the
beds was minimal. Mean water temperature at
all sites peaked at18.5°C + 0.27 in week 9 (18th
August 2020).

Peak mean numbers of bivalve larvae (27,666/
m2) were almost half what they were in 2019,
suggesting that the reproductive output
during the sampling period was less intensive.
Peak numbers of larvae were detected on the
same week in mid-August as they were during
the 2019 survey. Spat settlement appears to
have been very limited to a few oyster beds
with the highest adult density.

Unregulated Aquaculture Surveys

This unregulated activity remained an ongoing
concern for the Agency during 2020. By way
of monitoring this growing activity the Agency
conducted an aerial drone survey of the Pacific
oyster trestle arrays in September 2020. This
information was used to estimate the quantity
of trestles and to record the location of the
arrays. The total number of trestles was
estimated to be 74,095, covering an area of
210 hectares. Thisis anincrease of 8.1% in

the number of trestles since 2019. The oyster
trestles cover approximately 34% of the total
intertidal area from Culmore to Moville in
Lough Foyle.

The Agency will continue to monitor the
growth of this unregulated activity during
2021.

Native Oyster Growth Trials 2020
Growth trial experiments were initiated on 3
oyster beds in January 2020 and continued
throughout the year. Approximately 150
oysters were tagged and deployed in
specially adapted lobster pots which had

Ortac oyster growing boxes installed inside
them. Unfortunately quite high mortality
levels were observed during these growth
trials and regular measurements for growth
was interrupted by the COVID-19 pandemic
restrictions.

Mean growth for the oysters that were
recorded during the period was between
5-17mm. Hourly water temperature

trends were also recorded as part of these
experimental deployments and this data has
been used in the 2020 bivalve larval monitoring
assessment.

Angling and Marine Tourism

Following the reopening of angling and other
marine tourism based activities in quarter 2

of 2020, the Agency witnessed a continued
increase in demand for outdoor activities,
driven by the domestic staycation market and
the need for outdoor activities that complied
with government guidelines.

These activities assisted health and wellbeing
while also helping stimulate economic activity.
Existing providers diversified and new water
based recreational and tourism ventures
opened across the Foyle and Carlingford
areas.

The Agency will continue to work with the
angling and marine tourism sectors to help
develop and promote a sustainable approach
to providing great outdoor experiences.

Marketing and Promotion

The Agency's social media channels, which
have over 10,000 followers, are utilised to
showcase what the catchments have to offer
locals and visitors, typically through video and
striking photography.

In 2020 the Agency secured broadcast
media both in television and radio news and
programmes series such as Lough Foyle with
Joe Mahon.

The Agency in partnership with Derry City
and Strabane District Council supported
the development of a cross border access
improvement project, funded by the EU
LEADER programme. Thisincluded works

Loughs Agency Annual Report 2020

34



at Strabane Canal and Gribben Quay, which
enabled local people and visitors to enjoy the
countryside and appreciate its beauty, natural
and cultural assets, along the rivers and coasts.

Omagh Office

Throughout 2020 the Agency continued to

invest in its operational facilities. The construction

of areplacement regional office in Omagh was
delayed due to COVID-19 restrictions, with a
handover date of mid 2021 now anticipated.

This significant development will be of strategic
importance to the Agency. The central location will
allow stakeholders and members of the public to
avail of services and engage with Fishery Protection
personnel. The inclusion of a large function room also
provides the Agency with the ability to hold Board and
other strategic meetings.

Just Transition
Given its remit, implementing Just Transition is an organisation-
wide process for the Agency that plans emission reductions,
promotes energy sustainability, insulates and future proofs its assets,
works with stakeholders and supports workforce resilience, skills
development and new career opportunities.

In a bid to achieve this, during 2020 the Agency purchased its
first electric vehicle and is currently embracing low risk pilot
programmes, e.g. the development of Artificial Intelligence in
relation to the validation of fish counter data.
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2020 saw the Agency continue to deliver
EU-funded programmes as Lead Partner
of SeaMonitor and as a partner in the
CatchmentCARE and SWELL projects.

SeaMonitor - €4.7m EU-funded under
the European Regional Development
Fund and match-funded by
Government Departments North and
South.

SeaMonitor is a unigue marine Research
Project, the first of its kind in Europe, studying
the seas around Ireland, Western Scotland
and Northern Ireland. The Project aims to
address three Programme Output Indicators
and deliver the INTERREG VA objective of
developing cross-border capacity for the
monitoring and management of marine
protected areas and species.

This Project has a partnership of nine,
comprising of funded partners located in
Northern Ireland, Ireland, Scotland, and non-
funded partners located in Canada and the
USA. The Projectis led by Loughs Agency

and supported by another eight leading
marine research institutions, using innovative
marine species tracking technology to better
understand and protect vulnerable marine life
in our oceans. The Project Partners are Queens
University Belfast, University of Glasgow,
University College Cork, Galway-Mayo
Institute of Technology, Marine Institute, Agri-
Food and Biosciences Institute (AFBI), Ocean
Tracking Network Dalhousie University Canada
and Davis University College California.

During 2020 SeaMonitor staff were recruited
and despite restrictions due to COVID-19,
limited fieldwork was undertaken with useful

data collected. Work packages and revised
plans for 2021 have been agreed. 2021 will see
the full deployment of the telemetric arrays
and animal tagging across the partnership.

CatchmentCARE - €13,792,432 EU-
funded under the European Regional
Development Fund and match-funded
by Government Departments North
and South.

CatchmentCARE (Community Actions for
Resilient Eco-systems) is an EU-funded Project
that aims to improve freshwater quality in
cross-border river basins across three cross-
border catchments. The aims of the project will
be achieved through the development of three
water quality improvement projectsin the
River Finn, River Blackwater and Arney River
catchments, and installation of 50 boreholes
across the region.

Local authorities, Donegal County Council
(Lead Partner), Armagh City, Banbridge &
Craigavon Borough Council, working with
academia in Ulster University, as well as Loughs
Agency, AFBI, British Geological Survey,
Geological Survey Ireland and Inland Fisheries
Ireland, bring a rich and diverse skill-set from
which to bring the CatchmentCARE Project
forward.

During 2020, Loughs Agency identified and
scored 267kms of potential riparian fencing
and tree planting, as well as instream works.
The first site for riparian fencing and instream
works commenced in 2020. Works at the

site include the installation of two instream
green engineering solutions, 1.8kms of fencing
to create a S5mriparian buffer zone and the
installation of off-line drinking water solutions
for livestock.

SWELL - €35m EU-funded under the
European Regional Development Fund
and match-funded by Government
Departments North and South.

The SWELL (Shared Waters Enhancement and
Loughs Legacy) Project represents a cross-
border partnership comprising NI Water, Irish
Water, AFBI, Loughs Agency and East Border
Region, working collaboratively to improve
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water quality within the shared waters of Carlingford
Lough and Lough Foyle.

The partnership will utilise best practice, innovation and
knowledge sharing to effectively achieve the outputs and
results of the INTERREG VA Programme. Through engineering
excellence, strategic catchment investigation and modelling,
SWELL will deliver sustainable upgrades to wastewater
assets on both sides of the border, and will make a positive
contribution towards ‘Good Ecological Status’ under the EU
Water Framework Directive.

During 2020 Loughs Agency assisted AFBI with the pre-
improvement works baseline surveys for the catchment
models in the Foyle and Carlingford catchments (marine
and freshwater). These surveys were completed in
March 2020. Loughs Agency has also assisted AFBI

with the collection of rainfall and flow data during
extreme rainfall events as part of the Rainfall Reactive
Survey. This data will help inform how the model reacts
during periods of extreme rainfall. The model can then
be used to predict how the wastewater treatment

plans and discharges will perform during intense rainfall
conditions.
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Remuneration Policy
The Remuneration Policy addresses
remuneration on an organisation-wide basis
and is one of the key components of the HR
Strategy, both of which fully support the
overall business strategy. The main functions
of the Remuneration Policy, are to:
+ support Loughs Agency'’s strategy
by helping to build a competitive and
innovative business that attracts, retains
and motivates employees;

+ promote the achievement of strategic
objectives within the Agency's risk
appetite;

+ promote / support positive outcomes
across the economic and social context in
which the Agency operates; and

+ promote an ethical culture and responsible
corporate citizenship.

Remuneration Philosophy and Key
Principles

Remuneration Philosophy

The Agency's remuneration philosophy

is to recruit, motivate, reward and retain
employees who believe in, and live by,

our culture and values. We endeavour to
encourage entrepreneurship by creating a
working environment that motivates staff so
that all employees can positively contribute
to the strategy, vision, goals and values of
the Agency. Our philosophy strives to set
our employees' total remuneration package
at a competitive level. We believe the long
term success of the Agency is directly linked
to the calibre of employees that we employ
and the working environment that we create.
Itis, therefore, imperative that we make a
concerted attempt to align the best interests
of our employees with that of our other
stakeholders.

Key Remuneration Principles
The Agency's Remuneration Policy is based on
the following principles:
* The Remuneration Policy is aligned to
the overall business strategy, objectives
and values of the Agency, without
being detrimental to the interests of its
stakeholders.

* The Remuneration Policy, procedures
and practises are consistent with, and
supportive of, effective risk management.

+ Salaried employees are rewarded on a
total rewards basis, which includes fixed,
variable, short and long term rewards
applicable to the position.

+ The fixed (guaranteed) component of the
reward includes a base salary aligned with
the Northern Ireland Civil Service (NICS)
rates.

+ Total remuneration may include other
allowances applicable to the position.

Remuneration Policy Areas

Scope

The Remuneration Policy is applicable to all
permanent employees of the Agency.

Remuneration Structure

The Agency's remuneration structure relating

to salaried employees (including Directors)

comprises the following categories/elements:

+ guaranteed remuneration package (fixed
and aligned to NICS pay grades and scales);

+ variable remuneration (applicable only
to Inspectors and Fishery Officers and
dependant on the amount of unsocial hours
worked);

+ oncall allowance (applicable to those
on call for incidents relating to pollution,
poaching, building security and IT
infrastructure - fixed and aligned to NICS
on call allowance).

The fixed remuneration is guaranteed and paid
irrespective of the Agency's performance,
while the variable remuneration is not
guaranteed, and directly linked to an individual
recording a certain amount of unsocial hoursin
a specified time period.

Remuneration of Staff

Permanent Staff

Staff appointments are made in accordance
with the Agency’s Recruitment and Selection
Policy. This Policy requires appointments to

be made on merit on the basis of fair and open
competition. Staff may be able to retire before
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state pension age with no diminution of earlier
pension benefits, depending on the terms of
their pension. Information relating to notice
periods is contained in an individual's contract.

Minimum Pay Levels

Minimum pay levels are dependent on the
grade at which individual starts and are aligned
to the NICS pay scales (Northern Ireland) and
the Inland Fisheries Ireland pay scales (Ireland).

Progression

At initial appointment, staff are normally
placed on the bottom point of the appropriate
scale relevant to the position. Thereafter, there
is annual incremental progression up the scale
until the maximum of the scale is reached.

This commonly happens in August of each

year for staff in Northern Ireland, and on the
anniversary of the employee’s appointment for
staff in Ireland.

Performance Pay
There is no performance pay, related scheme
or equivalent for staff.

Temporary Staff
The Agency can appoint temporary staff in one
of two ways.

* By open recruitment, in which case the
appointment is made in accordance with
the Agency's Recruitment and Selection
Policy. In this case minimum pay levels
are dependent on the grade at which an
individual starts and are aligned to the NICS
pay scales (Northern Ireland) and the Inland
Fisheries Ireland pay scales (Ireland).

* By theuse of arecruitment agency. As a
public body the Agency is obliged to use an
assigned Agency from the Agency Worker
User Protocol, depending on job role. The
recruitment agency will be tasked with
advertising the vacancy, sourcing suitable
candidates, screening CV's, meeting
candidates to determine suitability and for
supplying the CV's of the most suitable
candidates to Loughs Agency. Workers
obtained using this method are employed
by the recruitment agency, therefore the
contract lies between them.

An open recruitment competition will be
carried out as the preferred option, however
arecruitment agency would be the chosen
method in the event of an urgent requirement.

Total Reward Package

All staff have access to the North/South
Pension Scheme (NSPS). CEO (or equivalent),
Directors and permanent staff posts have
contracts with varying hours. The hours
contracted are dependent on the nature

of the work that they do, and any special
arrangements made for individuals to facilitate
a good work life balance. All staff have access
to Maternity Leave, Paternity Leave and
Adoption Leave. Flexible working is available,
however each case is assessed individually
against the business needs and may be
awarded at the discretion of the Agency.

All staff, upon appointment will be granted

a 25 day leave entitlement, plus a further 12
statutory and public holidays as recognised by
the sector. Temporary staff have their holiday
allocation pro-rated for the year if applicable.

Service Contracts

Loughs Agency appointments are made on
merit on the basis of fair and open competition.
Unless otherwise stated, the officials covered
by this report hold appointments, which are
open ended. Early termination, other than

for misconduct, would result in the individual
being entitled to receive compensation.
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Salary and Pension Entitlements
The following sections provide details of the remuneration and pension interests of the most
Senior Management of the Agency.

Remuneration including salary and pension entitlements of Senior Management Staff

2020 2019
Senior Management / Gross Benefits in Gross Benefits in
Directors Kind Kind
£ £
Designated Officer appointed ) B
1 March 2017 65,505 62,213
Director of Development 55,034 - 54,275 -
Director of Conservation and 55,764 _ 54,575 B
Protection
Director of Aquaculture and 66.692 _ 63.436 B
Shellfisheries
Interim Director of Corporate
Services appointed 9 May 54,572 - 52,979 -
2017
297,567 287,478 -
2020 2019
£ £
Highest Paid Director’s salary 68.786 63.823
at 31 Dec*
Median Total Remuneration 28,730 28,167
Ratio 2.4 2.3

(31 December stg to euro rate 2020: 1.11231/ 2019: 1.1753, average rate 2020:1.12397 / 2019:
1.1392)
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2020 2019

Senior Management / Benefits in Benefitsin

Directors CGross Kind CGross Kind

€ €

Designated Officer appointed

1March 2017 73626 - 70,873 -
Director of Development 61,857 - 61,830 -
Dlrecto.r of Conservation and 62.677 _ 62172 )
Protection
Dlrec'for of Aquaculture and 74,960 _ 72,266 )
Shellfisheries
Interim Director of Corporate
Services appointed 9 May 61,337 - 60,354 -
2017

334,457 - 327,495 -

Highest Paid Director’s salary

at 31 Dec* 76,511 75,011
Median Total Remuneration 32,292 32,088
Ratio 2.4 2.3

*Directors salaries gross include total pay received between 01/01/20 and 31/12/20 whereas the
highest paid Director rate is based on highest salary paid to any one Director on accounting date
31/12/20, which will not be the same, as a result of pay awards and annual increments within the
year.
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Salary

Salary includes gross salary and an ‘on call’
allowance for two of the Directors. No other
‘emoluments’ are payable to Directors.

Bonuses

The Agency does not pay bonuses to any
members of Senior Management or any
members of staff.

Benefits in Kind

The monetary value of benefits in kind covers
any benefit provided by the employer and
treated by HM Revenue and Customs as

a taxable emolument. None of the Senior
Management Team had benefits in kind in 2020
or 2019.

Fair Pay (Audited Information)
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the
relationship between the remuneration of the
highest paid Director in their organisation and
the median remuneration of the organisations
workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid
Director in the Agency in the financial year
2020 was £59,932 to £73,069 / €66,663

to €81,275 (2019 was £55,608 to £67,796 /
€65,356 to €79,681). Theratioin 2020 was
2.4 times (2019 was 2.3 times). The median
remuneration of the workforce was £28,730 /
€32,292 (2019 £28,167 / €32,088).

No employees received remuneration in excess
of the highest paid Director in either year.
Remuneration ranged from £19,425 to £68,786
/ €21,607 to €76,511in 2020 (2019 £18,513 to
£63,823/€21,758 to €75,011).

Total remuneration includes gross salary. These
calculations have been based on the North/
South Implementation Bodies Guidance 2017
and are calculated on the basis of annualised
full-time equivalent remuneration of all staff as
at the reporting date.
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The table previous was provided by the North/South Pension scheme independent actuary,
Deloitte Total Reward and Benefits Limited.

The Cash Equivalent Transfer Values (“CETVs") are not guaranteed and are for illustrative purpos-
esonly.

CETVs have been calculated based on estimated projected pension benefits as at 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2020.

For members over Normal Retirement Age there are no available CETV factors published. In such
circumstances an estimated factor has been calculated using extrapolation.

For Alpha benefits, the accrued pension figures assume the salary provided by the Body is equal
to Actual Pensionable Earnings over the year to 31 March 2020.

*Final salary only benefits
**Final salary and alpha benefits.
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Accrued pension at pension age as at
31 December 2020 and related lump

sum

The accrued pension at pension age as at 31
December 2020 and related lump sum is the
value of the annual pension and lump sum the
person is entitled to on retirement, based on
service to that date.

The real increase in pension and

related lump sum at pension age

The real increase in pension and lump sum

is the increase over and above inflation, as
measured by Consumer Price Index. For
2019/20, a +2.4% adjustment (18/19, +3%) was
made for Northern members and +0.9% (18/19
+0.2%) was applied to Southern members.

Cash Equivalent Transfer Values

A Cash Equivalent Transfer Value (CETV) is
the actuarially assessed capitalised value

of the pension scheme benefits accrued by

a member at a particular pointin time. The
benefits valued are the member’s accrued
benefits and any contingent spouse’s

pension payable from the scheme. A CETV

is a payment made by a pension scheme or
arrangement to secure pension benefits in
another pension scheme, or arrangement
when the member leaves a scheme and
chooses to transfer the benefits accruedin
their former scheme. The pension figures
shown relate to the benefits that the individual
has accrued as a consequence of their total
membership of the pension scheme, not just
their service in a senior capacity to which
disclosure applies. The CETV figures include
the value of any pension benefit in another
scheme or arrangement which the individual
has transferred to the Agency’s pension
arrangements. They also include any additional
pension benefit accrued to the member as a
result of their purchasing additional years of
pension service in the scheme at their own
cost. CETVs are calculated in accordance with
The Occupational Pension Schemes (Transfer
Values) (Amendment) Regulations 2008 and
do not take account of any actual or potential
benefits resulting from Lifetime Allowance Tax
which may be due when pension benefits are
taken.

Real Increase in CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively
funded by the employer. It does not include
the increase in accrued pension due to
inflation, contributions paid by the employee
(including the value of any benefits transferred
from another pension scheme or arrangement)
and uses common market valuation factors for
the start and end of the period.

Value of accrued pension benefits

The value of pension benefits accrued during
the year is calculated as the real increase in
pension multiplied by 20, plus the real increase
in any lump sum, less contributions made by
the individual. The real increases exclude
increases due to inflation and any increase or
decrease due to a transfer of pension rights.

Pension Arrangements

Loughs Agency employees are members of
the North/South Pension Scheme (NSPS).
The NSPS was established by the North/
South Implementation Bodies and Tourism
Ireland Limited with effect from 29 April
2005. It is a defined benefit pension scheme
which is funded annually on a pay as you go
basis from monies provided by the UK and
Irish Exchequers. Funding is provided to the
Agency by DAERA in the North and DECC in
the South. The scheme is administered by an
external administrator.

The NSPS consists of a number of sections
with different benefit structures.

The Core Final Salary section is a final salary
pension arrangement with benefits modelled
on the Classic section of the Principal Civil
Service Pension Scheme in Northern Ireland.
The scheme provides a pension (eightieths per
year of service), a gratuity or lump sum (three
eightieths per year of service) and spouse's
and children's pensions. Normal Retirement
Ageis amember's 60th birthday. Pensionsin
payment (and deferment) increase in line with
general price inflation.

The Core Alpha sectionis a Career Averaged
Revalued Earnings (CARE) pension
arrangement or scheme with benefits
modelled on the Alpha Section of the Principal
Civil Service Pension Scheme in Northern
Ireland. The Scheme provides a pension based
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on a percentage (2.32%) of pensionable

pay for each year of active membership (the
pension is increased at the start of each
scheme year in line with general price inflation)
and spouse’s and children’s pensions. Normal
retirement age is a member's State pension
age in the relevant jurisdiction. In the UK the
State pension age is currently 66. The UK
Government is planning further increases,
which will raise the State pension age from 66
to 67 between 2026 and 2028 and from 67 to
68 between 2044 and 2046.

In Ireland, the State pension age is currently 66.

This was due to rise to 67 from 1 January 2021
and then to 68 from 1 January 2028 however,

the government has deferred this change and a
Pensions Commission has been established to
consider the change to the State pension age,
among other issues such as sustainability and
intergenerational fairness.

Pensions in payment (and deferment) increase
in line with general price inflation.

Most Core section members have benefits
in both the Final Salary and Alpha Sections
and new entrants who joined the Scheme
after 1 April 2015 will, in most cases, become
members of the Core Alpha section.

Board Members remuneration including social security costs
(Audited Information)

ol o 2020 2019 2020 2019
£ £ € €

1r'/érlé_gtt:lrze(;\zc(()e)Arbuckle (Chairperson appointed 350 B 393 B
Mr Andrew Duncan (Vice Chairperson) 9,427 9,397 10,595 10,706
Mr Michael McCormick 7,381 7,356 8,296 8,380
Mrs Phil Mahon 5,656 5,663 6,245 6,337
Era;(;rgn:l%v;lglggsz(g;arm ended 12 Dec 2020, 5.476 5.563 6156 6,337
Mr Allan Ewart 5,656 5,663 6,245 6,337
Mr lan McCrea 5,656 5,663 6,245 6,337
Mr Alastair Patterson 5,556 5,563 6,245 6,337
Mrs Fiona Walsh 7,381 7,355 8,296 8,379
Mr Patrick Gibbons 7,381 7,355 8,296 8,379
Ms Heather Mackey 7,381 7,355 8,296 8,379
67,001 66,633 75,308 75,908

Board Members' salaries are not pensionable.
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Salary Bands for all Employees
Number of employees (full time equivalents) whose emoluments for the twelve months ending 31
December 2020 fell within the following bands:

Salary Bands (£) 2020 2019
No of employees No of employees
Less than 20,000 1 1
20,000 - 29,999 25 26
30,000 - 39,999 17 17
40,000 - 49,999 1 1
50,000 - 59,999 3 3
60,000 - 69,999 2 2
49 50
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Appendix 1 - Outturn Against
Targets

Priorities, Objectives and
Targets for 2020

Strategic Priority 1

To ensure that the priorities and values of the Loughs Agency Strategic Plan are progressed in
the course of the Agency’s business, with particular reference to staff, core operations and our
relationships.

Corporate Priority 1 aims to build the capacity of the Agency to work strategically, efficiently
and responsively to the policy and stakeholder environment it operates in, and to build the
relationships and communications necessary for the Agency to discharge its functions to
maximum impact.

Loughs Agency Annual Report 2020 52






Business Objective

1.1

Development of a
performance framework
linked to implementation
of the Corporate Plan and
annual Business Plan.

1.2

Implementation of a
structure for monitoring

risk and management
integrating with governance,
line management and staff
development processes.

Key Activities

Development of a suite of
corporate and reporting
templates to support
performance framework.

Orientation and training for
staff in risk management
as a business tool / smart
management tool.

Structured agendas are put
in place across all levels of
governance to reflect risk
reporting, mitigation and
review.

Delivery Targets

Key indicators for
delivery of the Strategic
Direction incorporated
into monitoring
arrangements for
Corporate and Business
Plan implementation. Q2.

Risk management and
mitigation is embedded
in the implementation of
Corporate

and Business Plans.

All staff receive

orientation in risk
management as a
business tool. Q4.

All team agendas reflect
structured approach to
recording and reviewing
risks to corporate
business activities and
projects.
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Delivery Outcome

Monitoring and
evaluation framework
using quantitative

and qualitative
information developed
and embedded

across core business,
staff supervision,

and all stakeholder

engagement activities. CEO and all Directors.

Staff have been trained,
understand how they
can contribute, and

are supported to
contribute within their
sphere of work to

the overall Strategic
Direction of the Agency.

Effective risk
management processes
in place to underpin

the delivery of the

Corporate and Business CEO and all Directors.

Plans, and to allow for
early identification and
mitigation of risks to
progress.

Responsible Director/s

Update

A Performance Framework
has been successfully
embedded across all
Directorates. The Reports
are being used to inform the
CEO and Board on progress
against business objectives.

All relevant staff have
completed training on the
new framework.

An effective system of risk
management was maintained
throughout the year. A
complete review of the
corporate Risk Register is
scheduled for Q1 of 2021.

Loughs Agency Annual Report 2020

55



Strategic Priority 2

Continue to maintain, develop and promote an accurate scientific evidence base providing
data and information to support and inform the Agency’s core and statutory operations, while
also promoting its role as a steward of key scientific knowledge.

The Agency is only as strong as the legislation it has supporting it and the resources it has to
enforce its legislation.

We will work with our Sponsor Departments to ensure that the Agency has a suite of fisheries and
environmental legislation to deliver the statutory remit of the Agency.

Business Objective Key Activities Delivery Targets

Procurement initiated and
scheduled. Q1.

Project delivery
Procurement of evidence arrangements and
2 .1 management system and progress reporting
Upgrade of evidence integration of data capture commenced. Q1.
management system. arrangements.
Go live date scheduled
and met for new system
to be fully operational and
integrated. Q4.

2 . 2 . .. Usage fully embedded in
Embed usage of migrated Training and support to staff practice within the Agency.

mobile software ensuring using mobile software.

. : . Q4.
compliance with data security
and protection requirements.

Prepare and evaluate options Options paper on planning
2 . 4 paper for location and planning presented to Board Q4.
Development options including for Finn counter stationin line
location and planning for Finn with relevant area planning Briefing on sustainable water
Counter station. policies and environmental supply for angling ponds.

protection legislation. Briefing takes account of any
Investigate a sustainable water key issues relevant in context
supply for angling ponds at Prepare briefing on sustainable of Strategic Review of Angling
Headquarters water supply for angling ponds (Priority 3). Q4.

at Headquarters.

Loughs Agency Annual Report 2020 56



Delivery Outcome

Datais captured on areal-

time basis and collated
in compliance with data
protection legislation.

Datais captured on areal-

time basis, collated and
managed to ensure data
quality and security.

Potential activities
relating to development
of a station on the Finn,
and angling ponds at HQ
are scoped in relation

to feasibility as regards
all relevant planning,
environmental and
corporate requirements.

Responsible Director/s

Director of Conservation &
Protection

Director of Conservation &
Protection

Director of Conservation

& Protection, Director of
Development and Director of
Corporate Services

Update

New digital system for
recording seizures introduced
integrating new barcode
tagging system.

New physical equipment for
storing and logging evidence
purchased and ready for use.
New digital system for the
recording and managements
of video and photographic
evidence introduced.

The Agency migrated from
using Trimble GPS units for

field data collection to using
ESRI software as an app on the
Agency phones and mobile web
apps giving staff access to the
data.

Flood risk assessment
completed in line with
environmental protection
legislation

Investigations undertaken, in-
house assessment and options
appraisal completed.

Options will be assessed by
SMT and preferred options will
be taken forward in 2021.
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Business Objective

2.5

Habitat surveys in line with
abundance of juvenile fish.

2.7

Review science / research
function with strategic
approach going forward.

2.8

and ecosystem monitoring,
spawhning / spatfall activity,
landings data analysis.

Stock Assessments on Lough
Foyle native oysters, benthic

Key Activities

Analysis of levels of juvenile fish.

Carry out habitat surveys and
report on / analyse findings.

Conduct a review of the
scientific function to develop

a strategy which oversees
scientific fisheries research
analysis and evaluation, to build
an evidence informed Fishery
Management Policy fit to deliver
on future environmental local
and global issues.

Routine stock assessments,
monitoring activities, and data
analysis.

Complete two stock
assessments on native oysters
in Lough Foyle.

Complete annual benthic and
ecosystem monitoring.

Monitor oyster spawning
activity and spatfall Landings
Data Analysis.

Delivery Targets

Produce overview of levels
of juvenile fish across
systems for which the
Agency has responsibility.
Q2.

Agree and identify schedule
of prioritised surveys. Q1.

Commence / complete
/ report on findings of
surveys. Q4.

Review of science and
research function and key
priorities presented and
implemented. Q4.

Schedule of assessments
and monitoring
arrangements in place. Q1.

Assessments and
monitoring arrangements in
implementation. Q1 and Q2.

Data available on scheduled
basis from all of the above
activities.



Delivery Outcome Responsible Director/s

Analysis of levels of juvenile fish
and habitat surveys completed.
Data has enabled the Agency
to make fisheries management
policy decisions.

Habitat survey

information informs Director of Conservation &
further Conservation and Protection

Protection work.

The Agency has a
renewed and well-tuned
approach to both the role
of its science function

in informing its other
activities, and the role of
the Agency as a facilitator
body for praxis-based
(applied) primary and
secondary research.

Science function transformation

will commence in 2021. Head

of Science post due to be filled
CEO in March 2021 following an

extended recruitment exercise

which commenced in December

2020.

Spring and autumn native oyster
surveys complete.

Benthic monitoring and
identification of suitable areas
for habitats work completed
during native oyster surveys.

Continue to collect quality

data on the Lough Foyle

native oysters which can  Director of Aquaculture and
inform conservation, Shellfisheries

protection and

development work.

Spawning assessment
completed in June 2020.

Landing data analysis to be
completed when 2020/21
fishery closes on March 31st
2021.



Strategic Priority 3

To develop, promote and sustain the natural resources of the catchments under Loughs
Agency's statutory care, through conservation, quality improvement, protection of species
and habitats, education and awareness, partnership working, and sustainable access to our

natural resources.

The Agency seeks to ensure that Lough Foyle and Carlingford Lough Areas are protected and
conserved for this and future generations. We recognise the importance of education and
outreach in highlighting the environmental challenges facing the unique natural resources under

the remit of the Agency.

Business Objective

3.1

Comprehensive review of
legislation to ensure that the
Agency has legislation that is fit
to deliver its’ remit in a changing
environment.

3.2

Ongoing delivery of
enforcement functions.

Key Activities Delivery Targets

Production of a regulatory
review position paper.

Position paper produced
and presented to Sponsor
Departments and Board. Q4.

Engage with Sponsor
Departments and other
statutory stakeholders to
initiate a comprehensive review
of legislation.

Enforcement Plan in place
and updated regularly using
local knowledge. Q4.

Production of an annual
enforcement plan.
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Delivery Outcome

Present and communicate

a comprehensive

Responsible Director/s

overview of the legislative Director of Conservation &
reform required to enable Protection

the Agency to discharge
its’ statutory functions.

80% of enforcement
duties targeted and
planned enforcement.

The Agency has gathered
and provided high quality
evidence from Fishery
Officers to support
statutory enforcement
functions.

A strategic review of
angling and fisheries
development has been
conducted.

This review will inform
future Business Plans and
help direct and focus the
Agency'’s development

work in relation to angling.
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Director of Conservation &
Protection and Director of
Corporate Services

Director of Aquaculture and

Shellfisheries

Draft position paper completed
following a lengthy internal
consultation process.

Sponsor Departments and
Stakeholder engagement will
take place in 2021/22.

Conservation and Protection
staff continued to deliver their
enforcement duties throughout
2020 in line with government
restrictions and Health and
Safety guidelines.

The Agency has successfully
delivered against its annual
Enforcement Plan.

Terms of Reference drafted,
desk research and engagement
with stakeholders to commence
in Q1 2021.



Business Objective

3.4

Enhancement of environmental
and socio-economic status of
the Lough Foyle Native Oyster
Fishery.

3.5

Education and outreach
programmes supported by
technical input across the
Agency.
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Key Activities

Continue to identify areas
suitable for reinstatement /
enhancement and the potential
of spatting ponds.

Investigate the potential to
develop the domestic market
and introduce a product
traceability standard for the
Lough Foyle native oyster.
Continue to engage with the
SAFER (Smart Atlantic Seafood
Clusters) Project.

Deliver Foyle and Carlingford
Ambassador Programme.

Development of modelling river
processes.

Delivery Targets

All project priorities for
existing project plans
implemented within
timeframe.

Progress on product
traceability standard
reported on throughout the
year.

Presentation to Board

on product traceability
standard and overall oyster
fishery. Q4.

Plans and schedule for
Foyle and Carlingford
Ambassador programme in
place. Q2.

Trainee Ambassadors
commence activities. Q2.

Additional funding sought-
progress reports quarterly
on this process. Q1,
ongoing.

Model designed and built.
Q4.




Delivery Outcome

Deliver all outcomes
relating to each project
within the agreed
timeframes.

Deliver all programmes

within agreed timeframes.

80 new Ambassadors
have successfully
completed the
programme.

Model used to enhance
educational programmes.
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Responsible Director/s

Director of Aquaculture and
Shellfisheries

Director of Development

Update

Identification of suitable areas
for habitat work completed
during native oyster surveys.

Barcode tags were successfully
trialled in the Native Oyster
Fishery in the 2019/2020
season.

A report was completed by the
SAFER Project team from within
Derry City and Strabane District
Council, Food NI and Loughs
Agency on a market research
project for the native oyster.

Foyle and Carlingford
Ambassador Programme was
developed and commenced,
however, did not complete due
to COVID-19 restrictions.

River model developed and
equipment delivered.

The model will be used as part
of the Agency’s outreach and
education programmes.




Business Objective Key Activities Delivery Targets

Terms of Reference /

Establish Terms of Reference for - . odology agreed. Q1.

a strategic review of the role of
3 . 7 the Agency in the context of the
Review the Agency's statutory = wider cross-border and North/
remit in the development of South marine tourism sector.
marine tourism. Review commenced in line with
Terms of Reference.

Review commenced by end

Q2.

Review preliminary findings.

Q4.

Project plan and finances
3 . 8 Detailed costing of works confirmed by end Q1.
Upgrade of visitor experience proposed to support innovation
at Riverwatch to include new at Riverwatch. Works commence and
innovative features. completed by end Q4.

All planning and
implementation
arrangements presented,
Agree plan, budget, venue and agreed and implemented
delegate list. within agreed timeframe.
Project plan in place. Q1.
3 'I 0 Agree educational content and
y deliver education outreach Communications relating to
programmes. the event are planned and
implemented. Q2.

Delivery of the International
Year of the Salmon Youth

Conference. Design and deliver the

programme of events for 160 students attend
conference. Conference and
compendium of conference
contents published online.
Q4.
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Delivery Outcome Responsible Director/s

A comprehensive
review of the Agency's
statutory obligations

in development of
marine tourism has been

Terms of Reference for review
completed.

completed and initial desk
top research and information
gathering undertaken.

Director of Development
Implementation of agreed
findings will be developed
into a strategy and
delivery plan within the

Corporate Plan 2020 -
2022.

Following an unsuccessful bid
Enhanced visitor for a tourism grant the project
experience at Riverwatch will be assessed during 2021

to ensure that all aspects of
innovation are considered.

and the learning impact
of the installations at

Riverwatch. Increase in
visitor numbers. Project work will recommence
in 2022.

Director of Development

This project was refocused
in March 2020 due to the
COVID-19 pandemic as it was
not possible to run the live
conference. The team worked
on a programme throughout
2020 to deliver Salmon
Ambassadors in 2021 as an
online resource using google
classroom

Salmon Conference will

have delivered meaningful Director of Aquaculture and
engagement with 6 Shellfisheries and Director of
schools in the Carlingford Development

and Foyle Areas.
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Strategic Priority 4
To transform Loughs Agency, by investing in our people through building the capability and
effectiveness of our staff; by creating a digitally-enabled organisation through upgrading
our systems; through strengthening our culture of evidence-informed decision making and
planning and through seeking new insights to create corporate resilience.

Business Objective

4.1

Develop and implement a

Office, and supported by

4.2

accommodation facilities,
IT infrastructure and assets

as appropriate.
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Corporate Communications
Plan for 2020-22, co-ordinated
through the Chief Executive's

actions across all Directorates

Enhance and maintain existing

through adequate maintenance,
rehabilitation and replacement

Key Activities

Develop an internal and external
Communications Strategy

and Plan and implement
arrangements to allow for its
effective delivery.

Develop arenewed set of
procedures and protocols
matched to various modes.

Develop a programme of
external engagement based on
promotion and participation

in activities related to the
Agency'’s core

Initiate the incremental
introduction of electric vehicles:
reducing carbon emissions,
noise levels and whole-life costs
of fleet vehicles.

Initiate and implement the first
year of a programme of HQ
accommodation refurbishment.

Include sustainability statement
in relation to each project
undertaken involving materials,
energy and waste management.

Delivery Targets

Review of existing
communications
arrangements and mapping
of additional opportunities.
Q2.

New Corporate
Communications Strategic
Plan developed. Q4.

Plan for introduction of
electric vehicles agreed and
in implementation. Q2.

Activities underway

relating to programme

of accommodation
refurbishment using existing,
unused space. Q3.



As an organisation we interact with a diverse range of stakeholders and other relevant
Government Body's, local authorities and communities. In 2020, we will continue to establish
our reputation as arespected and trusted partner that can deliver shared visions in terms

of managing investment in people and places to optimal effect and in line with the Agency’s

Strategic Direction.

Delivery Outcome

Combine strategic
communications,
audience building
and operational
promotional activities
within a connected
communications
framework.

The Agency raises its
profile as a key steward
of crucial shared
environmental resources.

It responds proactively

on an integrated basis

and on a timely basis to
strategic communications
opportunities and deploys
up to date approaches to
social media presence and
traditional media profiling.

A comprehensive
programme of

ongoing maintenance,
rehabilitation and
replacement has been
established. This has
effectively enhanced

and maintained existing
facilities, IT infrastructure
and assets and takes
account of projected
future and emerging
needs with regard to all of
these areas.
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Responsible Director/s

Director of Corporate Services

Director of Corporate Services.

An internal Review of

Communications was
undertaken which highlighted
the need for an external Review
of Communications, supported
by the Board.

Tender exercise completed in
November 2020 with complete
external review to commence in
January 2021.

The Agency purchased its first
electric vehicle in March 2020.

Initial programme of
refurbishment works at
Headquarters identified.
Extensive building works
to create additional office
accommodation partially
completed.

All works undertaken by
the Agency isdone soina
sustainable manner.



Business Objective Key Activities Delivery Targets

Staff Wellbeing Strategy
Further engagement to develop outline developedin Q2 in
a staff Wellbeing Strategy with  partnership with staff and
identified actions. representative organisations.

Review / development of
corporate templates for
4 4 health and safety risks to staff =~ Programme of general

including stress. wellbeing-related activities
planned and to begin
Implement staff stress risk implementation in Q2.
assessments, put individual
risk management plans in place All relevant templates
where necessary, and review reviewed. Staff stress risk
general patterns emerging assessments carried out as
from a baseline analysis of risks appropriate and individual
identified. plans in place where
necessary. Q4.

Develop and implement a
Wellbeing Action Plan and
Wellbeing Strategy.
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Delivery Outcome Responsible Director/s Update

A Wellbeing Action Plan and
Strategy was developed and
implemented, with events

Staff are supported taking place in January,

to maintain their own February and March 2020.

health and wellbeing

and support that of their The Agency provided constant

colleagues, including staff Director of Corporate Services tips and videos to staff in

who are engaged in higher relation to stress, wellbeing and

risk / lone working. All Directors working from home / remotely
throughout 2020.

Stress risk assessments Line Managers throughout the

are carried out with Agency With the majority of staff

staff as appropriate, working remotely, undertaking

as a participative one staff risk assessment on all

to one exercise with a staff was not possible, however

designated person. one individual plan was
implemented, incorporating
reasonable adjustments and a
phased return to work.
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GNIOMHAIREACHT NA LOCHANNA
Tuarascail Bhliantuil agus Cuntais
don tréimhse dar crioch 31 Nollaig 2020

Arna chur faoi bhraid Thiondl Thuaisceart Eireann agus dha Theach an Oireachtais dereir
an Oird um Chombhoibriu Thuaidh/Theas (Comhlachtai Forfheidhmithe) (Tuaisceart Eire-
ann), 1999, Sceideal 1, larscribhinn 2, Cuid 7, Ailt 1.3 agus 2.6
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FORLEARGAS
AN PHRIOMH-
OIFIGIGH
FHEIDHM-
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Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna
Factrie fur Loughs



Ag tus 2020, ni thiocfadh le haon duine a réamhinsint cad ¢ a
thitfeadh amach sna mionna ina dhiaidh sin. Bhi éifeacht ag paindéim
uafasach dhomhanda ar an uile ghné den saol i rith na bliana. De

réir shrianta rialtais agus tri obair chrua agus tiomantas fhoireann
Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna, lean muid ar aghaidh ag cur seirbhis
phoibli uathuil, luachmhar ar fail. Ba € ar bpriomhthosaiocht
timpeallacht shabhailte, shlaintiuil a sholathar d'fhostaithe, do
phairtithe leasmhara agus don phobal, agus ar ngné a dhéanamh go
leanunach san am céanna. Is & ar bpriomhthosaiocht go faill é.

Bain 2020 a cuireadh tus le Treoir Straitéiseach don Ré Nua 2020 -
2030, a comhcheapadh i gcombhairle le fostaithe agus leis an Bhord.
Agus an Straitéis a cur i bhfeidhm ag an Ghniomhaireacht, direoimid
ar ar gcroichuspaoir, mar ata an cur chuige idir-rialtasach ata riachtanach lenar bhfeidhmeanna
agus dualgais reachtula a chomhlionadh a mhaoirsiu. Ta an Straitéis dinimiciuil, uaillmhianach
agus réaduil. Ta tosaiochtai, spriocanna agus cuspairi straitéiseacha nua forbartha a bheidh mar
bhunus le forbairt na bPleananna Corparaideacha agus Gné amach anseo.

Leagtar amach sa phlean ar bhfis ur, ar luachanna athbhreithnithe agus na priomhspriocanna
forbartha, priomhchuspairi agus priomhthorthai straitéiseacha. Aithnitear sa phlean tionchar an
athraithe aeraide agus an tabhacht ata le comhoibril le saothar na Gniomhaireachta a fhorbairt,
le timpeallachtai aitiula nios fearr a chruthu a fheabhsoidh saol an phobail, agus le tacu le fas glas
inbhuanaithe sa gheilleagar aitiuil.

Leanadh leis an fhorbairt ar ar gclar maidir le hathrd ¢ bhonn digiteach agus teicneolaioch nuair
a uasghradaiodh ar mbonneagar eolaiochta monatodireachta iascach. Ta teicnici ceannrddaiocha
nua monatdireachta forbartha agus tabharfar isteach iad in 2021.

Mar thoradh ar dtiomantas maidir le hastuithe carbdin a laghdu, cheannaigh muid feithicil
leictreach den chéad uair a bheidh in Usaid lenar gclair inrochtaineachta agus oideachais a
sholathar.

Bhi luchair mhor orm nuair a bhi scéalta faoin Ghniomhaireacht ar dha chlar rathula ar na meain
craolta aititla - 'Lough Foyle' le Joe Mahon agus ‘Barra on the Foyle' le Barra Best. Tharraing an
da chlar aird ar an obair thabhachtach chaomhndireachta ata ar siul ag an Ghniomhaireacht, le
haird ar leith ar an oidhreacht iontach, shaibhir nadurtha agus thogtha atai ndobharcheantar an
Fheabhail.

Leanadh le cur chuige na comhoibre in 2020 agus cuireadh i gcrich réimse tionscadal,
lena n-airitear taighde eolaiochta ar iascaigh agus tionscnaimh faoin athru ar an aeraid le
comhphairtithe aitiula, naisiunta agus idirnaisiunta.

Ta mé thar a bheith broduil as an teacht aniar a léirigh ar bhfoireann sa tréimhse ridheacair seo. Is
mian liom iad a mholadh as a dtiomantas agus duthracht lena chinntiu go bhféadfaimis leanuachas
gno a chinntit agus ar nduaglais reachtula mar sheirbhis phoibli a chomhlionadh. Is mian liom fosta
aitheantas a thabhairt don Bhord agus dar Ranna Coimirciochta as a dtacaiocht leanunach.

S Me Mc\ef\  Sharon McMahon
Oifigeach Ainmnithe
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Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna
Factrie fur Loughs
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Is gniomhaireacht de chuid Choimisiun an
Fheabhail, Chairlinn agus Shoilse na hEireann
(CFCSE) i Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna a
bunaiodh mar Chomhlacht Forfheidhmithe
Thuaidh Theas faoi Chomhaontu Aoine an
Chéasta/Bhéal Feirste agus a corpraiodh
faoin Ord um Chombhoibriu Thuaidh Theas
(Comhlachtal Forfheidhmithe) (Tuaisceart
Eireann), 1999 agus faoi na hAchtannaum
Chomhaont idir an Bhreatain agus Eirinn, 1999
agus 2002.

Ta Bord Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna
freagrach don Chomh-Aireacht Thuaidh Theas
(CATT) agus da Rannarialtais Coimirice - an
Roinn Talmhaiochta, Comhshaoil agus Gnoéthai
Tuaithe (RTCGT) sa Tuaisceart, agus an Roinn
Combhshaoil, Aeraide agus Cumarsaide (RCAC)
sa Deisceart. Bionn an Ghniomhaireacht &
maoiniu ar bhonn 50/50 ag RTCGT i dTuaisceart
Eireann agus ag RCAC in Eirinn.

Is i nDoire ata an Cheanncheathru againn; ta
Oifig Réigiunach i gCairlinn, Contae Lu, agus ta
staisiun oibriochtuil ar an Omaigh.

Is i fis na Gniomhaireachta:

“Tri chomhphairtiocht agus eolaiocht, ar
n-iascaigh agus acmhainni naddurtha a chosaint
agus a fhorbairt.”

Is € ar misean:

“Na hiascaigh agus acmhainni i gceantair an
Fheabhail agus Chairlinn a bhainistiu, a chur
chun cinn agus a fhorbairt.”

Ta an Ghniomhaireacht freagrach as
dobharcheantar d'achar 4,070km? i gceantar
an Fheabhail agus as dobharcheantar d'achar
480km?2i gCairlinn; ta si freagrach fosta as an da
loch mara agus as ceantar 12 mhile amach san
fharraige 6 Loch Feabhail, a shineann chomh
fada le Dun Bé i dTuaisceart Eireann agus Cionn
Mhaélanna i nDun na nGall. T4 Gniomhaireacht

na Lochanna ag bainistiu iascaigh trasteorann
sna huisci seo 6 bunaiodh an t-eagras a thainig
roimhe in 1952, Coimisiun lascaigh an Fheabhail,
agus é mar dhualgas air maoirsiu a dhéanamh ar
bhainistiu agus cosaint bradain Atlantaigh agus
iascaigh intire dhobharcheantar an Fheabhail.

Is aidhm le Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna
tairbhi inbhuanaithe soisialta, eacnamaiochta
agus comhshaoil a sholathar tri
chaomhnodireacht, bainistiocht, cur chun

cinn agus forbairt éifeachtach i dtaca leis na
hiascaigh agus na hacmhainni mara i gCeantair
an Fheabhail agus Chairlinn.

Is iad feidhmeanna reachtula na
Gniomhaireachta:

* Loch Feabhail agus Loch Cairlinn a chur
chun cinn agus a fhorbairt ar mhaithe le
cuspoiri trachtala agus aineasa i gcursai
muiri, iascach agus dobharshaothraithe.

« ascaigh intire Cheantair an Fheabhail
agus Chairlinn a bhainistiu, a chaomhnu, a
chosaint, a fheabhsu agus a fhorbairt.

« Dobharshaothru agus Sliogiascaigh a
fhorbairt agus a cheadunu.

e Turasoireacht Mhuiri a fhorbairt.

Cuireann na Tosaiochtai
Straitéiseacha ardleibhéil seo a leanas,
ata aitheanta in Treoir Straitéiseach
don Ré Nua 2020-30 Gniomhaireacht
na Lochanna ar a chumas a dhualgas
reachtuil a chomhlionadh:

. Ar nDualgas: Caighdedin a Ard
. Nascanna a Dhéanamh

. An tAistriu Coir

. Scoth Eagraiochtuil

Is iad ar spriocanna:

« Ar ndualgas reachtuil maidir le
caomhnoireacht agus cosaint a
chomhlionadh ar dhoigh inbhuanaithe.

« Nascanna a dheanamh tri theagmhail agus
cumarsaid éifeachtach.

« AntAistriu Coir a thuiscint agus a chur
chun cinn ar dhoigh straitéiseach.

« Meas aléiriu ar ar bhfoireann, inspioraid
a thabhairt doibh, agus feidhmiocht a
fheabhsu tri nualaiocht.
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Ta Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna tiomanta
timpeallacht oibre dhearfach, ionchuimsitheach
a chruthu dar bhfostaithe. Is aidhm linn a
chinntiu go léiritear go cothrom go bhfuil
luach le gach fostai agus meas orthu, agus go
bhfuil ar n-eagras ionadaioch ar gach cineal
duine sa tsochai. An sainmhiniu ata againn ar
éagsulacht na an luach ata le gach duine mar
dhaoine aonair iontu féin a thuiscint - tuigimid
an luach ata le fostaithe, iarratasoiri poist, mic
léinn, comhlaigh agus cuairteoiri mar dhaoine
iontu féin. Léiritear an méid sin inar luachanna
agus iompraiochtai agus inar nésanna
ceannaireachta:

+ Caithimid go maith agus le comhbha le gach
duine.

+ Tamacantacht agusionracas mar
bhunchloch na ceannaireachta againn.

Tiomantas i dtaca le Comhionannas,

Eagsulacht agus lonchuimsiu

Creidimid go dtéann sé chun sochair do chach
ach an éagsulacht smaointe agus cuir chuige

i leith na hoibre ag daoine 6 chulrai difriula, a
bhfuil eispéiris agus féiniulachtai eagsula acu,
a ghlacadh chugainn féin agus an luach ata leo
a thuiscint. Cuidionn sé seo lenar bhfostaithe
fas agus foghlaim agus cuireann sé ar a gcumas
doibh a lan-acmhainneacht a bhaint amach;
tagann feabhas ar chinnteoireacht; treisitear
teagmhail agus nualaiocht, agus cuireann

sé ar ar gcumas duinn freastal nios fearr ar
riachtanais ar gcustaiméiri éagsula.

Chuige sin, ta na coimitminti seo a

leanas déanta againn:

« Timpeallacht a chruthu ina n-aithnitear agus
ina bhfuil luach le difriochtai indibhidiula
agus lena bhfuil le cur ag gach ball foirne
lenar n-obair.

« Gan cur suas le hiompraiochtai
doghlactha, ciapadh, leithcheal, bulaiocht
(cibearbhulaiocht san aireamh) naiospairt in

aon réimse fostaiochta nai solathar seirbhisi
dar gcustaimeiri.

« Treoir agus oilivint a thabhairt don Bhord,
d'fhostaithe agus do chonraitheoiri
maidir le héagsulacht, ionchuimsiu agus
comhionannas deiseanna.

« Aon duine a mhothaionn gur imriodh
leithcheal orthu no a chonaic a leitheid
ag titim amach a spreagadh leis an cheist
a ardu lena mBainisteoir Line no lena
n-ionadai Ceardchumainn.

« Gach duine a chur ar an eolas faoina
bhfreagracht phearsanta maidir le
comhdheiseanna a chur i bhfeidhm agus
a chur chun cinn agusiad ag plé le daocine
0 lagola, agus fostaithe a spreagadh le
caitheamh le gach duine le dinit agus le
meas.

« Athbhreithniu a dhéanamh go rialta ar ar
gcleachtais, polasaithe agus gnathaimh
fostaiochta lena chinntiu go mbimid ag
déanamh de réir mar a éilitear leis an raiteas
seo.

« Monatoireacht a dhéanamh ar
eifeachtulacht ar dtiomantas don
eagsulacht agus don ionchuimsiu agus do
na polasaithe agus gnathaimh a bhaineann
leo, agus eolas a thabhairt don chomhlacht
sainchombhairleoireachta uair sa bhliain ar a
laghad.

Eilimid go n-aithnionn gach ball foirne na
coimitminti seo agus go ngniomhaionn siad
daréeir. Lena chois sin, déanfaimid de réir na
reachtaiochta abhartha uile agus de réir an
dea-chleachtais.

Ni dhéanfar leithcheal san éagdir ar aon duine
aonair. Airitear leis sin, i measc nithe eile,
leithcheal bunaithe ar aois, michumas, athru
inscne, stadas posta nd comhphairtiochta
sibhialta, toircheas n6 saoire mhaithreachais,
cine, reiligiun no6 creideamh, gnéas no
gneaschlaonadh.
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Ag Plé le Leithcheal

Nil iompraiocht dhoghlactha, ciapadh, leithcheal, bulaiocht
(cibearbhulaiocht san direamh) agus iospairt i leith aon

duine ag teacht lenar spriocanna timpeallacht thacuil oibre

a chothu, agus ni chuirfear suas lena leithéid. Fiosrofar
liomhainti maidir le hiompar den chineal seo agus déanfar
bearta smachta de réir an Pholasai agus Gnathamh um Dhinit
san Obair.

Freagracht

« TaanBord go hiomlan freagrach as cinnte a dhéanamh
go n-oibrionn muid taobh istigh de chreatlach ina bhfuil
comhionannas deiseanna.

« TaFoireann na hArdbhainistiochta go hiomlan freagrach
as bainistiocht, a roinntear i measc na mbainisteoiri ar fad
san eagraiocht.

« Tadualgas ar gach fostai tacu le agus cloi le prionsabail
ar ngealltanais do chomhionannas, d'éagsulacht agus
d'ionchuimsiu agus leis na polasaithe agus na nésanna
imeachta a bhaineann leo.

« Is é Stiurthdir Seirbhisi Corparaideacha ata freagrach as
an raiteas seo a athbhreithniu.

Déantar an raiteas seo a athbhreithniu go rialta agus, mas
ga, déantar é a athscriobh i bhfianaise athruithe reachtula
no eagraiochtula. Ta an raiteas ar fail don phobal tri shuiomh
gréasain Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna agus ar bhealai eile.
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Ta 12 Bhall ar Bhord Choimisiun an Fheabhail,
Chairlinn agus Shoilse na hEireann agusis i an
Chomh-Aireacht Thuaidh/Theas a cheapann
iad. Comhlionann an Bord feidhmeanna an
Chomhlachta maidir le Ceantair an Fheabhail
agus Chairlinn tri Ghniomhaireacht na
Lochanna. Ta triur ban agus ochtar fear ar an
Bhord.

In 2020 bhi dha fholuntas ar an Bhord. Lion
Laurence Abuckle foluntas an Chathaoirligh i mi
na Nollag 2020 . Ta foluntas amhain go foill ann.
Athcheapadh Terry McWilliams ar an Bhord i mi
na Nollag 2020 leis an triu téarma aige a chur
isteach.

Rialu

Ta roélanna agus freagrachtai Bhord
Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna leagtha amach
i Meabhran Airgeadais na Gniomhaireachta. |
measc na gceisteanna a bpléann an Bord go
sonrach leo ta:

« Dearbhu Coimhlint Leasa;

« Straitéis an Bhoird a shocru, le comhaontu 6
CATT;

« Tuarascalacha 6 Choisti;

« Tuarascalacha Airgeadais / Cuntais
Bhainistiochta;

« Tuarascalacha Feidhmiochta, agus;

+ Ceisteanna Forchoimeadta.

De réir na ndualgas ata leagtha amach sa
Chod lompair, ta freagracht chorparaideach
ar an Bhord as a chinntit go mbionn an
Ghniomhaireacht ag comhlionadh na
n-aidhmeanna agus cuspoiri arna socru ag

na Ranna Coimirciochta, RTCGT agus RCAC,
arna bhfaomhadh ag CATT, agus as Usaid
eifeachtach, tiosach, éifeachtuil as acmhainni
foirne agus eile ag an Ghniomhaireacht a chur
chun cinn.

An Bord
Déanann Bord Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna

an meéid seo a leanas:

* socraionn sé treoir straitéiseach fhoriomlan
na Gniomhaireachta de réir an chreat
polasai agus acmhainni arna shocru ag
CATT, ag na hAiri cui agus ag na Ranna
Coimirciochta;

« tugann sé dushlan na Foirne Bainistiochta
Sinsearai ar dhoigh chuidiuil maidir
le pleanail, socru spriocanna agus
feidhmiocht;

+ cinntionn sé go gcoinnitear na Ranna
Coimirciochta ar an eolas faoi aon athruithe
ar docha go mbeidh tionchar acu ar threoir
straitéiseach na Gniomhaireachta no ar
inchomhliontacht spriocanna an eagrais,
agus socraionn siad na céimeannais ga a
ghlacadh le plé lena leithéid d'athruithe;

+ cinntionn sé go ndéantar de reir na
riachtanas reachtuil agus riarachain
a bhaineann le husaid cisti poibli; go
n-oibrionn an Ghniomhaireacht taobh istigh
de theorainneacha a dualgais reachtula
agus de reir aon udaras tarmligthe arna
chomhaontu leis na Ranna Coimirciochta,
agus de reir aon choinniollacha eile a
bhaineann le husaid cisti poibli; agus,
cinntionn sé nuair a bhionn cinnti a
ndéanamh go nglacann an Bhord san
aireamh an treoir abhartha uile arna heisiuint
ag CATT, na Ranna Airgeadais agus na
Ranna Coimirciochta;

+ cinntionn sé go bhfaigheann sé
faisnéis airgeadais faoi bhainistiu na
Gniomhaireachta agus go scrudaionn sé
i go rialta; go gcuirtear ar an eolas e go
trathuil maidir le haon cheisteanna buairimh
i dtaca le gniomhartha na Gniomhaireachta;
agus go dtugann sé dearbhu dearfach do
na Ranna Coimirciochta go bhfuiltear ag
déanamh na ngniomhartha cui maidir le
ceisteanna buairimh;

* bionn ardchaighdean rialu corparaideachi
bhfeidhm i gconai aige, lena n-airitear usaid
a bhaint as an Choiste Iniuchoireachta agus
Riosca le cuidiu leis an Bhord dul i ngleic le
priomhrioscai airgeadais agus eile ata roimh
an Ghniomhaireacht.

Ceapadh Laurence Arbuckle mar Chathaoirleach ar an 16 Nollaig 2020 agus d'fhreastail sé ar an chéad Chruinniu Boird aige ar an 23 Feabhra 2021.
Athcheapadh Terry McWilliams le haghaidh an dara téarma, 5 bliana, ar an 16 Nollaig 2020.
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Bhi 6 Chruinniu Boird ann in 2020. Seo a leanas eolas ar na comhaltai agus a dtinreamh ag
cruinnithe in 2020:

Combhalta Boird Post Tinreamh
Andrew Duncan il_rle::cf: athao- 6
Phil Mahon Combhalta 6
Michael McCormick Combhalta 4
Terry McWilliams Combhalta 5
Allan Ewart Comhalta 6
Alastair Patterson Comhalta 4
lan McCrea Comhalta 1
Fiona Walsh Comhalta 5
Heather Mackey Comhalta 6
Patrick Gibbons Combhalta 6

Cruinnithe Boird

19 21 Feabhra 2020

120 5 Bealtaine 2020

121 30 Meitheamh 2020

122 4 Mean Fémhair 2020

123 30 Deireadh Fomhair 2020
124 18 Nollaig 2020

Ta miontuairisci na gcruinnithe seo ar fail ar shuiomh gréasain na Gniomhaireachta:
www.loughs-agency.org
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Bhunaigh Bord CFCSE Coiste um
Iniuchoireacht agus Riosca le tacaiocht

a thabhairt déibh ina bhfreagrachtai faoi
riosca, faoirialu agus faoi rialachas agus faoi
dheimhniu a bhaineann leo.

Cuireann an Coiste um Iniuchoireacht
agus Riosca comhairle ar an Oifigeach
Cuntasaiochta agus ar an Bhord faoi:

* napraisis straitéiseacha maidir le riosca, le
rialu agus le rialachas agus le Raiteas faoin
Rialu Inmheanach;

« napolasaithe cuntasaiochta agus faoi
thuarascail Bhliantuil agus Cuntais na
Gniomhaireachta;

« an ghniomhaiocht ata beartaithe agus
torthai an Iniuchta Inmheanaigh agus

Sheachtraigh;

« chumas fhreagairt na bainistiochta
ar shaincheisteanna ata aitheantai
dtuarascalacha na n-iniuchtai Inmheanacha
agus Seachtracha;

« dheimhnithe a bhaineann le bainistiocht
riosca agus le ceanglais rialachais
chorparaidigh na Gniomhaireachta;

* pholasaithe frith-chalaoise, faoi
phraisis sceithireachta agus faoi shocru
d'fhiosruchain speisialta;

« thuarascalacha abhartha a fhail o6n Ard-
Reachtaire Cuntas agus Ciste, agus 6
eagraiochtai eile;

« mhachnamh a dhéanamh ar thorthai
athbhreithnithe inmheanaigh no
sheachtraigh ar bith a bhfuil tionchar nach
beag acu ar an Ghniomhaireacht.

Bhi 4 Chruinniu den Choiste um Iniuchoireacht
agus Rioscaannin 2020. Seo aleanas na
sonrai maidir le comhaltas ar an Choiste um
Iniuchoireacht agus Riosca agus le tinreamh ag
cruinnithe in 2020:

Combhalta Boird Post Tinreamh
Patrick Gibbons Cathaoirleach 4

Fiona Walsh Comhalta

Allan Ewart Comhalta 3
Alastair Patterson Comhalta 4

Andrew Walker

Comhalta Comhthofa 4

Cruinnithe den Choiste um Iniuchoireacht agus Riosca

25th Marta 2020

22nd Meitheamh 2020
23rd Mean Fomhair 2020
3rd Nollaig 2020
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AN CHOMHAIRLE
AIREACHTA

THUAIDH/THEAS

Bhi Cruinniu Earnala Dobharshaothraithe agus
Muiri amhain den Chomh-Aireacht Thuaidh/
Theas annin 2020. Is in Oifigi Chomhrunaiocht
CATT in Ard Mhacha a bhi an triochadu cruinniu
Dobharshaothraithe agus Muiri agus bhi
cruinniu fischomhdhala ann ar an 21 Deireadh
Fomhair 2020. Bhi an tAire Comhshaoil,
Aeraide agus Cumarsaide, Eamon Ryan, TD, an
tAire Talmhaiochta, Comhshaoil agus Gnéthai
Tuaithe, Edwin Poots, CTR, agus an tAire
Bonneagair, Nichola Mallon CTR, i lathair. Ba é an
tAire Ryan a bhi sa Chathaoir.

Léirigh na hAiri a sastacht le tuarascail
Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna ar a cuid

gniomhaiochtai, lena n-airitear na hiarrachtai
leanunacha caomhnoireachta agus cosanta,
agus thug siad suntas do na nithe seo aleanas
go hairithe: freagairt Ghniomhaireacht na
Lochanna ar COVID-19; Treoir Straitéiseach
Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna don Ré Nua
2020-2030; an comhoibriu le roinnt tionscadail
chaomhnoireachta, slatiascaireachta agus
forbairt turasoireachta muiri a chur i gcrich,
agus rath Chlar Ambasadairi an Fheabhail
agus Chairlinn. Léirigh an Chomhairle a
shastacht fosta le hinfheistiocht leanunach
Ghniomhaireacht na Lochannaina chlar
eolaiochta monatoireachtaiascach.

Ta miontuairisci cruinnithe CATT le fail
ar shuiomh gréasain CATT: https:/www.
northsouthministerialcouncil.org
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Tarol larnach ag an Stiurthoireacht Seirbhisi
Corparaideacha i mbaint amach spriocanna
straitéiseacha na Gniomhaireachta. D'éirigh leis
an Ghniomhaireacht a dualgais a chomhlionadh
ar bhonn leanunach in 2020. An fhianaise air sin
na cruinnithe rialta den Bhord agus den Choiste
Iniuchodireachta agus Riosca; comhlionadh
proisis bainistiu riosca, agus coras éifeachtach
riald inmheanach a chur i bhfeidhm.

Rinne an Ghniomhaireacht monatoireacht ar a
caiteachas le hais buiséid fhaofa agus thug si
tuairisci rialta da Ranna Coimirciochta. Leanadh

le cruinnithe rialta Rialaithe agus Cuntasachta
leis na Ranna Coimirciochta agus le teagmhail
laethuil le linn 2020 lena chinntiu go raibh an
Cod Cleachtais um Rialu Comhlachtai Stait
agus an Comhaontu Maoirsithe (RCAC) agus
an Lamhleabhar Coimirciochta (RTCGT) a
gcombhlionadh.

IniGchéireacht Inmheanach

Is cuid thabhachtach de Rialu Corparaideach
foriomlan na Gniomhaireachta i Inidchoireacht
Inmheédnach. Leis an Iniuchodireacht
Inmheanach, déantar corais, na gnathaimh a
bhaineann leo agus rialuithe a thastail agus
déantar tuairisci faoina éifeachtai ata siad. Fuair
an Ghniomhaireacht ratail ‘sasuil’ in 2020.
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Is struchtur ceithre Stiurthoireacht ata i bhfeidhm sa Ghniomhaireacht (Forbairt, Dobharshaothru
agus Sliogiascaigh, Caomhnadireacht agus Cosaint, agus Seirbhisi Corparaideacha). Ta
croifhoireann bhuan fhaofa de 53 duine ann faoi lathair.

Cairt Eagraiochtuil na Bainistiochta Sinsearai
ambhail 31 Nollaig 2020

Priomh-fheidh-
meannach

Stidrthoir Stiurthoir Stiurthoir
Seir}ohisi Caomhndireachta Dobhars.hac.)thraithe
Corparaideacha agus Cosanta agus Sliogiascach
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FORBAIRT FOIRNE

Aithnionn an Ghniomhaireacht an tabhacht até le forbairt foirne agus le tionscnaimh forbartha
pearsanta leanunai do gach ball foirne. Le linn na bliana, chuaigh an Ghniomhaireacht i ngleic le
riachtanais oiliuna agus forbartha na foirne, ag diriu ar choinneail eolais agus scileanna agus ar
spreagadh na foirne, curthain oiritint le go dtiocfadh leis an Ghniomhaireacht a cuspdiri a bhaint
amach agus le go bhféadfadh baill foirne aonair a riachtanais féin a chomhlionadh.

Laimhseail Gearan
Ta gnathamh ag an Ghniomhaireacht le gearain a laimhseail. Ta teacht air ar https:/www.loughs-
agency.org/customer-service Fuarthas gearan amhain in 2020, agus réitiodh go sasuiil é. ‘
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Bhi Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna tiomanta

i gconaiirith na paindéime COVID-19
timpeallacht shabhailte, shlaintiuil a chur ar fail
d'fhostaithe, do phairtithe leasmhara agus don
phobal agus a chinntiu san am céanna go raibh
a cuid gné ag dul ar aghaidh go leanunach.

Ni raibh cead isteach ag an phobal inar n-oifigi
nain lonad Cuartaiochta Riverwatch, agus
d'aistrigh baill foirne oifige on oifig go dti an
baile de réir chomhairle an rialtais i mi Mharta
2020. D'éirigh leis na foirne uile riarachain,
teicniula agus gairmiula obair go leanunach, go
rathuil agus go sabhailte 6n bhaile.

Chuir an Fhoireann Bainistiochta Sinsearai
plean freargartha ar COVID-19 i bhfeidhm, a
raibh réimse cleachtais shlana oibre mar chuid
de, agus rinne siad athbhreithniu agus uasdatu
air.

Tionscnaiodh treoirlinte agus pleananna
cumarsaide le hobair sa bhaile agus nascacht
idir na baill foirne a éascu. Bhi ardan nuainlin
na Gniomhaireachta, RIPPLE, éifeachtach mar
mhodh cumarsaide idir na foirne éagsula.
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Aistriodh na cruinnithe uile inmheanacha agus
seachtracha go hardan fioruil agus leanadh lena
n-eagru de réir threoirlinte an rialtais.

D'fhill an fhoireann Cosanta lascach ar a
ndualgais iomlana oibriochtula ar an 18
Bealtaine 2020 i ndiaidh na chéad treimhse
de shrianta dianghlasala i mi an Mharta 2020.
Mhol baill foirne eolaiochta agus tionscnamh
suirbhéanna eolaiochta a dhéanamh le

go bhféadfai ar ndualgais reachtula a
chomhlionadh. Mar chuid den fhilleadh ar an
obair, tugadh isteach gnathaimh abhartha,
ionduchtu agus dearbhu slainte. Rinneadh
athbhreithniu ar ghnathaimh shabhailte
oibriochtula d'fhonn a bheith ag teacht leis an
chomhairle slainte phoibili.

Ta suil againn gur féidir leis an Ghniomhaireacht
filleadh ar thimpeallacht na hoifige in 2021
nuair a bheidh srianta an rialtais scaoilte.

Mar gheall ar a rathula ata obair 6n bhaile,
breithneoidh Foireann Bhainistiochta Sinsearai
na Gniomhaireachta samhail hibrideach oibre

a eéascaionn meascan den obair sa bhaile

agus san oifig, agus déanfar monatoireacht
leanunach ar chomhairle slainte phoibli agus
deanfar daréir.
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Factrie fur Loughs



Forfheidhmiu
In ainneoin srianta COVID-19, leanadh le gniomhaiochtai midhleathacha iascaireachtain 2020; bhi
liontdireacht mhidhleathach bradan ann chomh maith le cionta éagsula slatiascaireachta.

T4 an Ghniomhaireacht buioch as an tacaiocht 6 Sheirbhis Phoilineachta Thuaisceart Eireann agus
6n Gharda Siochana.

Urghabhail
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Baid agus Gluaisteain 8 3 1 2 7
Lionta 49 78 41 31 37
Eile 20 17 7 8 7
Slait lascaireachta 57 46 42 48 55
Salmanaid 27 27 17 14 75
Eisc Eile 26 4 27 215 15
Malai Oisri 4 4 8 1 2

Eachtrai Truaillithe

Le linn 2020 phléigh Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna le méadu ar eachtrai a bhain le truailliu uisce
agus ta tus curtha le lion suntasach casannaionchuisimh a d'éirigh as na gniomhartha forf-
heidhmithe seo.

D'fhiosraigh an Ghniomhaireacht 281 eachtrain 2020. T4 nadur na bhfiosruithe sin 6 2017 go 2020
sonraithe sa ghreille thios:

2017 2018 2019 2020

Neamb. Thaimhaiochta 14 13 T 24
Talmhaiocht 87 57 82 107
Ceimiceach 4 4 8 4
Truailliu Ar Bith Aimsithe 79 64 60 33
Ola 4 14 17 18
Eile 41 24 54 68
Searachas 23 12 17 26
Ainmhithe Tite 4 3 2 1
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An Mhin Bhog

Ar an 13 Samhain 2020, sciorr achar tuairim

is 4.5 heictear de phortach moénain aice le
suiomh forbartha feirme gaoithe i gContae
Dhun na nGall isteach i sruthan friothalach agus
as sin isteach sa Mhorn Bheag. Ba dhoiligh
toilleadh an abhair a mheas, ach is docha go
raibh na céadta tonnai gceist.

Ta an eachtra go faill & fiosru ag
Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna, Gniomhaireacht
Chomhshaoil Thuaisceart Eireann, an tSeirbhis
Pairceanna Naisiunta agus Fiadhulra, an
Ghniomhaireacht um Chaomhnu Comhshaoil,
Comhairle Chontae Dhun na nGall agus
Combhairle Chathair Dhoire agus Cheantar an
tSratha Bain.

Thug an tAire Edwin Poots CTR 6 RTCGT agus
an tAire Talmhaiochta, Bia agus Mara, Charlie
McConalouge TD, cuairt ar an Mhin Bhogi
gContae Dhun na nGall ar an 20 Samhain 2020.
Thug an tAire Poots cuairt ar Fheirm Eisc an
Chorrdhoire chomh maith, a raibh tionchar
tromchuiseach ag an eachtra thruaillithe uirthi.

Ta an Mhorn Bheag agus Abhainn na Deirge mar
chuid d'abhainnchoras mor a théann isteach
san Fheabhal agus as sin go Loch Feabhail. Ta
an t-abhainnchdras seo tabhachtach do na
speicis ataistigh ann agus a dtacaionn sé leo,
go hairithe bradain Atlantaigh agus speicis de
loimpri agus de mhadaidh uisce; ta tabhacht
leis chomh maith mar gheall ar an réimse
abhainnghnathdg agus eile, gnathdga coille
mar shampla, a bhaineann leis.

Ta an t-abhainnchéras cosanta mar Limistéar
Speisialta Spéise Eolaiochta agus ta sé
aitheanta chomh maith mar Limistéar faoi
Chaomhnu Speisialta. Ni féidir faoi lathair a

raé go foill cad é meéid an tionchair a bhi ag an
sciorradh talun ar stddas caomhnoireachta an
abhainnchorais; mar sin féin, ta an fhoireann ag
obair go leanunach le comhfhreagairt a bhunu
d'fhonn luathghniomhartha athchaoirithe a chur
i gcrich.

Ta dha Ghrupa Oibre Idir-Ghniomhaireachta
bunaithe: ceann a bhaineann le forfheidhmiu
agus ceann eile a bhaineann le hathchdiriu. Ta
na grupai ag teacht le chéile uair sa tseachtain
faoi lathair leis an eachtra a choinneail faoi
athbhreithniu de réir mar ata cursai ag
forbairt. T4 Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna mar
Chathaoirleach ar na grupai seo agus is iad seo

aleanas na baill eile:

« Combhairle Chontae Dhun na nGall
(Forfheidhmiu Pleanala, an Rannog
Chomhshaoil agus Innealtoiri).

* An Ghniomhaireacht um Chaomhnu
Combhshaoil (Bitheolaithe agus Baill Foirne
Treorach Dliteanais).

« AntSeirbhis Pairceanna Naisiunta agus
Fiadhulra.

+ Gniomhaireacht Chomhshaoil Thuaisceart
Eireann (Treoir Dliteanas Comhshaoil,
Cailiocht Uisce agus Ainmniu Nadurtha).

« Comhairle Chathair Dhoire agus Cheantar
an tSratha Bain.

* Uisce Thuaisceart Eireann (Baill Foirne
Coireéla Uisce).

Clar Eolaiochta Monatoireachta

lascach

Ta bainistiocht Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna
ar iascaigh bradan ceaptha sa doigh go mbionn
sé ag teacht le bunphrionsabail an Eagrais

um Chaomhnu Bradain Atlantaigh Thuaidh. Is

€ is cuspoir leis na prionsabail agus cuspairi
seo éagsulacht agus lionmhaireacht na stoc
bradan a chur chun cinn agus na stoic uile a
choinneail os cionn na srianta caomhnoireachta
a bhaineann leo.

Ta laghdu tagtha ar lion na mbradan ar fud an
dombhain. Sna 1980idi, d'fhilleadh tuairim is
30 brainlin ar an chosta as gach 100 brainlin a
d'fhag na haibhneacha. Sa la ata inniu ann ni
thagann ach tuairimis 5 bhrainlin ar ais, rud a
thugann le fios gur 95% an rata mortlaiochta
san fharraige (An Bhuais, Innéacs Aibhneacha
ICES).

Le tacaiocht 0 na Ranna Coimirciochta,
tainfheistiocht shuntasach déanta ag an
Ghniomhaireacht in oibriochtai comhairimh
eisc agus i dtomhsairi abhann teilimeadrachta.
Is i an Ghniomhaireacht an t-aon eagras

ar domhan a bhfuil coras bainistiochta
fior-ama i bhfeidhm aige maidir le bradain
Atlantaigh, le spriocanna inséasuir d'fhonn
saothru a riald bunaithe ar lion na n-iasc ag
trasnu na bpriomhlaithreacha comhairimh.

Ta seacht dtomhsaire ag oibriu faoi lathair in
abhainnchoras an Fheabhail agus Chairlinn agus
is tomhsairi reachtulaiad ceithre cinn acu.

Mar fhorbhreathnu ar 2020, diorthaiodh na
sonrai aleanas 6 na tomhsairi iasc luaite i
reachtaiocht:

GNIOMHAIREACHT NA LOCHANNA TUARASCAIL BHLIANTUIL 2020

96



* Nior baineadh amach an teorainn chaomhnoireachta agus an sprioc

chaomhnoireachta in abhainn na Finne. bhainistiochta san Fhochaine.

* Bunaithe ar na sonrai 6n obair arinne * Baineadh amach an teorainn
Ollscoil Ghlaschu ar an chora i Muileann chaomhnoireachta agus an sprioc
an tSiain, baineadh amach an teorainn bhainistiochta in Abhainn na Ro.

chaomhnoireachta sa Mhorn agus bhi
feabhas ann le hais chomhaireamh 2019.
* Baineadh amach an teorainn

Teorainn % Sprioc Combhaireamh

% Comhlionta 2020

Chaomhnéireachta Comhlionta Bhainistiochta

An Fhinn 4,328 53 5,410 43 2,302
An Mhorn 6,287 62 7,859 49 3,915

AbhainnnaRo 1,466 396 1,81 495 3,696
An Fhochaine 640 984 800 788 6,300

Dealraionn sé gur thainig feabhas ar fhilleadh agus teitheadh na mbradan in 2020 le hais na
mblianta roimhe sin i bhformhoér na n-aibhneacha; mar sin féin, ta an Fhinn ina habhar moér imni.
Siocair nar baineadh amach an teorainn chaomhnoireachta san Fhinn in 2019, rinneadh Dearbhu
go luath in 2020, de bhun Airteagal 3 de Rialachain Cheantar an Fheabhail (Rialu lascaireachta),
2010, de bhun Chuid 13(1) de Acht lascaigh an Fheabhail, 1952, agus de bhun Chuid 13 (1) de Acht
lascaigh an Fheabhail (Tuaisceart Eireann) 1952.

Leis an Dearbhu sin, cuireadh liontodireacht ar fionrai san Fheabhal, i Loch Feabhail agus sa
cheantar chun farraige i Loch Feabhail agus cuireadh srianta ar an tslatiascaireacht san Fhinn: is ar
bhonn gabhala agus scaoilte amhain a ceadaiodh slatiascaireacht san Fhinn le linn shéasur iomlan
2020.

Achoimre ar Chomhaireamh na nlasc 2016 - 2020

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
An Fhinn 2,589 1,985 3,955 4,247 2,302
An Mhorn 1,350 912 1,214 2,820 3,915
Abhainn naRo 3,809 2,371 4,305 1,573 3,696
An Fhochaine 3,791 1,763 1,046 3,976 6,300
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Gnathoga Salmainide

Rinne an Ghniomhaireacht oibreacha
suntasacha ar ghnathdgain 2020, lenar airiodh:
falu bruachanach; scéimeanna cur plandai le
cosc a chur ar chungach ar ghnathoga agus ar
shatailt gnathdg ag beostoc; forbairt struchtuir
ghnathoige salmainide ionsrutha, agus
scéimeanna rialaithe creimthe le gnathoga
salmainide nuaghinte a chosaint.

Eireoidh le hoibreacha ionsrutha criochnaithe
sa chas amhain ina gcosnaitear iad ar
dhamaiste comhshaoil agus truailliu uisce.

Lean foireann Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna ar
aghaidh ag diriu ar chosaint gnathdga na n-iasc
nuaghinte i gcaitheamh 2020.

Tionscadail Feabhsuchain Limistéar

Speisialta Caomhnaithe na Fochaine

| gcomhphairtiocht le hlontaobhas Coillte
Thuaisceart Eireann agus Uisce Thuaisceart
Eireann, ta tionscadail cur crann duchasach
curthaigcrich ag an Ghniomhaireacht, lena
n-airitear falu le beostoc a choinneail amach
agus rochtain nios fearr ar an Fhochaine a chur
ar fail.

Ta na céad choillte fliucha de chuid na
Gniomhaireachta forbarthaingort 4.8 acra
feadh bhruach na Fochaine, i gcomhar agus i
gcomhaontu le huinéir na talun. San aireamh
sna coillte fliucha ta tégail roinnt dambai agus
linnte ligeacha agus talamh taobh leo, ar a
bhfuil 2,000 crann duchasach curtha, rud a
fheabhsoidh cailiocht an uisce, a sholathroidh
tearmainn nua don fhiadhulra agus a ligfidh
d'fheirmeoiri agus uinéiri talun obair go
gniomhach le nascanna a dhéanamh idir an
bhithéagsulacht agus gndthachtail ghno.

Tionscadal Cosanta Tuilte Ghleann

Aichle

| gcaitheamh 2020, lean an Ghniomhaireacht le
bearta bainistiochta iascach a chur chun cinni
nGleann Aichle, sna sala ar an tuile i mi Lunasa
2017. D'eagraigh an Ranndg Seachadta Togaéla
agus Solathair sa Roinn Airgeadais i dTuaisceart
Eireann proiseas tairisceana, agus bronnadh
conradh tri phroiseas Measunu Dinimiciuil
Tairiscinti na Rannoige sin. Caitheamh formhor
an mhaoinithe £500,000 a fuarthas ¢ RTCGT
idir 2018 agus 2020 go priomha ar fhalu
bruachanach agus t4 118 geatarochtana
tégtha feadh Abhainn Choilleadh agus
Abhainn Ghleann Aichle. Ta roinnt scéimeanna
sraodbhalla ar an bhruach curthai gcrich
chomh maith. In 2021 caithfear an chuid sin
den bhuiséad ata gan chaitheamh ar oibreacha
sraodbhalla carraige déanta le bollain chruinne
ar an Abhainn Riabhach. Ta Gniomhaireacht na
Lochanna ag leanuint le monatoireacht ar na
haibhneacha uile sna ceantair sin ina mbionn
tuilte agus le hathchoiriu gnathog dighradaithe,
agus ag ioc as on bhuiséad Caomhnoireachta
agus Cosanta, de réir mar is cui.

lascach Oisri Duchasacha Loch

Feabhail

Druideadh iascach 2019/20 ar an 23U Marta
2020. 48,628kg an méid a gabhadh sa
deireadh.

Osclaiodh iascach oisri duchasacha 2020/21
ar an 6 Deireadh Fomhair 2020. Dioladh 39
ceadunas san iomlan. Bhi an t-iascach druidte
i mi na Samhna 2020 agus athosclaiodh é ar
feadh 6 1aimina Nollag 2020.

De réir nalogleabhar a fuarthas ar ais roimh
dheireadh mhi na Nollag 2020, 32,732kg an
meéid iomlan a gabhadh.

Séasur LionnagCeadunas Diolta Lioh e L Meid '°!“'é',"
lascaireachta Tugthai dTir (t)

(t) 57 33 185

2017/18 55 17 205

2018/19 79 14 19

2019/20 40 32 48

2020/21 39 14* 33*

* amhail Nollaig 2020
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Measunu ar Stoic Oisri Duchasacha
Rinneadh measunu ar stoic oisri duchasacha

6 Aibrean go Bealtaine (iar-iascach) agus 6
Lunasa go Mean Fomhair 2020 (réamhiascach).
Fuarthas sa da shuirbhé go raibh mortlaiocht
mar a bhionn de ghnath. Measadh gur 378
tonna bithmhais iomlan an stoic san earrach
agus gur 1,055 tonna an bhithmhais san
fhomhar. Glacadh leis gurbh é leibhéal maith
maireachtala agus fais sa chohort mor oisri, ar
lonnaigh lion mor acu i samhradh 2018, ba chuis
leis an mhéadu mor ar an bhithmhaisin 2020. Ta
formhaor an chohort oisri sin sa chatagodir méide
45-65mm anois.

Bithmhais (réamh-

De réir na fianaise, bhi leibhéal socraithe

agus ceangailte na ndébhlaoscach ég leis

an tsubstrait iseal go leor i samhradh 2020:
fuarthas débhlaoscaigh 6ga le dluithe
débhlaoscach 0.12m2 in 21% de na staisiuin ar
glacadh samplai uathu. Measadh gur 69 tonna
an tonnaiste iomlan a bhféadfai iascaireacht

a dhéanamh air i bhféomhar 2020. Moladh gan
ach cuid den stoc arbh fhéidir iascaireacht

a dhéanamh air a bhaint ar shiul mar iarracht
le bithmhais éifeachtach den stoc sceite a
choinneail san iascach.

Bithmhais lomlan Arbh

Bliain  Suirbhé Bithmhais mheasta) Arbh Fhéidir Fhéidir lascaireacht a
lomlan lascaireacht a Dhéanamh Dhéanamh air FOmhar
air Earrach >70mm >80mm
Earrach 366 155
2016 , 174
Fomhar 616
Earrach 438 248
2017 15
Fémhar 684 3
Earrach 509 372
2018 . 269
Fomhar 724
Earrach 504
2019 329
- 116
Fomhar 479
Earrach 378 66
2020
Fémhar 1,055 69
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Measunu ar Larbhai Oisri Duchasacha
Rinneadh monatodireacht ar laithreacht larbhai
débhlaoscach in iascach oisri duchasacha
Loch Feabhail i samhradh 2020 den deichiu
bliain as a chéile. Is idir Meitheamh agus Mean
Fomhair 2020 a rinneadh an mhonatoireacht,
agus rinneadh samplail i dtaca le plancton
agus paraiméadair chomhshaoil ar bhonn
seachtainiuil i gcuig bheirtreach suas go dti an
10 Mean Fomhair 2020.

Bhi meanteocht an uisce (16.4°C +1.99) agus
an mheansalandacht (30.8 psu + 1.49) rud beag
nios airde na mar a bhiin 2019, agus is ribheag
an t-éagsulu a bhi ann i measc na mbeirtreach.
Ba é18.5°C + 0.27 i Seachtain 9 (an 18U Lunasa
2020) an bhuaic 6 thaobh meanteocht an uisce
i ngach suiomh.

Bhi beagnach leath na larbhai débhlaoscach
(27,666/m2) ann 6 thaobh a mbuaiclion
meanach le hais 2019, rud a thugann le fios gur
lU toradh an atairgthe sa tréimhse samplala.
Fuarthas buaiclion larbhai sa tseachtain
chéannailar mhi Lunasa agus a fuarthas i
suirbhé 2019. Maidir le socru débhlaoscach 6g,
dealraionn sé go raibh sé sin teoranta do roinnt
bheag beirtreach ina raibh an dluithe is airde de
dhébhlaoscaigh fasta.

Suirbhéireacht ar Dhobharshaothru

Neambhrialaithe

Bhi gniomhaiocht neamhrialaithe ina cuis imni
leanunach don Ghniomhaireacht in 2020. Le
monatoireacht a dhéanamh ar ghniomhaiocht
mhéadaitheach, rinne an Ghniomhaireacht
suirbhéireacht le dron on aer ar eagair tristeéil
oisri an Aigéin Chiuin i mi Mhean Fombhair 2020.
Bunaithe ar an eolas a fuarthas, rinneadh
meastachan maidir le lion na dtristéal a bhi ann
agus claraiodh suiomh na n-eagar. Measadh
gur 74,095 lion iomlan na dtristéal agus gur
chludaigh siad achar 210 heictear. Isionann é
sin agus méadu 8.1% ar lion na dtristéal le hais
2019. Cludaionn na tristéil oisri tuairim is 34 %
den limistéar iomlan idirthaoideach on Chuil
Mhor go Bun an Phobail i Loch Feabhail.

Leanfaidh an Ghniomhaireacht le
monatdireacht ar fhas na gniomhaiochta
neamhrialaithe seo in 2021.

Trialacha Fais Oisri Duchasacha in 2020

Cuireadh tus le turgnaimh a bhain le fas trialach
i dtri bheirtreach oisrii mi Eanair 2020 agus

leanadh leo i rith na bliana. Clibealadh tuairim is
150 oisre agus cuireadh iad i bpotai gliomaigh
a bhi leasaithe go speisialta agus a raibh boscai
fais oisri Ortac curthaisteachiontu. Aran
drochuair, claraiodh leibhéil mhortlaiochta
measartha ard le linn na dtrialacha fais agus
chuir srianta na paindéime COVID-19 isteach ar
thomhas rialta an fhais.

Ba é 5-17mm an fas meanach i gcas na n-oisri
ar claraiodh sonrai ina leith sa tréimhse a bhi

i gceist. Claraiodh treochtai teocht an uisce
gach uair an chloig mar chuid de na turgnaimh
seo, agus baineadh Usaid as na sonrai sin

sa mheasunu monatoireachta ar larbhai
debhlaoscacha.

Slatiascaireacht agus Turasoireacht

Mhuiri

| ndiaidh gur athosclaiodh an tslatiascaireacht
agus gniomhaiochtai eile bunaithe ar
thurasoireacht mhuiri i raithe 2in 2020,
chonacthas don Ghniomhaireacht gur thainig
meéadu ar an éileamh ar ghniomhaiochtai taobh
amuigh, tiomainte ag an mhargadh intire saoire
sa bhaile agus ag an gha le gniomhaiochtai
taobh amuigh a bhi ag teacht le treoirlinte an
rialtais.

Bhi na gniomhaiochtai seo go maith do shlainte
agus follaine daoine agus san am ceanna, chuir
siad le gniomhaiocht eacnamaiochta. Thug
solathrairi a bhi ann cheana féin seirbhisi nua
eagsulaisteach agus osclaiodh fiontair nua
aineasa agus turasoireachta ar fud cheantair an
Fheabhail agus Chairlinn.

Leanfaidh an Ghniomhaireacht leis an obair i
gcombhar leis na hearnalacha slatiascaireachta
agus turasoireachta muiri d'fhonn cuidiu le
forbairt agus cur chun cinn maidir le cur chuige
inbhuanaithe i dtaca le heispéiris iontacha
taobh amuigh a sholathar.

Margaiocht agus Poibliocht

Baintear Usaid as cuntais na Gniomhaireachta
ar na meain shoisialta, a bhfuil 10,000

leantoir acu, lena thaispeaint, tri fhiseain agus
grianghraif shuntasacha de ghnath, cad € ata ar
fail do dhaoine aitiula agus do chuairteoiri sna
dobharcheantair.

In 2020, craoladh abhar faocin Ghniomhaireacht
ar an nuacht teilifise agus raidi¢ agus i
sraitheanna amhail ‘Lough Foyle' le Joe Mahon.
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| gcomhphairtiocht le Comhairle Chathair Dhoire

agus Cheantar an tSratha Bain, thacaigh an
Ghniomhaireacht le forbairt tionscadal feabhsuchain
rochtana trasteorann, maoinithe tri chlar LEADER an
Aontais Eorpaigh. Bhi oibreacha ar Chanail an tSratha
Bain agus Cé Ui Ghribin san aireamh agus chuir siad ar a
gcumas do dhaoine aitiula agus do chuairteoiri taitheamh
a bhaint as an tuath agus meas a bheith acu ar an ailleacht
agus ar na socmhainni nadurtha agus culturtha feadh
aibhneacha agus costai.

Oifig ar an Omaigh

Le linn 2020 lean an Ghniomhaireacht le hinfheistiu in

aiseanna oibriochtula. Cuireadh moill ar thogail oifige
réigiunai nuain ait an tseanchinn ar an Omaigh mar gheall

ar shrianta COVID-19, agus meastar anois go bhfaighidh an
Ghniomhaireacht seilbh ar an oifig nuailar 2021. Is forbairt
shuntasach é seo a mbeidh tdbhacht straitéiseach leis don
Ghniomhaireacht. Mar gheall ar an ait larnach ina bhfuil an oifig
suite, beidh pairtithe leasmhara agus an pobal in ann seirbhisi a fhail
agus teagmhail a dhéanamh le baill foirne Cosanta lascach. Tad seomra
mor ann ar féidir imeachtai a eagru ann agus beidh an Ghniomhaireacht in
ann cruinnithe Boird agus cruinnithe eile straitéise a eagru ann.

An tAistriu Coir

Mar gheall ar na dualgais ata uirthi, is proiseas uile-eagrais don
Ghniomhaireacht & An tAistriu Coir a chur i bhfeidhm. Baineann sé le:
laghdu ar astuithe a phleanail; inbhuanaitheacht fuinnimh a chur chun
cinn; sécmhainni a chosaint agus a chinntiu go seasfaidh siad an aimsir;
combhoibriu le pairtithe leasmhara, agus tacaiocht do theacht aniar san
fhoireann, d'fhorbairt scileanna agus do dheiseanna nua gairme.

D'fhonn na spriocanna sin a bhaint amach, cheannaigh an
Ghniomhaireacht feithicil leictreach in 2020 den chéad uair agus ta
clair phiolétacha a mbaineann riosca iseal leo i bhfeidhm chomh
maith faoi lathair, e.g. forbairt Intleachta Saorga maidir le bailiochtu
sonrai ¢ thomhsairi iasc.

eagraiocht a céad fheithicil leictreach agus ta si ag glacadh
le clair phiolétacha iseal-riosca faoi lathair, m.sh. forbairt na
hintleachta Saorga maidir le bailiochtu na sonrai 6n airitheoir
iasc.
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In 2020, lean an Ghniomhaireacht le clair
maoinithe ag an AE: bhi si mar Cheannphairti
in SeaMonitor agus mar chomhphairti sna
tionscadail CatchmentCARE agus SWELL.

SeaMonitor - €4.7m maoinithe ag an AE 6
Chiste Forbraiochta Réigiunai na hEorpa,
le cistiu meaitseala 6 Ranna Rialtais
Thuaidh agus Theas.

Is Tionscadal Taighde uathuil muiri &
SeaMonitor, nach ndearnadh a leithéid riamh
cheana san Eoraip, ina ndéantar staidéar ar
na farraigi timpeall na hEireann agus larthar
Alban. Is é is aidhm leis an Tionscadal dul i
ngleic le tri Thascaire um Aschuir an Chlair
agus cuspoir INTERREG VA a fhioru, mar ata
inniulacht trasteorann a fhorbairt i dtaca le
monatodireacht agus bainistiocht ar cheantair
agus speicis chosanta mhuiri.

Ta naonur comhphairtithe sa Tionscadal seo:
ta comhphairtithe maoinithe ann ata suite i
dTuaisceart Eireann, i bPoblacht na hEireann
agus in Albain, agus ta comhphairtithe
neamh-mhaoinithe i gCeanada agus sna Stait
Aontaithe. T4 Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna
mar Cheann-Phairti ar an Tionscadal agus

ta tacaiocht aici 6 ocht bpriomhinstititid
taighde muiri a Usaideann teicneolaiocht
nualach rianaithe speiceas le tuiscint nios fearr
a fhail ar ainmhnithe agus plandai muiri sna
haigéin agus lena gcosaint. Is iad seo a leanas
na Pairtithe Tionscadail: Ollscoil na Riona,

Béal Feirste; Ollscoil Ghlaschu; Colaiste na
hOllscoile, Corcaigh; Institiuid Teicneolaiochta
na Gaillimhe-Maigh Eo, Foras na Mara, an
Institivid Agraibhia agus Eolaiochtai Bitheacha,
an Lionra Rianaithe Aigéan, Ollscoil Dalhousie,
Ceanada, agus Colaiste Ollscoile Davis,
California.

In 2020 earcaiodh baill foirne SeaMonitor agus

in ainneoin na srianta mar gheall ar COVID-19,
rinneadh meid airithe oibre allamuigh agus
bailiodh sonrai Usaideacha. Ta pacaisti oibre agus
pleananna athbhreithnithe comhaontaithe maidir
le 2021. In 2021 beidh eagair theiliméadrachtain
usaid go hiomlan agus beidh clibeail ainmhithe i
bhfeidhm ar fud na comhphairtiochta.

CatchmentCARE - €13,792,432 maoinithe
ag an AE o Chiste Forbraiochta Réigiunai na
hEorpa, le cistiu meaitseala 6 Ranna Rialtais
Thuaidh agus Theas.

Is Tionscadal maoinithe ag an AE é
CatchmentCARE arb éis aidhm leis cailiocht

an uruisce in abhantracha trasteoranni dtri
dhobharcheantar trasteorann a fheabhsu.
Bainfear aidhmeanna an tionscadail amach tri

thri thionscadal feabhasaithe céiliocht an uisce a
fhorbairt i ndobharcheantair na Finne, na hAibhne
Maoire agus an Arney, agus tri 50 poll toéraiochtaa
shuiteail ar fud an réigiuin.

Is saibhir agus is ilghnéitheach na sainscileanna
ata sna heagrais sin ata ag obair ar Thionscadal
CatchmentCARE, mar ata udarais aitiula -
Combhairle Chontae Dhun na nGall (arb i an
Ceann-Phairti i), Comhairle Chathair Ard
Mhacha, Dhroichead na Banna agus Craigavon
- ata ag obair le lucht acaduil 6 Ollscoil

Uladh, agus Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna, an
Institiuid Agraibhia agus Eolaiochtai Bitheacha,
Suirbhéireacht Gheolaiochta na Breataine,
Suirbhéireacht Gheolaiochta na hEireann agus
lascaigh Intire na hEireann.

In 2020, d'aithin Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna fad
267km ina bhféadfai falu bruachanach, cur plandai
agus oibreacha ionsrutha a dhéanamh agus scorail
si na haiteanna éagsula sa limistéar. Cuireadh tus
le falu bruachanach agus oibreacha ionsrutha ar an
chéad suiomhin 2020. Airitear leis na hoibreacha
sin: suiteail dha réiteach innealtoireachta glaise
ionsrutha; fad 1.8km d’'fhalu d'fhonn crios
maolanach bruachanach a chruthu, agus suiteail
reéitigh uisce oil as line do bheostoc.
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SWELL - €35m maoinithe ag an AE 6 Chiste Forbraiochta Reéigiunai na hEorpa, le cistiu
meaitseala 6 Ranna Rialtais Thuaidh agus Theas.

Is comhphairtiocht trasteorann atai gceist le SWELL (Feabhsu Comhuisci agus Oidhreacht
Lochanna) ina bhfuil Uisce Thuaisceart Eireann, Uisce Eireann, an Institiuid Agraibhia agus
Eolaiochtai Bitheacha, Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna agus Reigiun na Teorann Thoir pairteach,
iad uile ag obair i gcomhar lena chéile le cailiocht an uisce i gcomhuisci Loch Cairlinn agus Loch
Feabhail a fheabhsu.

Beidh an cleachtas is fearr, nualacht agus malartu eolais mar bhunus le hobair na
comhphairtiochta d'fhonn aschuir agus torthai Chlar INTERREG VA a bhaint amach go
héifeachtuil. Tri scoth na hinnealtoireachta, fiosru straitéiseach ar dhobharcheantair agus
samhaltuy, is uasgraduithe inbhuanaithe ar shocmhainni dramhuisce ar dha thaobh na teorann an
toradh an bheidh le SWELL agus cuirfidh sé ar bhealach dearfach leis na hiarrachtai 'Stadas Maith
Eiceolaiochta' a bhaint amach de réir Chreat-treorach Uisce an AE.

In 2020 chuidigh Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna leis an Institiuid Agraibhia agus Eolaiochtai
Bitheacha réamhshuirbhéanna bonnline a dhéanamh maidir leis na hoibreacha feabhsuchain

ar shamhlacha dobharcheantair i ndobharcheantair an Fheabhail agus Chairlinn (muiri agus
uruisce). Cuireadh na suirbhéannai gcrich i Marta 2020. Chuidigh Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna
leis an Institivid Agraibhia agus Eolaiochtai Bitheacha sonrai baisti agus sruthaithe a bhailiu le linn
imeachtai baisti foircni mar chuid den Suirbhé Frithghniomhach Baisti. Leis na sonrai sin, munlofar
an doigh a n-oibrionn an tsamhail le linn tréimhsi baisti foircni. Is féidir an tsamhail a usaid ansin
lena réamhinsint cén doigh a n-oibreoidh na pleananna coireala dramhuisce agus sceitheadh
dramhuisce nuair a bhionn baisteach fhoircneach ann.

GNIOMHAIREACHT NA LOCHANNA TUARASCAIL BHLIANTUIL 2020 104



TUARASCAIL
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An Polasai Luach Saothair

Pléann an Polasai Luach Saothair le luach
saothair ar bhonn uile-eagrais agus ta sé ar
cheann de na priomhghnéithe den Straitéis
Acmhainni Daonna - is dluthchuid den straitéis
fhoriomlan ghno iad an da rud. Isiad seo a
leanas priomhfheidhmeanna an Pholasai Luach
Saothair:

« abheith mar thaca le straitéis
Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna tri cur leis na
hiarrachtai gné iomaioch, nualach a thogail
amheallann, a choinnionn agus a spreagann
fostaithe;

* baint amach cuspairi straitéiseacha a
chur chun cinn de réir theorainn riosca na
Gniomhaireachta;

- orthai dearfacha a chur chun cinn / tacu
lena mbaint amach sa chomhthéacs
eacnamaiochta agus soisialta ina n-oibrionn
an Ghniomhaireacht; agus

« cultur eiticiuil agus saoranacht
chorparaideach fhreagrach a chur chun
cinn.

Fealsunacht agus Priomhphrionsabail
maidir le Luach Saothair

Fealsunacht i dtaca le Luach Saothair

Is é fealsinacht na Gniomhaireachtai dtaca
le luach saothair fostaithe a chreideann

sa chultur agus sna luachanna againn,

agus a chaitheann a saol daréir, a earcu

agus a spreagadh, aitheantas a thabhairt
doibh agus iad a choinnedil. Déanaimid ar
ndicheall an fhiontraiocht a chur chun cinn tri
thimpeallacht oibre a chruthu a spreagann an
fhoireann ionas gur féidir le gach fostai cur

le straitéis, fis, spriocanna agus luachanna na
Gniomhaireachta ar dhoéigh dhearfach. De
réir na fealsinachta ata againn, déanaimid ar
ndicheall pacaiste iomlan luach saothair ar
bhfostaithe a shocru ag leibhéal ata iomaioch.
Creidimid go bhfuil rath fadtéarmach na
Gniomhaireachta ceangailte go direach le
cailiocht na bhfostaithe a fhostaimid agus
leis an timpeallacht oibre a chruthaimid. Ta sé
riachtanach, mar sin, go ndéanaimid iarracht
mhor leas ar bhfostaithe a ailiniu le leas ar
bpairtithe leasmhara eile.

Priomhphrionsabail i dtaca le Luach

Saothair
Ta Polasai Luach Saothair na Gniomhaireachta
bunaithe ar na prionsabail seo a leanas:

Ta an Polasai Luach Saothair ag teacht

le straiteis ghno fhoriomlan, cuspairi

agus luachanna na Gniomhaireachta, gan
dochar a dhéanamh do leas na bpairtithe
leasmhara.

Ta an Polasai Luach Saothair, gnathaimh
agus cleachtais ag teacht le bainistiu riosca
eifeachtach agus ta siad mar thaca leis sin.
Is ar bhonn luach saothair iomlain a
fhaigheann fostaithe ata ar tuarastal a luach
saothair; cuimsionn sé sin luach saothair
seasta, athraitheach, gearrthearmach agus
fadtéarmach a bhaineann leis an phost.
San aireamh sa chuid sheasta (rathaithe)
den luach saothair ta bonntuarastal ata

ag teacht le ratai Statseirbhis Thuaisceart
Eireann.

Feadfaidh sé go bhfuil liuntais eile a
bhaineann leis an phost san aireamh sa
luach saothair iomlan.

Réimsi den Pholasai Luach Saothair
Raon

Baineann an Polasai Luach Saothair le gach
fostai buan sa Ghniomhaireacht.

Struchtur Luach Saothair

Ta na catagoiri/gnéithe seo aleanas mar chuid
de struchtur luach saothair na Gniomhaireachta
(Stiurthoiri san aireamh):

pacaiste rathaithe luach saothair (seasta
agus ag teacht le graid agus scalai pa
Statseirbhis Thuaisceart Eireann);

luach saothair athraitheach (a bhaineann
le Cigiri agus Oifigigh lascach amhain agus
a bhionn ag brath ar lion na n-uaireanta
neamhshaisialta a oibritear);

liuntas doibh siud ar glao-dhualgas (a
bhaineann leo siud ata ar glao-dhualgas
maidir le heachtrai a bhaineann le truailliu,
poitseail, slandail foirgneamh agus leis an
bhonneagar TF - seasta agus ag teacht
le liuntas glao-dhualgais Statseirbhis
Thuaisceart Eireann).

Ta an luach saothair seasta rathaithe agus
ioctar € beag beann ar fheidhmiocht na
Gniomhaireachta; nil an luach saothair
athraitheach rathaithe agus ta se ceangailte
go direach leis an fhostai aonair lion airithe
uaireanta neamhshoisialta a chlaru taobh istigh
de thréeimhse shonraithe ama.
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Luach Saothair na Foirne

Baill Foirne Bhuana

Ceaptar baill foirne de réir Pholasai Earcaiochta
agus Roghnaithe na Gniomhaireachta. Eilionn
an Polasai seo go ndéantar ceapachain
bunaithe ar fhilintas agus ar chomortas
cothrom, oscailte. Féadfaidh sé go mbeidh baill
foirne in ann dul ar scor roimh aois an phinean
stait gan aon laghdu theacht ar shochair phinsin
a fuair siad nios luaithe, ag brath ar théarmai a
bpinsin. Ta eolas faoi thréimhsi fogra scoir le
fail i gconradh an fhostai aonair.

Leibhéil losta Pa

Bionn leibhéil iosta pa ag brath ar an ghrad ar
a dtosaionn duine agus bionn siad ag teacht
le scalai pa Statseirbhis Thuaisceart Eireann
(Tuaisceart Eireann) agus le scalai pa lascaigh
Intire Eireann (Poblacht na hElreann)

Dul Chun Cinn

Nuair a cheaptar ar dtus iad, cuirtear baill foirne
de ghnath ar an phointe is isle ar an scala cui
don phost. Ina dhiaidh sin, téann siad suas

an scala uair sa bhliain go hincriminteach ann
go dti go mbaintear an barrphointe amach.

De ghnath isimi Lunasa a tharlaionn sé seo

i gcas ball foirne i dTuaisceart Eireann agus i
bPoblacht na hEireann tarlaionn sé cothrom an
lae a ceapadh an fostai.

Pa Feidhmiochta

Nil aon pha feidhmiochta ann don fhoireann
na aon scéim ghaolmhar nd a comhionann de
scéim.

Baill Foirne Shealadacha
Is féidir leis an Ghniomhaireacht baill foirne
shealadacha a cheapadh ar dha bhealach.

« Triphroiseas earcaiochta oscailte: déantar
an ceapachan de réir Pholasai Earcaiochta
agus Roghnaithe na Gniomhaireachta. Sa
chas seo, bionn leibhéil iosta pa ag brath ar
an ghrad ar a dtosaionn an duine agus bionn
siad ag teacht le scalai pa Statseirbhis
Thuaisceart Eireann (Tuaisceart Elreann)
agus le scalai pa lascaigh Intire Eireann
(Poblacht na hEireann).

« Trighniomhaireacht earcaiochta. Mar
chombhlacht poibli ta ceanglas ar an
Ghniomhaireacht seirbhisi a fhail 6
Ghniomhaireacht ata sannta sa Phrétacal
Usaideoiri um Oibrithe Gniomhaireachta, ag

brath ar an rol. Beidh sé de dhualgas ar an
ghniomhaireacht earcaiochta an foluntas a
fhogairt, iarrthoiri foirsteanacha a aimsiu,
CVanna a scagadh, bualadh le hiarrthoiri
lena fhail amach an bhfuil siad foirsteanach
don rol, agus CVanna na n-iarrthoiri is
foirsteanai a thabhairt do Ghniomhaireacht
na Lochanna. Is i an ghniomhaireacht
earcaiochta a fhostaionn oibrithe a
aimsitear ar an doigh seo, mar sin is idir an
da phairti sin ata an conradh.

Is fearr comortas oscailte earcaiochta
mar rogha, ach roghnofai bealach na
gniomhaireachta earcaiochtaigcas
prainneach.

Pacaiste lomlan Luach Saothair

Ta rochtain ag gach ball foirne ar an Scéim
Pinsin Thuaidh/Theas. Bionn uaireanta éagsula
i gceist leis na conarthai a bhaineann le

poist POFanna (n6 a gcomhionann), le poist
Stiurthoiri agus le poist bhuana foirne. Bionn
lion na n-uaireanta sa chonradh ag brath ar
nadur na hoibre a dhéanann an fostai agus ar
aon socruithe sainiula a dhéantar le gur feidir
leis an duine aonair cothromaiocht idir an obair
agus an gnathshaol a bhaint amach. Ta rochtain
ag gach ball foirne ar Shaoire Mhaithreachais,
Saoire Atharthachta agus Saoire Uchtala. Ta
fleisc-am ar fail, ach déantar gach cas aonair

a mheas le hais riachtanais ghno agus is faoi
rogha na Gniomhaireachta ata e a cheadu no
gan € a cheadu.

Nuair a cheaptar iad, beidh gach ball foirne

i dteideal 25 |4 saoire moide an 12 |a saoire
reachtula agus poibli ata aitheanta ag an
earnail. Is ar bhonn pro rata a shocraitear saoire
na mball foirne sealadach de réir mar is cui.

Conarthai Seirbhise

Is ar bhonn fiuntais agus ar bhonn comortas
cothrom, oscailte a dheéantar ceapachaini
nGniomhaireacht na Lochanna. Mura bhfuil a
mhalairt raite, is ar bhonn neamhiata a cheaptar
na hoifigigh ata cludaithe ag an tuairisc seo.

| gcas luathfhoircinn, bheadh an duineii
dteideal cuiteamh airgid, seachas i gcas mi-
iompraiochta.
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Teidliochtai Tuarastail agus Pinsin
Ta sonrai le fail thios faoi luach saothair agus sochair phinsin na mbainisteoiri is sinsearai sa
Ghniomhaireacht.

Luach saothair na Foirne Bainistiochta Sinsearai, tuarastal agus teidliochtai pinsin san aireamh.

2020

Sochair Sochair

Comhlan chomh- Comhlan chomh-
chineail chineail

£ £ £ £

Bainisteoiri Sinsearacha /

Stiurthoiri

Oifigeach Ainmnithe ceaptha

ar an 1u Marta 2017 65,505 - 62213 -
Stiurthoir Forbartha 55,034 - 54,275 -
Stiurthoir Caomhnoireachta 55,764 _ 54575 -
agus Cosanta
Stiurthgir I?obharshaothraithe 66,692 . 63,436 -
agus Sliogiascach
Stiurthoir Eatramhach
Seirbhisi Corpal:aldeacr_\a 54572 _ 52979 -
ceaptha ar an 9u Bealtaine
2017

297,567 287,478 -

Tuarastal an Stiurthora s

Airde Pa amhail 31 Nol* 68,786 63,823
LualchlSaothair lomlan 28,730 28,167
Meanline

Combhréir 2.4 23

(Rata steirling le euro ar an 31 Nollaig 2020:1.11231/ 2019: 1.1753, meanrata 2020:1.12397 / 2019:
1.1392)




2020 2019

Bainisteoiri Sinsearacha / ST Eoshal
" " Combhlan chomh- Comhlan chomh-
Stiurthoiri . s . .
chineail chineail
€ € €
Oifigeach Ainmnithe ceaptha
ar an 1 Marta 2017 73,626 - 70873 -
Stiurthoir Forbartha 61,857 - 61,830 -
Stiurthoir Caomhnoireachta 62,677 ~ 62172 -
agus Cosanta
Stiurthc_)ir I?obharshaothraithe 74.960 ~ 72.266 -
agus Sliogiascach
Stiurthoir Eatramhach
Seirbhisi Corparaldeacl)a 61,337 B 60.354 -
ceaptha ar an 9u Bealtaine
2017
334,457 - 327,495 -
2020 2019
€ €
Tuarastal an Stiurthora s
Airde Pa amhail 31 Nol* 76,511 75,01
Lua’ch’Saothair lomlan 32,292 32,088
Meanline
Combhreéir 2.4 2.3

*Airitear i dtuarastail chomhlana na Stitrthoiri an pa iomlan a fuair siad idir 01/01/20 agus
31/12/20, agus ta rata an Stiurthoéra ab airde pa bunaithe ar an tuarastal ab airde aiocadh le haon
Stiurthoir ar leith ar an data cuntasaiochta, 31/12/20 - ni hionann an da rud mar thoradh ar io-
caiochtai agus incriminti bliantula a iocadh sa bhliain.




Tuarastal
Airitear sa tuarastal, tuarastal comhlan moide liuntas ‘ar glao-dhualgas' do bheirt de na
Stiurthaoiri. Nil aon luach saothair eile inioctha le Stiurthoiri.

Boénais
Ni iocann an Ghniomhaireacht bonais le haon Bhainisteoir Sinsearach na le haon bhall foirne.

Sochair Chomhchineaiil

Cludaionn luach airgeadaioch sochair chomhchineail aon sochar curtha ar fail ag an fhostoir a
gcaitheann HM Revenue and Customs leis mar luach saothair inchanach. Ni bhfuair aon bhall den
Fhoireann Bhainistiochta Sinsearai sochar comhchineail in 2020 nain 2019.

P4 Cothrom (Eolas Initchta)
Ta ceangal ar chomhlachtai tuairiscithe an ghaolmhaireacht idir luach saothair an Stiurthorais
airde pa san eagras agus luach saothair meanline lucht oibre an eagrais a nochtadh.

Bae £59,932 go £73,069 / €66,663 go €81,275 (2019, £55,608 go £67,796 / €65,356 go
€79,681) luach saothair bandailte an Stiurthora ab airde pa sa Ghniomhaireacht sa bhliain airge-
adais 2020. 2.4 an chomhreéirin 2020 (2.3in 2019). Baé £28,730/ €32,292 (2019 £28,167 /
€32,088) luach saothair meanline an lucht oibre.

Ni bhfuair aon fhostai luach saothair a bhi nios airde na luach saothair an Stiurthora ab airde pai
gceachtar den da bhliain. Ba é £19,425 go £68,786 / €21,607 go €76,511in 2020 (2019 £18,513 go
£63,823/€21,758 go €75,011) an raon luach saothair.

Airitear le luach saothair iomlan tuarastal comhlan. Ta na hairimh seo bunaithe ar Threoir do
Chombhlachtai Forfheidhmithe Thuaidh/Theas 2017 agus airitear iad bunaithe ar luach saothair
bliantulaithe coibhéise lanaimseartha gach ball foirne amhail an data tuairiscithe.

Is € achtuire neamhspleach na Scéime Pinsin Thuaidh/Theas, Deloitte Total Reward and Benefits
Limited, a chuir an greille thuas ar fail.

Nil Luachanna Aistrithe Coibhéis Airgid Thirim (“LACATanna") rathaithe agus is ar chuiseanna
|éirithe amhain ata siad & dtaispeadint anseo.

Riomhadh LACATanna bunaithe ar mheastachain i dtaca le sochair réamh-mheasta pinsin amhail
31 Nollaig 2019 agus 31 Nollaig 2020.

Maidir le baill ata thar an Ghnathaois Scoir, nil aon fhachtoiri LACAT foilsithe ar fail. Ina leithéid de
chas, riomhadh fachtoir measta tri eachtarshui.

Maidir le sochair Alpha, ta na figiuiri i dtaca le pinsean fabhraithe bunaithe ar an bhonn tuisceana
go bhfuil an tuarastal ata curtha ar fail ag an Chomhlacht comhionann le Tuilleamh larbhir Inphinsin
sa tréimhse bhliana suas go 31 Marta 2020.

*Sochair thuarastal deiridh amhain
**Sochair thuarastal deiridh agus sochair alpha
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Pinsean fabhraithe ag aois an phinsin
ambhail an 31 Nollaig 2020 agus an

chnapshuim ghaolmhar

Is ionann an pinsean fabhraithe ag aois

an phinsin amhail 31 Nollaig 2020 agus an
chnapshuim ghaolmhar, agus luach an phinsin
bhliantuil agus na cnapshuime ata ag dul don
duine ar dhul ar scor doibh, bunaithe ar a
seirbhis suas go dti an data sin.

Fiormhéadu ar an phinsean agus ar an

chnapshuim ghaolmhar ag aois an phinsin
Is ionann an fiormhéadu ar an phinsean

agus ar an chnapshuim, agus an méadu

os cionn boilscithe, tomhaiste de réir an
Phraghasinnéacs Tomhaltoiri. Maidir le
2019/20, rinneadh coigeartu +2.4% (18/19,
+3%) i dtacale baill sa Tuaisceart, agus
cuireadh coigeartu +0.9% (18/19 +0.2%) i
bhfeidhm maidir le baill sa Deisceart.

Luachanna Aistrithe Céibhéis Airgid
Thirim

Isionann Luach Aistrithe Coibhéis Airgid Thirim
(LACAT) agus an luach caipitlithe measunaithe
go hachtuireach ata ar shochair 6n scéim
pinsin ata fabhraithe ag ball ag am ar leith. Is
iad na sochair a ndéantar iad a luachail sochair
fhabhraithe an bhaill agus aon phinsean
teagmhasach céile ab inioctha trid an scéim. Is
€is LACAT ann iocaiocht a dhéantar tri scéim
no socru pinsin d'fhonn sochair phinsin a fhail
tri scéim no socru pinsin eile nuair a fhagann
ball scéim ar leith agus roghnaionn siad na
sochair a d'fhabhraigh siad trid aniarscéim a
aistriu. Baineann na figiuiri pinsin ata thuasluaite
leis na sochair ata fabhraithe ag an duine aonair
mar thoradh ar iomlan a mballraiochta sa scéim
pinsin, agus ni hamhain lena seirbhis i bpost
sinsearach ar ga nochtadh a dhéanamhina
leith. Airitear sna figiuiri LACAT an luach ata ar
aon phinsean i scéim no socru eile atd an duine
aonair i ndiaidh a aistriu go socruithe pinsin

na Gniomhaireachta. Airitear iontu fosta aon
sochair bhreise pinsin ata fabhraithe i dtaca
leis an bhall mar thoradh ar iad blianta breise
seirbhise pinsin a cheannach as a bpdca féin.
Riomhtar LACATanna de réir na Rialachan um
Scéimeanna Pinsin Oibre (Luachanna Aistrithe)
(Leasu), 2008, agus ni ghlactar san aireamh
aon sochair iarbhir na féideartha as Cain Liuntas
Saoil ba dhlite nuair a ghlacfai sochair phinsin.

Fiormhéadu ar LACAT
Léirionn sé seo an t-ardu ar LACAT ata cistithe,

le firinne, ag an fhostoir. Ni airitear ann an
meéadu ar phinsean fabhraithe mar gheall ar
bhoilsciu na ranniocaiochtai ioctha ag an
fhostai (lena n-airitear luach na sochar aistrithe
0 aon scéim pinsin no socru) agus baintear
usaid as fachtoiri luachala an chdmhargaidh do
thus agus deireadh na tréimhse.

Luach na sochar pinsin a fabhraiodh
Déantar luach na sochar pinsin a fabhraiodh
le linn na bliana a riomh mar an fiormhéadu
ar an phinsean iolraithe ar 20, moide an
fiormhéadu ar aon chnapshuim a bheadh i
gceist, luide ranniocaiocht a bheadh déanta
ag an duine aonair. Fagtar as an aireamh sna
fiormhéaduithe meaduithe mar gheall ar
bhoilsciu agus aon mhéadu no6 laghdu mar
thoradh ar aistriu cearta pinsin.

Socruithe Pinsin

Is baill iad den Scéim Pinsin Thuaidh/Theas

iad fostaithe de chuid Ghniomhaireacht

na Lochanna. Is iad na Comhlachtai
Forfheidhmithe Thuaidh/Theas agus
Turasoireacht Eireann Teoranta a bhunaigh an
Sceéim Pinsin Thuaidh/Theas le héifeacht 6n
29 Aibrean 2005 ar aghaidh. Is sc€im pinsin le
sochar sainithe i a bhionn a cistiu go bliantuil ar
bhonn ioc mar a thuillir as airgead a fhaightear
6 Statchisti na Riochta Aontaithe agus na
hEireann. Cuireann an RTCGT sa Tuaisceart
agus RCAC sa Deisceart maoiniu ar fail don
Ghniomhaireacht. Bionn an scéim ariar ag
riarthoir seachtrach.

Ta an Scéim Pinsin Thuaidh/Theas
comhdhéanta de roinnt ranndg a mbaineann
struchtuir eagsula sochar leo.

Is socru pinsin tuarastal deiridh i Core

Final Salary a bhfuil sochair i gceist leis ata
bunaithe ar an rannog Classic i Scéim Pinsin
Principal na Statseirbhise i dTuaisceart
Eireann. Solathraitear pinsean trid an scéim
(ochtoduithe in aghaidh na bliana seirbhise),
chomh maith le haisce n6 cnapshuim (tri
ochtodu in aghaidh na bliana seirbhise),
pinsean ceile agus pinsean leanai. Is € 60U
breithla an bhaill an Ghnathaois Scoir. Bionn
pinsin ata a n-ioc (agus iad siud ata iarchurtha)
ag meéadu de reir bhoilsiu praghasanna
ginearalta.

Is socru no sceéim pinsin i an rannog Core Alpha
ata bunaithe ar Mheantuilleamh Gairmréime
Athluachailte (CARE) le sochair ata bunaithe
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ar Ranndg Alpha de Scéim Pinsin Principal

na Statseirbhise i dTuaisceart Eireann.
Solathraitear pinsean trid an Scéim bunaithe

ar chéatadan den phainphinsin i dtaca le gach
bliain de bhallraiocht ghniomhach (méadaitear
an pinsean ag tus gach bliana den scéim de réir
bhoilsciu praghasanna ginearalta) chomh maith
le pinsean ceéile agus pinsean leanai. Is ionann
an Ghnathaois Phinsin agus aois an phinsin stait
sa dlinse cui. Is € 66 bliain aois an phinsin stait
faoilathair sa Riocht Aontaithe. Ta arduithe eile
beartaithe ag Rialtas na Riochta Aontaithe lena
gcuirfear aois an phinsin stait suas 6 66 bliain
go 67 bliain idir 2026 agus 2028 agus 6 67 go
68 idir 2044 agus 2046.

| bPoblacht na hEireann, is é 66 bliain aois an
phinsin stait faoi lathair. Bhi si le hardu go 67

bliain ar an 1 Eanair 2021 agus ansin go 68 bliain
ar an 1 Eanair 2028, ach ta an t-athru sin curtha
siar agus ta Coimisiun um Pinsin bunaithe leis an
athru ar aois an phinsin Stait, agus ceisteanna
eile amhail inbhuanaitheacht agus cothroime
idirghluine, a phlé.

Bionn pinsin ata a n-ioc (agus ata curtha
siar) ag meadu de reir bhoilsciu praghasanna
ginearalta.

Bionn sochair ag formhor na mball den rannog
Core snarannoga Final Salary agus Alpha
araon, agus maidir le hiontralaithe nua a thainig
isteach sa scéim i ndiaidh an 1 Aibrean 2015,
téann an chuid is mo6 acu isteach sa rannog
Core Alpha.

Luach Saothair Chomhaltai Boird agus costais slandala soisialai san aireamh

(Faisnéis Iniuchta)

Combhalta Boird

Laurence Arbuckle (Cathaoirleach, ceaptha 16

2020 2019 2020 2019
£ £ € €

Nol 2020) 350 -3 -
Andrew Duncan (Leas-Chathaoirleach) 9,427 9,397 10,595 10,706
Michael McCormick 7,381 7,356 8,296 8,380
Phil Mahon 5,556 5,563 6,245 6,337
12 No1 2020, athehespadhar an 16 NoI 2020) | 5478 5563 6156 6,357
Allan Ewart 5,556 5,563 6,245 6,337
lan McCrea 5,656 5,563 6,245 6,337
Alastair Patterson 5,556 5,563 6,245 6,337
Fiona Walsh 7,381 7,355 8,296 8,379
Patrick Gibbons 7,381 7,355 8,296 8,379
Heather Mackey 7,381 7,355 8,296 8,379

67,001 66,633 75,308 75,908

Ni tuarastail inphinsin iad tuarastail na gComhaltai Boird.

GNIOMHAIREACHT NA LOCHANNA TUARASCAIL BHLIANTUIL 2020
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Bandai Tuarastail do na Fostaithe Uile
Lion na bhfostaithe (coibhéis lanaimseartha) a raibh a luach saothair don dha mhi dhéag dar
crioch 31 Nollaig 2020 sna bandai seo a leanas:

Bandai Tuarastail (£) . 2020 ’ 2019
Lion fostaithe Lion fostaithe
Nios Iu na 20,000 1 1
20,000 - 29,999 25 26
30,000 - 39,999 17 17
40,000 - 49,999 1 1
50,000 - 59,999 3 3
60,000 - 69,999 2 2
49 50
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AGUISIN 1 - TAIRGEACHT LE
hAIS SPRIOCANNA

TOSAIOCHTAI, CUSPOIRI
AGUS SPRIOCANNA IN 2020

Tosaiocht Straitéiseach 1

A chinntiu go gcuirtear na tosaiochtai agus luachanna ata i bPlean Straitéiseach
Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna chun cinn mar chuid de ghnathchursa gno na
Gniomhaireachta, go hairithe chomh fada agus a bhaineann sé le baill foirne,
croi-oibriochtai agus leis na caidrimh ata againn.

Is aidhm le Tosaiocht Chorparaideach 1inniulacht na Gniomhaireachta bheith ag obair go
straitéiseach, go héifeachtuil agus go sofhreagrach a mhéadu maidir le polasaithe agus pairtithe
leasmhara, agus na caidrimh agus an chumarsaid is ga a threisiu le go mbeidh an Ghniomhaireacht
in ann a feidhmeanna a chomhlionadh le agus an oiread tionchair agus is féidir aimirt.
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Cuspoir Gno Priomhghniomhaiochtai Spriocanna Seachadta

Eochairthascairi le haghaidh
sholathar na Treorach
Straitéisi, corpraithe le
socruithe monatoireachta

1 .1 Tacar de theimpléid EE EULT bhfeidhm an
Phlean Chorparaidigh agus

Creat feidhmiochta a fhorbairt = chorparaideacha agus .
nasctha le cur i bhfeidhm an tuairiscithe a fhorbairt le tacile 2" L2 (e, (€2
Phlean Chorparaidigh agus an creat feidhmiochta.

Phlean Bhliantuil GNno. Ta bainistiocht agus maolu

riosca agus fite fuaite i
gcur i bhfeidhm an Phlean
Chorparaidigh agus an
Phlean Ghno

Faigheann gach ball foirne
ionduchtu i mbainstiu riosca
mar uirlis ghno. R4.

Léirionn clair oibre na
bhfoirne uile go bhfuil

cur chuige struchturtha

ann maidir le baoil do

londuchtu agus oilidint don
1 2 fhoireann i mbainistiu riosca mar

uirlis ghné / uirlis bhainistiochta
chliste.

Cuirtear clair oibre i bhfeidhm
ag gach leibhéal rialaithe

Struchtur a chur i bhfeidhm
le monatdireacht a dhéanamh
ar riosca, agus le go mbeidh
bainistiocht comhthaite le d'fhonn tuairisciti. maoli aqus ghniomhaiochtai agus
proisis rialaithe, bainistithe line e : AU tionscadail ghno a chlaru
) athbhreithniu ar riosca a leiriu. e r
agus forbartha foirne. agus a athbhreithniu.
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Aschur mar thoradh
ar Sheachadadh na
Spriocanna

Creat monatoireachta
agus measunaithe

a usaideann eolas
cainniochtuil agus
cailiochtuil a bheith
forbartha agus neadaithe
i gcroi an ghno, i
maoirseacht foirne agus
sna gniomhaiochtai uile a
bhaineann le teagmhail le
pairtithe leasmhara.

Ta oiliuint faighte ag an
fhoireann agus tuigeann
siad cad € mar is féidir
leo cur leis an obair agus
tacaitear leo cur le Treoir
Straitéiseach fhoriomlan
na Gniomhaireachta.

Proisis éifeachtacha
bainistithe riosca a
bheith i bhfeidhm

mar bhunchloch le
seachadadh an Phlean
Chorparaidigh agus an
Phlean Gné, agus le gur

féidir rioscai a aithint agus

a mhaolu go luath.

Stiurthoiri Freagracha

POF agus gach Stiurthoir.

POF agus gach Stiurthoir.
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Uasdatu

Ta Creat Feidhmiochta curtha

i bhfeidhm go rathuil i ngach
Stiurthoireacht. Ta na Tuairisci in
usaid leis an POF agus an Bord

a chur ar an eolas faoi dhul chun
cinn le hais cuspoiri gno.

Ta oilivint ar an chreat nua
curthai gcrich ag na baill foirne
chui uile.

Coinniodh coras éifeachtach
bainistithe riosca ag dul i rith na
bliana. Ta athbhreithniu iomlan
ar an Chlar Rioscai sceidealaithe
in R1 2021.

19



Tosaiocht Straitéiseach 2

Leanacht lena bheith ag coinneail, ag forbairt agus ag cur chun cinn bonn fianaise cruinn
eolaiochta a sholathraionn sonrai agus eolas ata mar thaca agus mar fhoinse eolais do
chroi-oibriochtai agus oibriochtai reachtula na Gniomhaireachta, agus san am céanna rol na
Gniomhaireachta mar chaomhnoir eolas tabhachtach eolaiochta a chur chun cinn.

Bionn laidreacht na Gniomhaireachta ag brath ar laidreacht na reachtaiochta atd mar thaca Iéi
agus ar laidreacht na n-acmhainni ata aici leis an reachtaiocht a fhorfheidhmiu.

Oibreoimid i gcomhar lenar Ranna Coimirciochta lena chinntit go bhfuil reachtaiocht iascach agus
chomhshaoil ann a ligfidh don Ghniomhaireacht a dualgais reachtula a chomhlionadh.

Cuspoir Gno Priomhghniomhaiochtai

2 1 Coras bainistiochta fianaise a
. fhail agus socruithe gabhala

Uasghradu an chorais == )
9 sonrai a imeascadh leis.

bhainistiochta fianaise.

2.2

Usaid bogearrai moéibileacha Oilivint agus tacaiocht do bhaill
ascanta a neadu agus a chinntit  foirne a usaideann bogearrai
go bhfuil sé déanta de réir moibileacha.

ceanglais slandala agus cosanta

sonrai.

Spriocanna Seachadta

Tus a bheith curtha leis

an choras a fhail agus
sceidealu a bheith déanta.
R1.

Tus a bheith curthale
socruithe seachadta an
tionscadail agus tuairisciu
ar dhul chun cinn. R1.

An data a rachaidh an coras
beo a bheith sceidealaithe
agus an coras nua a bheith
go hiomlan i bhfeidhm

agus imeasctha faoin
spriocdhata. R4.

Usaid na mbogearrai a bheith go
hiomlan neadaithe i gcleachtais
na Gniomhaireachta. R4.
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Aschur mar thoradh
ar Sheachadadh na
Spriocanna

Déantar sonrai a bhailiu
ar bhonn fior-ama agus a

chur i dtoll le chéile de reéir

na reachtaiochta cosanta
sonrai.

Gabhtar sonrai ar bhonn
fior-ama agus cuirtear le
chéile iad agus déantar

Stiurthoiri Freagracha

Stiurthoir Caomhnaithe agus
Cosanta

An Stiurthoir Caomh-noireachta

bainistiocht orthu d'fhonn agus Cosanta

cailiocht agus slandail na
sonrai a chinntiu.

Uasdatu

Ta céras nua digiteach le
gabhalacha a chlaru tugtha
isteach agus coras nua clibeala
barrachéid imeasctha leis.

Ta trealamh nua fisiciil le
fianaise a storail agus a logu
ceannaithe agus réidh le husaid.
Ta céras nua digiteach le
fianaise fise agus ghrian-
ghrafadoireachta a chlaru agus
a bhainistiu tugtha isteach.

D'aistrigh an Ghniomhaireacht
6 aonaid GPS Trimble a usaid

le sonrai a bhailiu allamuigh go
bogearrai ESRI a usaid mar aip
ar ghuthain na Gniomhaireachta
agus go haipeanna moibileacha
gréasain a thugann rochtain ar
na sonrai do bhaill foirne.
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Cuspoir Gno

24

Roghanna forbartha, lena
n-airitear suiomh agus pleanail

do staisiun comhairimh na Finne.

Solathar inbhuanaithe uisce do
na linnte slatiascaireachta ag an
Cheanncheathru a fhiosru.

2.5

Suirbhéireacht ar ghnathoga de
réir fluirse iasc og.

Priomhghniomhaiochtai

Paipéar roghanna a ullmhu
agus a mheasunu maidir le
suiomh agus pleanail staisiun
comhairimh na Finne de réir na
bpolasaithe abhartha pleanala
ceantair agus reachtaiochta
cosanta comhshaoil.

Bileog faisnéise a ullmhu
faoin solathar uisce do linnte
slatiascaireachta ag an
Cheanncheathru.

Anailis ar leibhéil na n-iasc 6g.

Suirbhéireacht ar ghnathoga
a dhéanamh agus tuairisc a

thabhairt faoi na torthai / anailis

a dhéanamh orthu.

Spriocanna Seachadta

PPaipéar roghanna faoi
phleanail a bheith curtha faoi
bhraid an Bhoird. R4.

Faisnéis a thabhairt

faoi sholathar uisce
inbhuanaithe faoi choinne
na linnte slatiascaireachta.
Saincheisteanna tabhachtacha
abhartha i gcomhthéacs an
Athbhreithnithe Straitéisigh
ar Shlatiascaireacht a
bheith tugtha san aireamh
san fhaisnéis a thabharfar
(Tosaiocht 3). R4.

Forléargas a bheith tugtha
ar leibhéil na n-iasc 6g

sna corais uile a bhfuil an
Ghniomhaireacht freagrach
astu. R2.

Sceideal de shuirbhéanna
tosaiochta a bheith
comhaontaithe agus
aitheanta. R1.

Tus / Crioch a bheith curtha
le tuairisc ar thorthai na
suirbhéanna. R4.
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Aschur mar thoradh
ar Sheachadadh na
Spriocanna

Scopail déanta 6 thaobh
na riachtanas uile
pleanala, comhshaoil
agus corparaideacha

ar ghniomhaiochtai
féidearthaidtacale
staisiun ar an Fhinn agus
linnte slatiascaireachta
ag an Cheanncheathru a
fhorbairt.

Ta obair
Chaomhnoireachta
agus Chosanta amach
anseo bunaithe ar eolas
on tsuirbhéireacht ar
ghnathoga.

Stiurthoiri Freagracha

An Stiurthoir Caomh-noireachta
agus Cosanta, An Stiurthoir
Forbartha agus an Stiurthoir
Seirbhisi Corp-araideacha

An Stiurthoir Caomh-noireachta
agus Cosanta

Uasdatu

Measunu ar riosca tuilte déanta
de réir na reachtaiochta cosanta
comhshaoil

Fiosruithe déanta, measunu
agus in-house assessment and
breithmheas ar roghanna curtha
i gcrich.

Déanfaidh SMT measunu ar na
roghanna agus leanfar leis na
roghanna is fearr in 2021.

Ta anailis déanta ar leibhéil
na n-iasc 6g agus ta an
tsuirbhéireacht ar ghnathoga
e CETNER

Ta an Ghniomhaireacht in ann
cinnti faoin pholasai bainistithe
iascach a dhéanamh bunaithe ar
na sonrai.
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Cuspoir Gno

2.7

Athbhreithniu a dhéanamh ar an
fheidhm eolaiochta / taighde le
cur chuige straitéiseach as seo
ar aghaidh.

2.8

Measunu stoic maidir le hoisri
duchasacha Loch Feabhail,
monatoireacht bheantach agus
monatoireacht ar éiceachorais,
gniomhaiochtai sceite /
gniomhaiochtai socraithe agus
ceangailte na ndébhlaoscach
od leis an tsubstrait, anailis ar
shonrai faoi éisc tugthaii dtir.

Priomhghniomhaiochtai

Athbhreithniu a dhéanamh
ar an fheidhm eolaiochta
d'fhonn straitéis a fhorbairt a
chuimsionn taighde, anailis agus
measunu eolaiochta i dtaca

le hiascaigh, d'fhonn Polasai
Bainistithe lascach a cheapadh
ata oiriunach le dul i ngleic go
rathuil le saincheisteanna aitiula
agus domhanda comhshaoil
amach anseo.

Gnathmheasunuithe

stoic, gniomhaiochtai
monatoireachta, agus anailis ar
shonrai.

Dha mheasunu stoic a
dhéanambh ar oisri duchasacha i
Loch Feabhail.

Monatoéireacht bhliantuil
bheantach agus ar éiceachoérais
achurigcrich.

Monatoireacht ar
ghniomhaiocht sceite oisri
agus ar shocru agus ceangal
débhlaoscach og leis an
tsubstrait.

Anailis ar shonrai faoi éisc a
thugtar i dtir.
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Spriocanna Seachadta

Athbhreithniu a bheith
déanta ar an fheidhm
eolaiochta agus taighde
agus priomhthosaiochtai a
bheith curtha i lathair agus
curtha i bhfeidhm. R4.

Sceideal measunuithe agus
socruithe monatoireachta a
bheith déanta. R1.

Measunuithe agus
monatoireacht a bheith a
gcur i bhfeidhm. R1 and R2.

Sonrai a bheith ar fail ar
bhonn sceidealaithe 6 na
gniomhaiochtai uile thuas.



Aschur mar thoradh

ar Sheachadadh na Stiurthoiri Freagracha Uasdatu
Spriocanna

Ta cur chuige athnuaite,
éifeachtach ag an

Ghniomhaireacht i leith rol Cuirfear tus le bonnathru ar
fheidhm na heolaiochta fheidhm na heolaiochta in
maidir le gniomhaiochtai 2021. Ta an post mar Cheann na
eile ashocru, agusileith POF hEolaiochta le lionadh i mi an

rél na Gniomhaireachta Mharta 2021 i ndiaidh proiseas
mar chomhlacht éascaithe earcaiochta ar cuireadh tus leis i
do thaighde praitice mi na Nollag 2020.

(feidhmiuil) priomhuil agus
tanaisteach.

Ta suirbhéanna an earraigh agus
an fhémhair ar oisri duchasacha
déanta.

Cuireadh monatoireacht
bheantach agus aimsiu limistéir
fhoirsteanacha faoi choinne
obair ghnathdige i gcrich

le linn do shuirbhéanna ar

oisri duchasacha a bheith a
ndéanamh.

Leanfar ar aghaidh le bailiu

sonrai ar oisri duchasacha

Loch Feabhail, a bheidh Stiurthoir Dobhar-shaothraithe
mar bhunus le hobair agus Sliogiascach
chaomhnoireachta,

chosanta agus forbartha. Sliereln el el

sceitheadh i gcrich i mi
Mheithimh 2020.

Criochnofar an anailis ar shonrai
faoi éisc a tugadh i dtir nuair a
dhruidfidh iascaith 2020/21 ar
an 31U Marta 2021.
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Tosaiocht Straitéiseach 3

Acmhainni nadurtha na ndobharcheantar ata faoi churam reachtuil Ghniomhaireacht na
Lochanna a fhorbairt, a chur chun cinn agus a chothabhail tri chaomhnoireacht, feabhsu

cailiochta, cosaint speiceas agus gnathog, oideachas agus feasacht, obair chomhphairtiochta
agus rochtain inbhuanaithe ar ar n-acmhainni nadurtha.

Cuspoir Gno

3.1

Athbhreithniu cuimsitheach ar
reachtaiocht lena chinntiu gur
féidir leis an Ghniomhaireacht
tarraingt ar reachtaiocht ata
foirsteanach do chomhlionadh
a dualgas aici i dtimpeallacht
athraitheach.

3.2

Seachadadh leanunach
na bhfeidhmeanna
forfheidhmithe.

3.5

Athbhreithniu straitéiseach

agus lascach.

ar Fhorbairt Slatiascaireachta

Priomhghniomhaiochtai

Paipéar seasaimh ar
athbhreithniu rialala a
dhéanamh.

Teagmhail a dhéanamh leis

na Ranna Coimirciochta

agus le pairtithe leasmhara
reachtula eile le hathbhreithniu
cuimsitheach ar reachtaiocht a
thionschamh.

Plean bliantuil forfheidhmithe a
dhéanamh.

Athbhreithniu straitéiseach a
dhéanambh, lena n-airitear roél
agus tosaiochtai straitéiseacha
na Gniomhaireachta a shui, agus
tosaiochtai oibriochtula a aithint.
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Spriocanna Seachadta

Paipéar seasaimh a bheith
déanta agus curtha faoi braid
na Ranna Coimirciochta agus
an Bhoird. R4.

Plean Forfheidhmithe a
bheith i bhfeidhm agus
uasdatu rialta a bheith déanta
air bunaithe ar eolas aitiuil.
R4.

Téarmai Tagartha a bheith
dréachtaithe. R1.

Tus a bheith curtha le
hathbhreithniu. R4.



Féachann an Ghniomhaireacht lena chinntit go gcosnofar agus go gcaomhnoéfar Ceantair Loch
Feabhail agus Loch Cairlinn ar mhaithe leis an ghluin seo agus leis na gluine a thiocfaidh inar
ndiaidh. Aithnimid an tabhacht ata le hoideachas agus obair for-rochtana le haird a tharraingt
ar na dushlain chomhshaoil a bhaineann leis na hacmhainni nadurtha uathula ata faoi churam na

Gniomhaireachta.

Aschur mar thoradh
ar Sheachadadh na
Spriocanna

Forléargas cuimsitheach
ar an athchoiriu
reachtaiochta ata de
dhith le gur féidir leis

an Ghniomhaireacht a
feidhmeanna reachtula
a chomhlionadh a chur i
lathair agus a chur iniiul.

80% de na dualgais
forfheidhmithe a bheith
dirithe agus forfheidhmiu
beartaithe a bheith ann.

Fianaise ardchaighdeain
bailithe ag Oifigigh
lascach na
Gniomhaireachta agus i
curtha ar fail mar thaca
leis na feidhmeanna

reachtula forfheidhmithe.

Ta athbhreithniu
straitéiseach ar fhorbairt
na slatiascaireachta agus
iascach déanta.

Beidh an t-athbhreithniu
seo san aireamh

agus Pleananna Gno

a ndéanamh amach
anseo agus cuideoidh

sé obair forbartha na
Ghniomhaireachta maidir
le slatiascaireacht a
threoru agus a dhiriu.

Stiurthoiri Freagracha

An Stiurthoir Caomh-noireachta
agus Cosanta

An Stiurthoir Caomh-noireachta
agus Cosanta agus an Stiurthoir
Seirbhisi Corp-araideacha

An Stiurthoir Dobhar-
shaothraithe agus Sliogiascach
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Uasdatu

Ta dréachtphaipéar seasaimh
déantai ndiaidh proéiseas fada
inmheanach comhairliuchain.

Déanfar teagmhail leis na Ranna
Coimirciochta agus le Pairtithe
Leasmhara in 2021/22.

Lean baill foirne
Caomhnoireachta agus
Cosanta le seachadadh a
ndualgas forfheidhmithe le
linn 2020 de réir srianta rialtais
agus treoirlinte Slainte agus
Sabhailteachta.

D’éirigh leis an Ghniomhaireacht
a bhfuil sa Phlean
Forfheidhmithe bliantuil a
sheachadadh.

Ta Téarmai Tagartha
dréachtaithe; ta tus le cur

le taighde deisce agus le
teagmbhail le pairtithe leasmhara
in R12021.



Cuspoir Gné

Priomhghniomhaiochtai

Leanuint le haimsiu limistéar
ata foirsteanach faoi choinne
athchuir / feabhsuchain agus

Spriocanna Seachadta

Na tosaiochtai tionscadail
uile sna pleananna reatha
tionscadail a bheith curthaii

faoi choinne linnte féideartha bhfeidhm de réir sceidil.
inar féidir le débhlaoscaigh 6ga
socru. Tuairisci a bheith

tugthaii rith na bliana
faoin chaighdean um

inrianaitheacht tairgi.

3.4

Stadas comhshaoil agus soch-
eacnamaiochta lascach Oisri
Duchasacha Loch Feabhail a
fheabhsu.

Fiosru a dhéanamh maidir leis

na féidearthachtai an margadh
intire a fhorbairt agus caighdean
um inrianaitheacht tairgi a Cur i lathair a bheith
thabhairt isteach i dtaca le hoisri déanta don Bhord
duchasacha Loch Feabhail. faoin chaighdean um
Leanuint le teagmhail le inrianaitheacht tairgi agus
Tionscadal SAFER (Cnuasaigh faoin iascach oisri go
Chliste Bia Mara Atlantaigh. foriomlan. R4.

Pleananna agus sceideal
do Chlar Ambasaddiri an
Fheabhail agus Chairlinn a
bheith i bhfeidhm. R2.

Clar Ambasadoiri an Fheabhail
agus Chairlinn a sheachadadh.

Tus a bheith curtha ag
Ambasadoiri faoi oiliuint
lena ngniomhartha. R2.

3.5

Clair oideachais agus
for-rochtana ar fud na
Gniomhaireachta le tacaiocht
ionchuir theicniuil.

Maoiniu breise a bheith
lorgtha - tuairisci raithiula
ar an phroiseas seo a bheith
déanta. Ar lean in R1.
Samhail a bheith ceaptha
agus togtha. R4.

Proisis samhaltu aibhneacha a
fhorbairt.
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Aschur mar thoradh
ar Sheachadadh na
Spriocanna

Stiurthoiri Freagracha

Na torthai uile a bhaineann
le gach tionscadal
seachadta de réir an
sceidil chomhaontaithe.

An Stiurthoir Dobhar-
shaothraithe agus Sliogiascach

Gach clar seachadta
de réir an sceidil
chomhaontaithe.

An Stiurthoir Forbartha

An clar curthaigcrichgo
rathuil ag 80 Ambasadoir
nua.

An tsamhail in usaid le clair
oideachais a fheabhsu.

Uasdatu

Aimsiodh limistéir
fhoirsteanacha faoi
choinne obair ghnathoige
le linn suirbhéireachtai oisri
duchasacha.

Rinneadh trialacha rathula ar
chlibeanna barrachoid san
lascach Oisri Duchasacha i
séasur 2019/2020.

Chuir an fhoireann SAFER 6
Chombhairle Chathair Dhoire
agus Cheantar an tSratha Bain,
Food NI agus Gniomhaireacht na
Lochanna tuarascail i gcrich faoi
thionscadal taighde margaidh
maidir le hoisri duchasacha.

Forbraiodh Clar Ambasadairi
an Fheabhail agus Chairlinn
agus cuireadh tus leis, ach nior
criochnaiodh é mar gheall ar
shrianta COVID-19.

Ta an tsambhail aibhneacha
forbartha agus ta an trealamh
curtha ar fail.

Beidh an tsamhail in usaid
mar chuid de chlair for-
rochtana agus oideachais na
Gniomhaireachta.
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Cuspoir Gno Priomhghniomhaiochtai Spriocanna Seachadta

Téarmai Tagartha /
modheolaiocht a bheith
comhaontaithe. R1.

Téarmai Tagartha a bhunu
faoi choinne athbhreithniu

3 7 straitéiseach ar rol na
. Gniomhaireachtai gcomhthéacs . . .
Athbhreithnii a dhéanamh na hearnala turasoireachta Tusa bh.elth_clzurth_a Ie|§ an

. h . . . athbhreithniu faoi dheireadh
ar dhualgais reachtula na muiri trasteorann agus Thuaidh/ R2
Gniomhaireachta maidir le Theas. :
forbairt turasoireachta muiri. Tus a chur leis an athbhreithniu

Athbhreithniu a bheith déanta

de reir na dTéarmai Tagartha. ar na réamhthorthai. R4.

Plean tionscadail agus cursai
airgeadais a bheith dearbhaithe

3 . 8 Costail mhionsonraithe ar na faoi dheireadh R1.

Uasghradu ar an eispéireas hoibreacha ata molta le tacu le
Riverwatch do chuairteoiri, lena nualacht in Riverwatch.
n-airitear gnéithe nua nualacha.

Tus a bheith curtha leis na
hoibreacha agus iad a bheith
criochnaithe faoi dheireadh R4.

Na socruithe pleanala
agus feidhmithe uile a
bheith curthailathair,

Plean, buiséad, ionad agus comhaontaithe agus

liosta toscairia chomhaontu. curthaibhfeidhm de réir
sceideal comhaontaithe.

Abhar oideachasuil a Plean tionscadail a bheith i
chomhaontu agus clair bhfeidhm. R1.
3 _‘I 0 for-rochtana oideachais a '
Bliain Idirnaisiunta na mBradan, sheachadadh. Cgmar.sald a bhalnealnn
comhdhail oige, a sholathar. s , leis an !meacht 2 bhe'th,
Clar imeachtai don beartaithe agus curthaii
chomhdhail a cheapadh agus bhfeidhm. R2.
a sheachadadh.

160 mac léinn a bheith i
lathair ag an Chomhdhail
agus coimre ar abhar

na Comhdhala a bheith
foilsithe ar line. R4.



Aschur mar thoradh

ar Sheachadadh na Stiurthoiri Freagracha Uasdatu
Spriocanna

Athbhreithniu

cuimsitheach ar

dhualgais reachtula na

Gniomhaireachta maidir

le forbairt turasoireachta

muiri déanta. Ta Téarmai Tagartha don
e athbhreithniu socraithe agus ta

Déanfar cur i ngniomh na S ST ORI an buntaighde deisce déanta

dtorthai comhaontaithe agus ta buneolas bailithe.

a fhorbairt mar straiteis

agus plean seachadta

mar chuid de Phlean

Chorparaideach 2020 -
2022.

Nior éirigh le hiarratas ar
Feabhas ar an eispéireas dheontas turasoireachta
do chuairteoiri ar agus déanfar measunu ar an
Riverwatch agus ar tionscadal in 2021 lena chinntiu
thionchar na suitean An Stiurthoir Forbartha go bhfuil gach gné den nualacht
Riverwatch ar an tugtha san aireamh.
fhoghlaim. Méadu ar lion
na gcuairteoiri. Cuirfear atus le hobair

thionscadail in 2022.

Athraiodh focas an tionscadail
seo i mi Mharta 2020 mar

Beidh teagmbhail gheall ar an phaindéim
fhiuntachannle 6 An Stiurthoir Dobhar- COVID-19 mar niorbh fheidir
scoil i gceantair an shaothraithe agus an chomhdhail a dhéanamh
Fheabhail agus Chairlinn Sliogiascach agus an beo. D'oibrigh an fhoireann
mar thoradh ar an Stiurthoir Forbartha ar chlar le linn 2020 faoi
Chomhdhail um Bradain. choinne Ambasadoiri Bradan

a dhéanamh in 2021 mar ais ar
line ar Google Classroom.



Tosaiocht Straitéiseach 4

Gniomhaireacht na Lochanna a athru 6 bhonn tri infheistiocht sna daoine ata linn tri chumas
agus eifeachtulacht ar bhfoirne a ardu; tri eagras ata cumasaithe go digiteach a chruthu trinar
gcorais a uasghradu; trinar gcultur maidir le cinnti fianaisebhunaithe a dhéanamh agus a
phleanail a neartu tri léargais nua a lorg le hathléimneacht chorparaideach a chruthu.

Mar eagras, bimid ag idirghniomh le réimse leathan pairtithe leasmhara, le Comhlachtai Rialtais
gaolmhara eile, le hudarais aitiula agus le pobail aitiula. In 2020, lean muid de bheith ag cur lenar
gclu mar chomhphairti a bhfuil meas orainn agus iontaoibh asainn ar féidir leis comhfhiseanna

a fhiord maidir le bainistiu na hinfheistiochta i ndaoine agus in diteanna le héifeacht barrmhaith
agus de réir Threoir Straitéiseach na Gniomhaireachta.

Cuspoir Gno Priomhghniomhaiochtai Spriocanna Seachadta

Straitéis agus Plean Cumarsaide
inmheanach agus seachtrach
araon a fhorbairt agus socruithe
a chur i bhfeidhm le gur
féidir iad a sheachadadh go

4 1 héifeachtach.

Athbhreithniu a bheith
déanta ar na socruithe reatha
cumarsaide agus deiseanna
breise a bheith leagtha

Plean Cumarsaide Corparaidi Tacar nua gnathamh agus amach. R2.

a fhorbairt faoi choinne 2020- protacal a fhorbairt a bheidh ag

22, achomhordofar tri oifigan  teacht le modhanna éagsula.

Phriomhfheidhmeannaigh agus

a dtacofar leis tri ghniomhartha Clar teagmhala seachtrai a

sna Stiurthoireachtai uile. fhorbairt bunaithe ar phoibliu
gniomhaiochtai a bhaineann
le croifheidhmeanna na
Gniomhaireachta agus
rannphairtiocht iontu.

Plean nua Straitéiseach um
Chumarsaid Chorparaideach
a bheith forbartha. R4.
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Aschur mar thoradh
ar Sheachadadh na
Spriocanna

Stiurthoiri Freagracha

Cumarsaid straitéiseach,
meéadu ar an lucht
féachana agus
gniomhaiochtai
poibliochta oibriochtula
tugtha le chéile in aon
chreat cumarsaide
nasctha amhain.

Ardu proifile ag an

Ghniomhaireacht mar

phriomh-mhaor ar

aiseanna comhroinnte

tabhachtacha comhshaoil. An Stiurthoir Seirbhisi
Corparaideacha

Freagraionn an

Ghniomhaireacht go

forghniomhach ar bhonn

imeasctha agus ar bhonn

trathuil ar dheiseanna

cumarsaide straitéisi

agus bionn cuir chuige

ata cothrom le datain

usaid maidir le laithreacht

ar na meain shoisialta

agus proifiliu sna meain

thraidisiunta.

Uasdatu

Rinneadh Athbhreithniu
inmheanach ar Chumarsaid
aleirigh goraibh gale
hAthbhreithniu seachtrach ar
Chumarsaid le tacaiocht 6n
Bhord.

Tugadh proiseas tairisceana
chun criche i mi na Samhna
2020 agus cuirfear tus le
hathbhreithniu seachtrach i mi
Eanair 2021.
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Cuspoir Gno

" W

Aiseanna coiriochta, an
bonneagar TF agus socmhainni
reatha a fheabhsu agus a
chothabhail tri chothabhail,
athchaoiriu agus athsholathar de
réir mar is cui.

4.5

Tacu le seachadadh cuspoiri gno
Ghniomhaireacht na Lochanna
tri Straitéis Foghlama agus
Forbartha tri bliana.

Priomhghniomhaiochtai

Tus a chur le feithicli
leictreacha a thabhairt isteach
go hincriminteach: astuithe
carboin, leibhéil torainn agus
costais fadsaoil feithicli flit a
laghdu.

Tus a chur le clar athchoirithe

i dtaca le coiriocht na
ceanncheathrun agus na bearta
ata i gceéad bhliain an chlair a
chur i bhfeidhm.

Raiteas inbhuanaitheachta

a chur san aireamh maidir le
gach tionscadal a bhfuil abhair,
fuinneamh agus bainistiu
dramhaiolai gceist leis.

Anailis ar riachtanais oiliuna
agus forbartha foirne.

Straitéis Foghlama agus
Forbartha a cheapadh.

Clar oiliuna foirne a thionschnamh

agus a chur i bhfeidhm. R1.

Sambhail measunaithe foirne a
fhorbairt a chludoidh forbairt
phearsanta agus ghairmiuil agus
follaine na mball foirne.

Spriocanna Seachadta

Plean a bheith comhaontaithe
agus a chur i bhfeidhm maidir
le feithicli leictreacha a
thabhairt isteach. R2.

Gniomhaiochtai a bheith idir
lamha a bhaineann leis an
chlar athchoirithe coiriochta
agus a bhaineann usaid as
spas ata ann cheana féin nach
bhfuil in usaid. R3.

Gniomhaiochtai 2020
faoin Straitéis Foghlama
agus Forbartha a bheith
dearbhaithe. R1.

Bunchlar oiliuna a bheith i
bhfeidhm agus sceidealaithe.
R1.

Sambhail measunaithe foirne
a bheith comhaontaithe agus
curtha i bhfeidhm ag gach
leibhéal sa Ghniomhaireacht.
R4.
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Aschur mar thoradh
ar Sheachadadh na
Spriocanna

Clar cuimsitheach
cothabhala, athchoirithe
agus athsholathair
leanunaigh bunaithe.
Mar gheall air sin, na
haiseanna, an bonneagar
TF agus na socmhainni
reatha feabhsaithe

agus cothaithe, agus
riachtanais réamh-
mheasta sa todhchai agus
riachtanais a thiocfaidh
chun solais i dtaca leis na
réimsi sin ar fad glactha
san aireamh.

An Stiurthoir Seirbhisi
Corparaideacha

Cultdr bunaithe i dtaca

le forbairt foirne agus an

fhoireann spreagtha lena

bhforbairt phearsanta

agus ghairmiuil féin a

fhorbairt le tacaiocht on  An Stiurthoir Seirbhisi
fhoireann bhainistiochta, Corparaideacha
agus dothain aiseanna

ar fail le freastal ar

riachtanais forbartha

aitheanta a thagann le

riachtanais ghno.

Stiurthoiri Freagracha

Uasdatu

Cheannaigh an Ghniomhaireacht
a céad fheithicil leictreach i mi
an Mharta 2020.

Ta an bunchlar oibreacha
athchoirithe ar an
Cheanncheathru aitheanta. Ta
oibreacha suntasacha togala
le coiriocht bhreise oifige a
chruthu déantai bpairt.
Déantar oibreacha uile na
Gniomhaireachta ar bhealach
inbhuanaithe.

Ta anailis ar riachtanais oiliuna
agus forbartha foirne déanta.

Ta Dréacht-Straitéis Foghlama
agus Forbartha ceaptha.
Rinneadh clar oiliuna foirne a
dhréachtu ach ni fhéadfai é a
chur i bhfeidhm mar gheall ar
phaindéim COVID-19.

Ta samhail measunaithe foirne
comhaontaithe agus curthai
bhfeidhm, ach mar gheall ar
chianobair, ta cur i bhfeidhm
iomlan na samhla curtha siar go
yioyAR
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Foyle, Carlingford and Irish Lights Commission
Loughs Agency

Annual Financial Staments
For the year ended 31st December 2020

Foreword to the Accounts
The Board presents the financial accounts for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Statutory Background

Loughs Agency (the Agency) of the Foyle,
Carlingford and Irish Lights Commission
(FCILC), aNorth South Implementation Body,
inherited the functions and responsibilities of
the Foyle Fisheries Commission with regard
to the conservation, protection, management
and improvement of the fisheries of the

cross border Foyle Area. The FCILC became
operational on 2 December 1999 at which time
the assets and liabilities of the Foyle Fisheries
Commission were transferred to Loughs
Agency.

The FCILC is legislated by the North South
Co-operation (Implementation Bodies)
(Northern Ireland) Order 1999 and the British
Irish Agreement Acts 1999 and 2002. The
Board of the FCILC reports to the North South
Ministerial Council and its government Sponsor
Departments both North and South - the
Department of Agriculture, Environment and
Rural Affairs in the North (DAERA), and the
Department of the Environment, Climate and
Communications in the South (DECC).

The FCILC was to be composed of two
agencies, the Loughs Agency and the Lights
Agency. It was intended that the Lights
Agency, when established, would replace the
Commissioners of Irish Lights as the General
Lighthouse Authority for Ireland. However,
given the complexities that have arisen in terms
of pursuing such a transfer of functions, the
transfer has not taken place. These accounts
deal with the Loughs Agency of the FCILC. The
Lights Agency is not in operational existence.

The accounts have been prepared in

accordance with:

+ A formdirected and approved by
the Department of Finance and the
Department of Public Expenditure and
Reform, as provided for in the Body's
Financial Memorandum; and

* The North South Annual Reports and

Accounts Guidance provided by the
Department of Finance and the Department
of Public Expenditure and Reform.

Business Review
A full review of the Agency's activities is given
in the Annual Report.

Results for the Year

The Agency is jointly funded by DAERA

in the North and DECC in the South (the
Departments). Loughs Agency had a surplus
of £86,703/€97,451 for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019 (restated) deficit of
£393,109/€447,830).

Fixed Assets
Details of the movement in fixed assets are set
outin Note 10 to the Accounts.

Research and Development
Total expenditure on Research and
Development in 2020 was £NIL (2019 - £NIL).

Charitable Donations
The Agency made no charitable donations
during the year.

Business Plan 2020

Loughs Agency’s Business Plan for 2020
(including budget allocation) was approved
by the North South Ministerial Council on 21st
October 2020.

Prior to formal approval contingency
arrangements were put in place by the
Department of Finance in 2017 to ensure the
continuation of service delivery by all the North
South Bodies, while avoiding illegal spend by
Sponsor Departments. These contingency
arrangements provided approval of the
allocation of grants payments by Sponsor
Departments to Bodies, and in the absence
of a Finance Minister in Northern Ireland these
grants were approved by Department of
Finance officials, as permitted under the 1999
Order.

On an ongoing basis, the Agency continues to
monitor its performance against the objectives
and targets as set out in its 2020 Business Plan.
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Board Members

The functions of the Agency are exercised by the Board. The Board monitors and directs
the work of the Agency towards the achievement of objectives set out in the Corporate
and Business Plans, which are approved by the North South Ministerial Council.

The following served as Board Members during the period:

Mr Laurence Arbuckle Chair Appointed 16/12/20

Vice
Chairperson

Mr Michael McCormick Member

Mr Andrew Duncan

Mrs Phil Mahon Member
Mr Terry McWilliams Member Term ended 12/12/20, reappointed 16/12/20
Mr Allan Ewart Member
Mrs Fiona Walsh Member
Mr lan McCrea Member

Mr Patrick Gibbons Member

Mr Alastair Patterson Member

Ms Heather Mackey Member

In the absence of an Executive, the North South Ministerial Council was unable to meet to take a
decision on outstanding Board appointments, and therefore on the appointment of a new Chair
for the Loughs Agency Board. During this time Mr Andrew Duncan who is Vice Chair, took on the
role of Chair, however he officially remained as Vice Chairperson.

On16th December 2020 Mr Laurence Arbuckle was appointed as Chair and Mr Terry McWilliams
was reappointed to the Board, both terms run until December 2025. The Agency is awaiting
the appointment of one Board Member by the North South Ministerial Council to fulfil the full
complement of 12 Members.
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Equal Opportunities

The Agency has continued to promote an
Equal Opportunities Policy which sets out our
commitment to provide employment equality
to all, irrespective of:

* Gender, marital or family status;

* Religious belief or political opinion;

+ Disability;

* Race or ethnic origin;
* Nationality;

*+ Age; and

« Sexual orientation.

Loughs Agency is opposed to all forms of
unlawful and unfair discrimination. The Agency
is committed to treating all staff, or applicants
for employment with dignity and respect,

and will provide a working environment free
from unlawful discrimination, victimisation

or harassment on the grounds of disability.
Our Headquarters is fully compliant with the
requirements of the Disability Discrimination
Act1995.

Equality Scheme

The Agency has an Equality Scheme approved
by the Equality Commission, which meets the
requirements of Section 75 of the Northern
Ireland Act 1998, and is fully committed to
meeting the equality requirements of both
jurisdictions.

Employee Involvement

The core strength and a key resource of the
Agency isits people. The strategic objectives
of the Corporate Plan and Business Plan are
delivered successfully each year through
employee engagement and involvement in
planning and decision-making processes. The
Agency strongly promotes and supports staff
at a professional and personal development
level, to enable them to meet the responsibility
of their individual roles and deliver Agency
wide strategic objectives.

The Agency recognises NIPSA, SIPTU and
UNITE unions for negotiation and consultation
on employee related matters.

Payment to Suppliers
The Agency is committed to the prompt
payment of bills for goods and services

received in accordance with the UK Late
Payment of Commercial Debts (Interest)

Act 1998, as amended and supplemented

by the Late Payment of Commercial Debts
Regulations 2002 and the Irish Late Payments
in Commercial Transactions Regulations 2002.
As appropriate Loughs Agency will also be
bound by any EU Directives on late payment.
Unless otherwise stated in the contract,
payment is due within 30 days of the receipt
of the goods or services, or upon presentation
of a valid invoice or similar demand, whichever
is later. During 2020 89.8%, (2019: 86%) of
bills were paid within 15 days, and 97.4% (2019:
97.8%) within 30 days.

Health and Safety

The Agency is committed to complying with
the Health & Safety at Work (NI) Order 1978,
the Safety, Health and Welfare at Work Act
1989 and to all relevant Health and Safety
legislation. It will continue to strive to provide
and maintain a working environment that is
safe, without undue risk to health and with
adequate facilities and arrangements for
welfare of staff at work. A Health and Safety
Committee has beenin place in the Agency
since 2006.

Freedom of Information and Data

Protection

The Agency is currently exempt from the
Freedom of Information Acts in UK and
Ireland. However, a Code of Practice has been
developed and implemented for all the North
South Implementation Bodies.

The Agency is registered under the Data
Protection Act 1998 with the Office of the
Information Commissioners, and will fully
comply with its obligations under this Act and
its equivalent in Ireland.

The Agency continues to ensure compliance
with the General Data Protection Regulations
(GDPR), implemented in May 2018.

Environmental Regulations

The Agency also follows its obligations under
the UK Environmental Regulations 2004 and
the legislation governing Access to Information
on the Environment in Ireland.
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Future Developments

The Strategic Direction for a New Decade
2020 - 2030 will continue to act as the
overarching context and reference point for
future organisational development. In taking
this Strategic Direction forward the Agency
will focus on our core purpose to oversee

the necessary intergovernmental approach
required to deliver our functions and statutory
remit.

Carlingford Regional Office

2021 will see the Agency move into new
premises in Carlingford. These new
premises will provide 'fit for purpose’ office
accommodation and operational space for
Loughs Agency staff located in the Carlingford
catchment. Ancillary facilities such as a
boatyard, cold room, storage and slipway /
pontoon will allow the Agency to carry out
its operational requirements throughout the
catchment. A foreshore licence attached

to the premises will allow the Agency to
develop facilitates which will provide access
to recreational water activities on the Lough,
supporting delivery of our marine tourism
remit.

The Agency will use the premises to raise local
and national awareness of the environmental
benefits of the catchment, develop marine
tourism and facilitate the delivery of outreach
programmes, encouraging conservation and
protection of Carlingford’s natural resources.

Brexit

Loughs Agency has de facto been operating
on a successful North South basis since 1952,
under the former Foyle Fisheries Commission.
Therefore the UK's Exit from the EU is unlikely
to see fundamental changes to the core work
of the Agency. We will ensure constructive
engagement with our Sponsor Departments
and other agencies on any emerging, diverging
legislative provisions which may impact on

the work of the Agency. We will continue to
adopt a “"business as usual” approach, while
continuing to monitor the situation closely over
the coming months.

External Audit

The Financial Statements are audited by the
Comptroller and Auditor General for Northern
Ireland and the Comptroller and Auditor
Generalin Ireland (C&AGs) in accordance
with the provisions of the North South Co-
operation (Implementation Bodies) (Northern
Ireland) Order 1999, and the British-Irish
Agreement Act 1999.

The C&AGs and the staff of their offices are
wholly independent of the Agency. They
report their findings to the Northern Ireland
Assembly and the Oireachtas.

As Accounting Officer | am required to ensure
that all relevant audit information is provided
to the auditors. | have taken all reasonable
steps to make myself aware of any relevant
audit information and have ensured that all
such information is made available. | confirm
that there is no relevant audit information, of
which | am aware, that the auditors have not
been informed of.

These Accounts have been subject to a formal
audit by the Comptrollers and Auditors
General. The Certificate and Report of the
Comptrollers and Auditors General to the
Northern Ireland Assembly and the Oireachtas
areincluded at pages 147 to 149.

Sharon McMahon
Accounting Officer
14th December 2021

S M Mawen
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Statement of Accountable Person’s
Responsibilities

DAERA and DECC have directed Loughs
Agency to prepare a Statement of Accounts
for each financial year, ended 31 December,
in the form and on the basis set out in

the accounts direction on page 188. The
Accounts are prepared on an accruals basis
and must give a true and fair view of the
Agency's state of affairs at its year end, and
of itsincome and expenditure, changesin
equity and cash flows for the calendar year.

In preparing the accounts, the Agency

is required to:

* Observe the accounts direction issued
by the Sponsor Departments, including
the relevant accounting disclosure
requirements, and apply accounting
policies on a consistent basis;

+ Make judgements and estimateson a
reasonable basis;

+ State whether applicable accounting
standards have been followed and
disclose and explain any material
departuresin the Financial Statements;
and

* Prepare the Financial Statements
on a going concern basis, unlessiitis
inappropriate to presume that the Agency
will continue in operation.

The Designated Officer's responsibilities as
the Accounting Officer of Loughs Agency,
includes responsibility for the propriety and regularity of the public finances, and for the keeping
of proper records, as set out in the Financial Memorandum of the Agency.
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Statement on Internal Control /
Governance Statement

Scope of Responsibility

As the Accounting Officer, | have responsibility
for maintaining a sound system of internal
control, that supports the achievement of
Loughs Agency's policies, aims and objectives,
whilst safeguarding the public funds and
assets for which | am personally responsible, in
accordance with the responsibilities assigned
to me in Managing Public Money Northern
Ireland, North South Implementation Bodies
Annual Report & Accounts Guidance 2017 and
Public Financial Procedures.

A Policy and Resource Framework is in

place which sets out the role and aims of
Loughs Agency, its duties and powers, the
responsibilities of the Chairman, Board

and Chief Executive, and the relationship

with Ministers and Sponsor Departments.

This framework also includes an Oversight

and Governance Agreement with DECC

and a North South Implementation Body
Sponsorship Manual with DAERA. The Agency
also operates within its Financial Memorandum
guidelines, which have been under review
since 2010 by the Finance Departments North
and South. In the interim since March 2013,
Sponsor Departments have agreed that the
Agency should follow the tendering thresholds
used by Construction and Procurement
Delivery (CPD).

The Purpose of the System of Internal

Control

The system of internal control is designed

to managerrisk to a reasonable level rather
than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve
policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore
only provide reasonable, and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of
internal control is based on an ongoing process
designed to identify and prioritise the risks

to the achievement of the Agency'’s policies,
aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood
of those risks being realised and the impact
should they be realised, and to manage them
efficiently, effectively and economically. The
system of internal control, which accords

with the Finance Departments’ guidance, has
beenin place in the Agency for the year ended
31 December 2020 and up to the date of
approval of the Annual Report and Accounts.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The Accounting Officer and Loughs Agency
Board are ultimately accountable for the
effective management of the Agency’s
business, and in particular for ensuring

that there are adequate risk management
arrangements and a sound system of internal
control.

The Agency has developed a Risk Management
Policy, approved by the Board. The Policy

provides a clear framework on how the Agency
will identify, assess, manage and report on risk.

The Agency'’s Risk Management Committee
meet four times during the year. The
Committee, which consists of the Senior
Management Team, is responsible for directing
and implementing the process of managing risk
within the Agency. Appropriate procedures
arein place to ensure the Agency's objectives
and risks are identified. As aresultrisks have
been allocated to the appropriate Risk Owner
and the Agency has defined its risk appetite.

The Agency'’s Audit and Risk Committee,
which currently consists of four Members

of the Agency's Board and one co-opted
Member, met four times in 2020 and reported
to the Board at subsequent Board Meetings.
The Committee provides support, advice

and assurance to the Accounting Officer

and the Board on the strategic processes

for monitoring and managing risk, internal
control and governance systems. At each of
its meetings the Audit and Risk Committee
review the Corporate and Operational Risk
Registers to assess if risks are being managed
effectively, reviewing and challenging the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Agency's
internal controls and risk management
processes.

The staff of the Agency manage risk through
arange of embedded procedures. These
include budgetary and financial controls,
documented systems and procedures around
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processes and activities, delegated authority
limits and appropriate training in areas such
as fraud awareness. The Agency actively
encourages and facilitates cross-directorate
working and training, with the objective of
reducing risk through awareness.

All staff have been issued with Loughs
Agency’s Risk Management Policy. This
document clearly explains the Risk
Management processes in place, and details
the roles and responsibilities of all staff. All
staff are expected to work within Loughs
Agency's policies on Risk Management,

alert management to emerging risks or
control weaknesses, participate fully in

the Risk Management process and assume
responsibility for risks and controls within their
own area of work. The Agency has completed
areview of the Risk Management Policy, and
implemented the recommendations made by
Internal Audit.

The Risk and Control Framework
Loughs Agency's Risk Management Committee
continued to update the Risk Register during
2020 and quarterly reviews and ownership

of risks by Directorates have been ongoing.
The Register identifies the key risks facing
Loughs Agency and these have been
identified, evaluated and graded in relation

to their significance. The grading exercise
uses a combination of impact and likelihood
assessments and was reviewed at each Risk
Management Meeting during 2020. The
outcome of these assessments is used to plan
and allocate resources in order to ensure that
risks are managed to an acceptable level. The
Risk Register further details management's
associated controls and actions required to
mitigate any risks.

The Agency recognises that Risk Management
is an evolving process within the Agency and
has continued to embed the following

in 2020:

* Quarterly reviews of objectives and
assessment of risks undertaken by each
Directorate. The Risk Register is distributed
to the key owners of risks within the
Agency and action points are delivered
from this process;

+ Completion of standard Risk Assessment
forms to ensure risks are recorded in a
structured way and the use of defined
criteria to ensure that risks are evaluated
consistently;

* Inclusion of Risk Management as an agenda
item at each Senior Management Team
(SMT) meeting, to enable the reporting and
review of new risks; the effectiveness of
controls over risks identified; the progress
of action plans; and to facilitate early
corrective action;

+ The Agency's Board operates an Audit and
Risk Committee which meets on a quarterly
basis and Risk Management isincluded as a
standing agenda item; and

+ The Risk Management Policy continued to
be implemented during 2020. Operational
Risk Registers for each Directorate will
remain in place.

Review of Effectiveness

As Accounting Officer, | have responsibility
for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. My review of

the effectiveness of the system of internal
control isinformed by the work of the Internal
Audit units of the Sponsor Departments; the
Senior Management Team within the Agency,
who has responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control
framework; and through comments made by
the External Auditors in their management
letter and other reports. | have been advised
of the implications of the result of my

review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control by the Board and the Audit
and Risk Committee. A process to address
any weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the systemisin place.

The following processes have been established
and are in place for maintaining and reviewing
the effectiveness of the system of governance
and internal control:

+ Regular reviews by management of
financial reports;
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+ The application of arisk-based three year

* A comprehensive budgeting system, which internal audit programme; and
provides SMT and the Board with quarterly
reports; * Inaddition, all Internal Audit reports and
Northern Ireland Audit Office Management
+ The Agency has co-opted a qualified Letter comments were addressed.

Accountant to sit on its Audit and Risk
Committee, with the ability and knowledge  Following the reviews of effectiveness, | am

required to challenge the Financial provided with annual Stewardship Certificates
Statements and accounts; for all four Directorate areas within the Agency.
These Certificates provide me with a number
* Clearly defined capital investment control of assurances that | require to support the
guidelines; comments | make in the Statement on Internal
Control. These Statements provide assurance
* Improved procurement procedures and over the systems that make up the operating
guidelines and appropriate formal project environment of Loughs Agency.

management disciplines in place;

+ Formal Business Cases in place for
expenditure over £5,000 and continued
use of the Agency's Business Case
template;

* Implementing policies on Risk Management
and control;

* The Risk Management Committee
identifies, evaluates, mitigates and
escalates significant risks faced by the
Agency, and documents these through the
Corporate Risk Register;

+ Operational Risk Registers are reviewed
and updated on an ongoing basis. New and
emerging risks are included and existing
risks previously identified are reviewed and
updated as necessary;

+ Senior Managers have been given a
timetable in support of the performance of
the respective reviews of effectiveness;

* Four meetings of the Audit and Risk
Committee took place in 2020, at which the
progress of the Risk Management process
was reviewed;

* An Annual Report of the Audit and Risk
Committee to inform the Accounting
Officer and Chairman of its work during
2020 was provided and considered by the
Board;
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Key Issues

Impact of COVID-19

Delivery of the Business Plan 2020 and the first year of the Corporate Plan 2020-2022 was
disrupted by the global coronavirus COVID-19 pandemic. A small number of activities, targets
and delivery outcomes could not be achieved in 2020 as planned. Statutory Conservation and
Protection functions continued to be delivered successfully throughout the year with additional
Health and Safety measures in place, following government guidance.

The Corporate Risk Register was updated to include COVID-19.

Due to the unexpected pressure on budget performance caused by COVID-19 an impact
assessment on delivery of the Business Plan 2020 was carried out to enable the Agency to
manage budget performance during the ongoing government restrictions.

Internal Audit Report

The 2020 Annual Internal Audit Report gave a satisfactory opinion as to the adequacy of the
internal control environment operating within the Agency. No significant issues were found and a
number of recommendations are being addressed by the Agency.

Business Plans

The NSMC, which has strategic oversight of Loughs Agency, determines the policy and
framework within which the Agency operates. The NSMC is solely responsible for approving the
Agency'’s three year Corporate Plan, Annual Business Plan, including key performance targets,
and budget, through Sectoral Meetings of the NSMC. No such meetings took place in 2017, 2018
or 2019 due to the breakdown of the Northern Ireland Assembly.

Loughs Agency's Corporate Plans 2017-2019 and 2020-22, the 2017, 2018, 2019 and 2020
Business Plans, and budgets, were approved by NSMC on the 21st October 2020. Prior to the
formal approval, Finance Departments had put in place contingency arrangements in relation to
business planning therefore ensuring the Agency spends were not deemed irregular.

S M Moo

Sharon McMahon
Accounting Officer
14th December 2021
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The Certificate of the Comptrollers and Auditors General to the Northern Ireland
Aseembly and Houses of the Oireachtas

Opinion on the accounts

We certify that we have audited the accounts of the Foyle, Carlingford and Irish Lights
Commission (also known as the Loughs Agency) (the Body) for the year ended 31 December
2020 pursuant to the provisions of the North/South Co-operation (Implementation Bodies)
(Northern Ireland) Order 1999 and the British/Irish Agreement Act 1999 which require us to audit
and certify, in co-operation, the accounts presented to us by the Body. The accounts comprise:

* theincome statement;

+ the statement of comprehensive income;

+ the statement of financial position;

+ the statement of cash flows; and,

+ the statement of changesin equity; and

+ therelated notes including significant accounting policies.

These accounts have been prepared under the accounting policies set out within them.
In our opinion, the accounts:

+ give atrue and fair view of the state of the Body's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its
income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

* have been properly prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and the Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) and the accounts direction in the appendix to
the accounts.

Opinion on regularity

In our opinion, the expenditure and income recorded in the accounts have in all material respects
been applied to the purposes intended by the Northern Ireland Assembly and the Houses of the
Oireachtas and the financial transactions reported in the accounts conform to the authorities
which govern them.

Basis for opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the responsibilities of the auditors
section of this certificate. We are independent of the Body in accordance with the ethical
requirements of the Financial Reporting Council's Revised Ethical Standard 2019 and of the Code
of Ethics issued by the International Organisation of Supreme Audit Institutions and have fulfilled
our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinions.
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Information other than the accounts

The Body has presented certain other information together with the accounts. This comprises
the annual report, the foreword to the accounts, the statement on the system of internal control/
governance statement and the remuneration report. Our opinion on the accounts does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the accounts, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
accounts or our knowledge obtained during the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Matters on which we report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which we report if, in our opinion:

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we required for our audit, or

* the accounting records were not sufficient to permit the accounts to be readily and properly
audited, or

+ theaccounts are not in agreement with the accounting records, or

+ the statement on the system of internal control/governance statement does not reflect
compliance with applicable guidance on corporate governance.

Responsibilities of the Body and the Accounting Officer for the accounts

As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities, the Body is responsible for the
preparation of the accounts on the basis of the accounts direction included in the appendix to
the accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The Chief Executive, as
Accounting Officer, is responsible for the propriety and regularity in relation to the use of public
funds.

Responsibilities of the auditors

Our responsibility is to audit the accounts in accordance with the provisions of the North/

South Co-operation (Implementation Bodies) (Northern Ireland) Order 1999 and the British-Irish
Agreement Act 1999 and to report thereon to the Northern Ireland Assembly and the Houses of
the Oireachtas.

Our objective in carrying out the audit is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
accounts as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these accounts.

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. In doing so
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+  Weidentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the accounts whether due to
fraud or error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks; and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

+  We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal controls.

+  We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures.

+  We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, on whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Body's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our report to the related disclosures in the accounts or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Body to
cease to continue as a going concern.

* We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the accounts, including the
disclosures, and whether the accounts represent the underlying transactions and eventsina
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

In addition, we are required to obtain evidence sufficient to give reasonable assurance that
expenditure and income recorded in the financial accounts have been applied to the purposes
intended by the Northern Ireland Assembly and Houses of the Oireachtas and that the financial
transactions recorded in the accounts conform to the authorities which govern them.

K X Er_:i@r Aoy Wi Gelly
Kieran Donnelly Seamus McCarthy
Comptroller and Auditor Comptroller and Auditor General,
General for Ireland
Northern Ireland 3A Mayor Street Upper
Northern Ireland Audit Office Dublin 1
1 Bradford Court Ireland
Galwally DO1PF72
Belfast
BT8 6RB

21st December 2021
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Income Statement

2019 2019
Income restated restated

£Stg €
Revenue grants from Departments 3 4,200,461 3,455,212 4,721,192 3,936,177
Net Deferred Funding for Pensions 14c 1,043,394 807,514 1,172,744 919,920
Other Revenue Grants 4 1,313,730 315,708 1,476,593 359,655
Ordinary income 5 142,721 189,016 160,414 215,327
Capital grants released 13 557,565 415,772 626,686 473,647
Profit on disposal of grant assets 13,015 8,030 14,628 9,148
DAERA Area Enforcement 9,000 7,216 10,115 8,220

7,279,886 5,198,468 8,182,372 5,922,094

Expenditure

Staff costs 6 3,335,608 2,886,452 3,749,123 3,288,246
Other Revenue Grant Expenses 4 1,313,730 315,969 1,476,593 359,952
Programme expenses 7 518,791 383,869 583,105 437,303

Administrative 8 961104 1,055,717 1,080,252 1,202,673

expenses
Currency exchange 27,570 8,025 30,988 9,142
gl::;fit) / loss on sale of fixed as- (6,182) (14,106) (6,948) (16.069)
Depreciation 10 634,543 496,115 713,207 565,174
Interest payable 9 408,019 459,536 458,601 523,503

7,193,183 5,691,677 8,084,921 6,369,924

Operating surplus / (deficit) taken

86,703 (393,109) 97.451 (447,830)
to reserves.

All amounts relate to continuing activities.

The notes on pages 155 to 187 and Appendix 1 form part of these Accounts.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

2019 2019
2020 restated 2020 restated
£Stg £Stg € €

Surplus/(Deficit) on
continuing operations after 86,703 (393,109) 97,451 (447,830)
depreciation

Actuarial (loss)/gain in respect

: 5,161,176 2,026,126) (5,801,007 2,308,163
of pension scheme ( ) ( ) ) ( )
Adjustment for Deferred 5161,176 2026126  5.801,007 2,308,163
pension asset
Unrealised surplus on . 260,000 ) 296,192
revaluation of boats
Total recognised gain/(loss) 86,703 (133.109) 97.451 (151,638)

relating to the year

Reconciliation

Opening Reserves 1,962,026 2,095,135 2,305,969 2,342,151
Vet g e e @) 86,703  (133109) 97,451 (151,638)
relating to the year

D|fferen.ce on currency (124.598) 15,456
translation

Closing Reserves 2,048,729 1,962,026 2,278,822 2,305,969

The notes on pages 155 t0 187 and Appendix 1 form part of these Accounts.
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31st December 2020

2019 2019

2020 restated restated

£Stg £Stg €

Tangible fixed assets 10 5,702,259 5,570,347 6,342,679 6,546,829

Current Assets

Receivables N 419,071 834,567 466,137 980,866
Cash at bank and in hand 879,096 442,562 977,827 520,143
1,298,167 1,277,129 1,443,964 1,501,009

Current Liabilities
Payables 12 971,117 1,113,759 1,080,183 1,309,001
Net Current Assets 327,050 163,370 363,781 192,008

Total Assets less

Current Liabilities 6,029,309 5,733,717 6,706,460 6,738,837
Pension Liability 14 (26,107,212) (19.874,798) (29,039,313) (23,358,850)
Deferred pension funding asset 14 26,107,212 19,874,798 29,039,313 23,358,850

Total Long Term Liabilities

Net Assets 6,029,309 5,733,717 6,706,460 6,738,837

Represented By
Deferred capital grants 13 3,980,580 3,771,691 4,427,638 4,432,868

General reserve 15 339,589 175,906 377,728 206,742
Revaluation reserve 16 1,709,140 1,786,120 1,901,094 2,099,227
Total reserves 2,048,729 1,962,026 2,278,822 2,305,969
Total 6,029,309 5,733,717 6,706,460 6,738,837

The notes on pages 155 to0 187 and Appendix 1 form part of these Accounts.

S M Moo

Sharon McMahon
Accounting Officer
14th December 2021
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Statement of Changes in Equity

2019 2019
2020 2020 restated restated
General Revaluation Total Total Total Total
Fund Reserve Reserves Reserves Reserves Reserves
Note £Stg £Stg £Stg € £Stg €
Balance at 1 175,906 1,786,120 1,962,026 2,305,969  2,095135 2,342,151
January
Surplus/
(Deficit) for the 86,703 - 86,703 97,451 (393,109)  (447,830)
year
Increase in
revaluation 16 - - - 260,000 296,192
reserve

Non Cash
Adjustments

Actuarial (loss)/

gain on pension 14b (5,161,176) - (5,161,176) (5,801,007) (2,026,126) (2,308,163)
scheme

Adjustment

for deferred 5,161,176 - 5161176 5,801,007 2,026,126 2,308,163

pension asset

Movement in
reserves

Transfer
between
reserves

76,980 (76,980) -

Difference
in currency
translation

(124,598) 115,456

Balance at 31

December 339,589

1,709,140 2,048,729

2,278,822 1,962,026 2,305,969

The notes on pages 155 to 187 and Appendix 1 form part of these Accounts.
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Statement of Cash Flows

2019 2019
2020 restated 2020 restated

£Stg £Stg € €

Net cash (outflow)/Inflow from

- ey 17a 417,338  (135,526) 436,108 (126,676)
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments to acquire fixed assets 7o (760,274)  (771,009) (854,525) (878,334)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Capital grants received 17¢ 779,470 798,057 876,101 909,146

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and

. 436,534 (108,478) 457,684  (95,864)
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the

o 442,562 551,040 520,143 616,007
beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the

879,096 442,562 977,827 520,143
end of the year

The notes on pages 155 to0 187 and Appendix 1 form part of these Accounts.
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Notes to the Accounts
1. Accounting Policies

1.a) Basis of Accounting

The Accounts have been prepared in
accordance with the historical cost convention
as modified by the revaluation of land and
buildings fixed assets.

1.b) Statement of Compliance

The Financial Statements of Loughs Agency
for the year ended 31 December 2020 have
been prepared in accordance with Financial
Reporting Standard (FRS) 102, the financial
reporting standard applicable in the UK and
Ireland issued by the Financial Reporting
Council (FRC), as promulgated by Chartered
Accountants Ireland, and are in compliance
with the requirements of the North South
Implementation Bodies Annual Reports and
Accounts Guidance issued by the Department
of Finance and the Department of Public
Expenditure and Reform.

1.c) Significant Judgements and

Estimates

The preparation of the Financial Statements
requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts reported for assets and liabilities,

as at the year-end date and the amounts
reported for revenues and expenses during the
year.

Depreciation and residual values

Asset lives and associated residual values of
all fixed asset classes have been reviewed, in
particular the useful economic life and residual
values of boats and motor vehicles, and it has
been concluded that asset lives and residual
values are appropriate.

Retirement benefit obligation

The assumptions underlying the actuarial
valuations for which the amounts recognised
in the Financial Statements are determined
(including discount rates, inflation rates, rates
of increase in future compensation levels,
mortality rates) are updated annually based
on current economic conditions, and for any
relevant changes to the terms and conditions
of the pension and post-retirement plans.

The assumptions can be affected by:

i. The discount rate, changes in the rate of
return on high quality corporate bonds.

ii. Future compensation levels.

1.d) Fixed Assets and Depreciation
From 1 January 2003 a policy was putin
place whereby only assets (or groups of
assets where appropriate) with costs greater
than £1,000/€1,172 have been capitalised.
Prior to this all items of a capital nature were
capitalised regardless of cost.

Fixed assets (other than land, buildings and
boats) are stated on the Statement of Financial
Position at cost, less depreciation, at annual
rates calculated to write off the cost of the
assets over their estimated useful lives.

On 31 December 2016 boats were revalued by
consulting Marine Engineers and Surveyors
John H Macllwaine & Son. A number of boats
had a Net Book Value lower than the valuation
given, and as such these have been re-lifed in
line with the valuation given.

Land and buildings in Northern Ireland were
revalued by Land & Property Services (LPS)
on 31 December 2016 (previously revalued

on 31 December 2011), and have now been
included in the Financial Statements at the
revalued amounts. LPS collect, process and
manage land and property information, which
underpins the collection of rates, in support
of the Executive’'s commitment to economic
and social development in Northern Ireland.
LPS provides asset valuations for all Northern
Ireland departments and their executive
agencies, all district councils and for a wide
range of non-departmental and statutory
bodies. Valuations of property assets are
included in Financial Statements and used

for resource accounting and budgeting. The
valuations have been carried out in accordance
with accounting guidance issued by the
Department of Finance and the Department of
Public Expenditure and Reform, International
Valuation Standards and the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) Professional -
Valuation Standards.
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Fixed asset additions are depreciated from the month of purchase and depreciation is charged in

year of disposal.

The current rates applied to fixed asset additions are:

Straight line basis:

Land & Buildings, Interpretive centre, Weirs
Plant & Equipment / Computer Equipment
Office Equipment / Fixtures & fittings

Reducing balance:
Motor vehicles

Boats & boating equipment
Assets under construction

1.e) Change in Accounting Estimate

In accordance with its policy, Loughs Agency
reviews the estimated useful lives of its

fixed assets on an ongoing basis. This review
indicated that the actual lives of certain boats
and motor vehicles were longer than the
estimated useful lives used for depreciation
purposes, in the Financial Statements. As
aresult, effective 1 January 2017, Loughs
Agency changed its depreciation of these
assets from straight line to reducing balance,
to better reflect the estimated periods during
which these assets will remain in service.

1.f) Currency

The Agency'’s transactions are effected in
both Sterling and Euro. Sterling is effectively
the Agency's working currency. Transactions
in other currencies are converted to Sterling
at an average of the previous month
exchange rate. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in other currencies are converted
to Sterling at the rates of exchange prevailing
at the year-end date (closing rate). Realised
gains and losses are taken to the Income and
Expenditure Account.

At year end the Financial Statements are
converted into Euro. The Income and
Expenditure is converted using the average
exchange rate for the year, while the
Statement of Financial Position is converted
using the closing exchange rate. The closing
rate for 2020 is £stg: €1.11231 (2019 £stg:
€1.1753). The average rate for 2020 is £stg:
€1.12397 (2019 £stg: €1.1392).

Various
25%
10%

Approx. 33%
21%
NIL until complete

Currency adjustments arising from this
conversion of the Financial Statements are
reflected in all Statement of Financial Position
items and accordingly are disclosed in Fixed
Assets (Note 10), Capital Grants (Note 13),
Pension Scheme (Note 14), General Reserve
(Note 15) and the Revaluation Reserve (Note
16). Central Bank of Europe rates are used. It
should be noted that the results for the year
would be impacted by the changes in foreign
exchange rates since the accounts were signed
which impacts on the translated values.

1.g) Grants from Sponsor Departments
The Agency receives its revenue grant

from monies voted by the Northern Ireland
Assembly and the Houses of the Oireachtas.
The grant is drawn down from its Sponsor
Departments on an equal 50:50 basis, which
funded the principal activities of Loughs
Agency as noted in the Annual Reportin the
current period. Capital expenditure incurred
to acquire fixed assets and investments is
credited to the government grant reserve
from grantin aid received. On disposal of a
tangible fixed asset, or redemption of a fixed
investment, where applicable, the profit

or loss arising is credited or charged to the
Income and Expenditure Account. The balance
remaining on the grant reserve in relation to
the asset disposed of is then transferred to the
Income and Expenditure Account.

1.h) Other Revenue Grants
The Agency incurs expenditure in relation to a
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number of programmes and projects which are
eligible for grant aid. This expenditure includes
amounts paid directly by the Agency and
grants disbursed to Agencies. Grantincome is
recognised in the Financial Statements when
the related expenditure is incurred on the basis
that there is reasonable assurance that Loughs
Agency will comply with conditions attached
to the payment of grants.

1.i) Employee Benefits

The cost of any unused holiday entitlement
is recognised in the period in which the
employees’ services are received.

1.j) Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are
charged to administrative costs on a straight
line basis over the terms of the lease.

1.k) VAT

Loughs Agency is not in a position to reclaim
VAT. VAT is therefore included as expenditure
and where appropriate capitalised in the value
of fixed assets.

1.1) Provisions and Contingent
Liabilities

A provision is made in the accounts which
represents a reliable estimate of probable
settlements, e.g. for legal cases against the
Agency. A contingent liability arises for claims
where there is a possible but not probable
obligation to settle, or areliable monetary
estimate of the obligation cannot be made.
Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the
Statement of Financial Position but disclosed
in a note to the accounts.

1.m) Capital Grants

Grants for capital purposes are credited to
a capital grant reserve and released to the
income statement over the expected useful
lives of the assets. Where grant for capital
purposes is carried over at year end it shall
be recognised as deferred income and only
credited to the capital grant reserve upon
purchase of assets.

2. North/South Pension Scheme
On 1January 2015, the Foyle Fisheries

Commission Pension (Amendment) Scheme
1979 closed and members were transferred to
the North/South Pension Scheme (NSPS).

The NSPS was established by the North
South Implementation Bodies and Tourism
Ireland Limited with effect from 29 April
2005. It is a defined benefit pension scheme
which is funded annually on a pay as you go
basis from monies provided by the UK and
Irish Exchequers. Funding is provided to the
Agency by DAERA in the North and DECC in
the South. The scheme is administered by an
external administrator.

The NSPS consists of a number of sections
with different benefit structures.

The Core Final Salary sectionis a final salary
pension arrangement with benefits modelled
on the Classic section of the Principal Civil
Service Pension Scheme in Northern Ireland.
The scheme provides a pension (eightieths per
year of service), a gratuity or lump sum (three
eightieths per year of service) and spouse’s
and children's pensions. Normal Retirement
Ageis amember’s 60th birthday. Pensionsin
payment (and deferment) increase in line with
general price inflation.

The Core Alpha sectionis a Career Averaged
Revalued Earnings (CARE) pension
arrangement or scheme with benefits
modelled on the Alpha Section of the Principal
Civil Service Pension Scheme in Northern
Ireland. The Scheme provides a pension based
on a percentage (2.32%) of pensionable

pay for each year of active membership (the
pension isincreased at the start of each
scheme year in line with general price inflation)
and spouse’s and children’s pensions. Normal
retirement age is a member's State pension
age in the relevant jurisdiction. In the UK the
State pension age is currently 66. The UK
Government is planning further increases,
which will raise the State pension age from 66
to 67 between 2026 and 2028 and from 67 to
68 between 2044 and 2046.

In Ireland, the State pension age is currently 66.
This was due to rise to 67 from 1 January 2021
and then 68 from 1 January 2028 however, the
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government has deferred this change and a
Pensions Commission has been established to
consider the change to the State pension age,
among other issues such as sustainability and
intergenerational fairness.

Pensions in payment (and deferment) increase
in line with general price inflation.

Most Core section members have benefits

in both the Final Salary and Alpha Sections
and new entrants who joined the Scheme
after 1 April 2015 will, in most cases, become
members of the Core Alpha section.

The liability at 31 December 2020 has been
included in the Financial Statements and a
disclosure note has beenincluded (Note 14)
detailing the actuarial review calculations,
which were carried out by Deloitte Total
Reward and Benefits Limited (appointed 1
July 2016). This includes the results of the
calculations of the pension liabilities and costs
of employees (and ex-employees) of Loughs
Agency for the purposes of the accounts for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Comparative figures for 2019 are also shown.
Pension costs reflect pension benefits earned
by employees in the period. An amount
corresponding to the pension charge is
recognised as income to the extent that it is
recoverable, and offset by grants received

in the year to discharge pension payments.
Pension liabilities represent the present value
of future pension payments earned by staff to
date. Deferred pension funding represents a
corresponding asset, being resources to be
made available in future periods from the UK
and Irish Exchequers in the manner described
above.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes
in actuarial assumptions and from experience
surpluses and deficits are recognised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

The Statement of Financial Position recognises
the cumulative liability for pensions earned by
employees as at the year end, together with a
corresponding asset.
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3. Revenue and Capital Grants from Sponsor Departments

2020

Grants received in year

2019 2019
restated restated

Note £Stg

Department of the Environment,
Climate and Communications 2,238,188
(Grant in Aid)

£Stg €

2,134,688 2,515,656 2,431,836

Department of Agriculture,

Environment and Rural Affairs 2,608,188 2,214,688 2,931,525 2,522,973
(Grant in Aid)
Total 4,846,376 4,349,376 5,447,181 4,954,809

Appropriation of grants received in
year

Capitalised against fixed assets 13 482,915 409,307 542,782 466,283
Deferred grant income 12 163,000 484,857 183,207 552,349
Released to revenue 4,200,461 3,455,212 4,721192 3,936,177

4,846,376 4,349,376 5,447,181 4,954,809

The deviation from the 50:50 funding ratio in 2020 and 2019 is due to the fact that DAERA
provided £370,000 (2019: £80,000) to assist farmers affected by the floods of August 2017.
2019 figures have been restated to defer grant income received and committed but not spent at
31st December (see note 12).
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4. Other Revenue Grants

SEAMONITOR

Ocean

INTERREG VA Tracking Network
SEAMONITOR and European
Tracking

Network

INTERREG INTERREG VA
VA CATCHMENT
SWELL CARE

Revenue Grant
Income

£Stg £Stg

Grant received in

vear refating to LA 3,619 121,464 365,562 8,000

Grant received in

year relating to other - 802,824 -

partners

Safgnrte;:::ab'e - 160,783 89,491 149

S;i’:tyfacre“’ab'e (2,956) (98,315) (136,891) -
663 183,932 1,120,986 8,149

Revenue Grant
Expenditure

Expenditure current

663 183,932 318,162 8,149
year LA
Expenditure prior B . _ B
year
Grant reimbursed to B 802,824 B
other partners

663 183,932 1,120,986 8,149
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2020 2020 2019 2019

INTERREG IZ-LI'EI'FCQIFI{-IENCI;E\I\IIAI' INTERREG VA
VA SWELL SEAMONITOR

Total
CARE

£Stg

498,645 560,462 690 35,900 82,446 119,036 135,606

802,824 902,350

250,423 281,468 2,956 98,315 136,891 238,162 271,314
(238,162) (267,687) (494) (37,982) (3,014) (41,490) (47,265)
1,313,730 1,476,593 3,152 96,233 216,323 315,708 359,655

510,906 574,243 3,152 96,233 216,584 315,969 359,952

802,824 902,350 - - - - -

1,313,730 1,476,593 3,152 96,233 216,584 315,969 359,952
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In 2017, the Agency gained approval of funding
under INTERREG VA for its portion of the
SWELL programme which is a project aimed at
improving water quality in shared transitional
waters, over a 5 year period. The total funding
allocated to this project is €35 million. NI
Water is Lead Partner on this project and the
Agency'’s portion of funding is approximately
€£84,000 over the period.

The Agency is also involved as a Partner

in a project CatchmentCARE whichin

late 2017 secured INTERREG VA funding

of approximately €13.8 million overa 5

year period. This project aims to improve
freshwater quality in cross border river basins.
Lead Partner on this project is Donegal County
Council and the Agency's portion of this
funding is approximately €1.4million over the
period.

A third project, SeaMonitor, in which Loughs
Agency is Lead Partner secured funding

in December 2018 under INTERREG VA of
approximately €4.7 million, over a 4 year

5. Ordinary Income

period. This project aims to develop cross
border capacity for the monitoring and
management of marine protected areas and
species within the region. Loughs Agency's
portion of this funding is approximately €1.7
million over the 4 year period. In 2020 Ocean
Tracking Network (OTN) who are funded by the
Canada Foundation for Innovation provided a
loan of equipment to SeaMonitor. When goods
were received, customs required a payment
of £7,999.83 prior to release of goods.

An agreement was reached with OTN that
SeaMonitor would pay customs and reclaim
charges back from OTN. Equipment is due to
be returned to OTN prior to project end.

Also in 2020, flights had been booked for

a member of SeaMonitor staff to attend
European Tracking Network (ETN) annual
conference which was subsequently cancelled
due to COVID-19. Fortunately ETN has
approved arefund of these costs of £149.

Licence duties 73,744 71,000 82,886 80,883
Fishery rent 2,556 2,556 2,873 2,912

76,300 73,556 85,759 83,795
Fines and costs recovered 1,736 55,463 13,191 63,183
Sundry receipts 54,685 59,997 61,464 68,349

66,421 115,460 74,655 131,532
Total 142,721 189,016 160,414 215,327

Sundry receiptsincludes an amount of £7,148/€8,034 (2019 £4,802 /€5,470) in relation to
amounts charged to EU Project SeaMonitor regarding depreciation of a vehicle used in the
SeaMonitor Project, which is claimable via the Project.
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6. Staff Costs and Board Remuneration

6.a) Staff Numbers
Average monthly employees (full time equivalent) 2020 2019

Senior Management 5 5

Administrative 18 18
Field staff and inspectorate 26 27
Total 49 50

6.b) Staff and Board Costs

2020 2019 2020 2019

£Stg £Stg € €
Gross Salaries 1,985,539 1,950,241 2,231,686 2,221,715
Social security costs 197,103 192,854 221,538 219,699
Employers pension costs 1,019,567 703,362 1,145,962 801,270
Pension Transfer Out 93,036 - 104,569 -
Less Recoupments for Seconded staff (26,638)  (26,638) (29,940) (30,346)
Total staff costs 3,268,607 2,819,819 3,673,815 3,212,338
Board remuneration 62,283 61,884 70,005 70,498
Social security costs 4,718 4,749 5,303 5,410
Total Board costs 67,001 66,633 75,308 75,908

Total Board and staff costs

3,335,608 2,886,452 3,749,123 3,288,246

Pension interest costs are now included separately under interest payable costs, see Notes 9 and
14. In 2020 there was a significant pension transfer out request which was a cost to the Agency,

(Nil'in prior years).

2020 gross salaries include amounts which were recouped for bailiffing services amounting to

£26,638/€29,940 (2019: £26,638/€30,346).
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6.c) Seconded and Temporary Staff

Staff costs above include 2020 2019 2020 2019
the following £Stg £Stg € €
Temporary staff 49,441 32,771 55,570 37,333
Total temporary staff costs 49,441 32,771 55,570 37,333
- 2020 2019 yloylel 2019

Salaries included under Revenue Grants
£Stg £Stg € €

Gross salaries (Full Time ) under INTERREG

VA expenditure (Note 4) CatchmentCARE 67,614 72,358 75,996 82,430

Social security costs (Full Time) under
INTERREG VA expenditure (Note 4) 6,357 6,910 7,145 7,872
CatchmentCARE

Gross salaries (Full Time ) under INTERREG

VA expenditure (Note 4) SeaMonitor 185,669 130,089 208,686 148,197

Social security costs (Full Time) under
INTERREG VA expenditure (Note 4) 19,621 13,760 22,054 15,675
SeaMonitor

279,261 223117 313,881 254,174

2020 2019 2020

Salaries included in Programme Costs

£ £ €
7G)ross Salaries included in programme costs (Note 8 818 _ 9.91 _
Social Security costs included in programme costs
813 - 914 -
(Note 7)
9,631 - 10,825 -

All salary costs in 2019 are shown in Note éb.
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6.d) Chief Executive's Costs
2020 2019 2020 2019

Designated Officer £Stg £Stg € €
Gross 65,505 62,213 73,626 70,873
Social security costs 7,833 7,401 8,804 8,431

73,338 69,614 82,430 79,304
The Designated Officer is an ordinary member of the North/South Pension Scheme.

6.e) Senior Management Costs
No Senior Management staff received any Benefits in Kind.

2020 2019

Social Social

Senior Management / Directors Security  Gross Security
Costs Costs

£Stg £Stg £Stg
Designated Officer appointed 1 March 2017 65,505 7,833 62,213 7,401

Director of Development 55,034 6,387 54,275 6,305
Director of Conservation and Protection 55,764 6,487 54,575 6,347
Director of Aquaculture & Shellfisheries 66,692 7126 63,436 7,062

Interim Director of Corporate Services

appointed 9 May 2017 54,572 6,323 52,979 6,126

297,567 34,156 287,478 33,241
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2020 2019

Social Social

Senior Management / Directors Gross Security Gross Security
Costs Costs

€ € € €

Designated Officer appointed 1 March 2017 73,626 8,804 70,873 8,431
Director of Development 61,857 7179 61,830 7183
Director of Conservation and Protection 62,677 7,291 62,172 7,231
Director of Aquaculture & Shellfisheries 74,960 8,009 72,266 8,045
L";g:)iir:\‘tZZ‘;":d"a;°2f()C1‘7’rp°rate Services 61,337 7107 60,354 6,979

334,457 38,390 327,495 37,869

6.f) Board Members remuneration including social security costs

2020 2019 yloylel 2019
Board Member

£Stg £Stg € €
Mr Laurence Arbuckle 350 ) 303 _
(Chairperson appointed 16 Dec 2020)
Mr Andrew Duncan (Vice Chairperson) * 9,427 9,397 10,595 10,706
Mr Michael McCormick * 7,381 7,356 8,296 8,380
Mrs Phil Mahon 5,556 5,563 6,245 6,337
e e 205 s s s 6w
Mr Allan Ewart 5,556 5,563 6,245 6,337
Mr lan McCrea 5,556 5,563 6,245 6,337
Mr Alastair Patterson 5,556 5,563 6,245 6,337
Mrs Fiona Walsh* 7,381 7,355 8,296 8,379
Mr Patrick Gibbons* 7,381 7,355 8,296 8,379
Ms Heather Mackey* 7,381 7,355 8,296 8,379

67,001 66,633 75,308 75,908

*Southern Board Members were paid in Euro at the agreed Euro amounts.

Board Members' salaries are not pensionable. Board Members expensesin 2020 were
£699/€786 (2019: £13,184/€15,019).
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7. Programme Expenses

Conservation & Protection 129,413 150,139 145,456 171,038
Marine Tourism & Angling Development 21,014 132,711 23,619 151,184
Aquaculture 19,096 24,396 21,463 27,792
Glenelly Flood Relief Project 349,268 76,623 392,567 87,289

518,791 383,869 583,105 437,303
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8. Administrative Expenses

Training and development 9,060 23,947 10,183 27,280
Bank charges 5,000 3,980 5,620 4,534
Postage 3,258 3,308 3,662 3,769
Marketing and Promotion 19,527 27,429 21,948 31,247
Light and heat 43,159 56,939 48,509 64,865
Telephone 72,126 71,080 81,067 80,974
Rent 43,962 44,544 49,412 50,744
Insurance 180,058 161,580 202,380 184,072
Audit fees 26,000 24,000 29,223 27,341
Motor vehicle expenses 115,993 85,736 130,373 97,671
Boat maintenance 21,313 29,721 23,955 33,858
Printing and stationery 10,688 27,972 12,013 31,866
Licence dealers commission 2,518 2,543 2,830 2,897
Maintenance and repairs 64,044 90,130 71,984 102,676
VAT - (2,725) - (3,104)
Travelling and conference expenses 21,873 73,095 24,585 83,270
Health and Safety 68,298 30,558 76,765 34,812
Cleaning 14,255 13,995 16,022 15,943
Computer consumables and maintenance 115,041 77,833 129,303 88,667
Other equipment costs 30,620 30,302 34,416 34,520
Subscriptions 24,457 24,437 27,489 27,838
Legal and professional fees 104,787 178,154 17,777 202,953
Licence Fees 4,225 7,060 4,748 8,043
Overheads reclaimable from EU projects (39.158) (29,901)  (44,012) (34,063)

961,104 1,055,717 1,080,252 1,202,673
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9. Interest Payable

2020 2019 2020 2019

£Stg £Stg € €
Pension Interest Cost (Note 14e) 408,019 459,536 458,601 523,503
408,019 459,536 458,601 523,503
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10.a) Tangible Fixed Assets - Loughs Agency

Land & . Interpretive Boat§ & Fixtures &
o Weirs boating e
buildings centre . fittings
equipment
£Stg £Stg £Stg £Stg £Stg
At 1 January 2020 3,540,957 1,445,130 558,281 704,087 123,438
Additions - - - 16,450 5,916

Re-categorised - - - -

Disposals - - - -
At 31 December 3540957  1,445130 558,281 720,537 129,354
2020

At 1 January 2020 377,029 979,473 316,720 382,069 68,155
Charge for year 122,747 57,805 22,331 68,766 7,962
Depreciation on . ) ) ) )
disposal

952(1) December 499776 1,037,278 339,051 450,835 76,117

Net Book Value Stg

|

At 31 December
2020

At 31 December 2019 3,163,928 465,657 241,561 322,018 55,283

Net Book Value Euro
€

At 31 December

3,041,181 407,852 219,230 269,702 53,237

2020 3,382,736 453,658 243,852 299,992 59,216
Currency Translation

Adjustment (197,865) (28,658) (14,956) (19,674) (3,458)
At 31 December 2019 3,718,565 547,287 283,907 378,468 64,974

The currency translation adjustment is the
difference between the net book value of PPE
calculated using year-end exchange rates and
their net book value stated at historic rates of
exchange.
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Office  Computer Motor Assets under

equipment equipment vehicles construction

£Stg £Stg £Stg £Stg
1,561,648 43,725 418,449 473,248 121,860 8,990,823
43,307 5,400 76,934 47,969 583,494 779,470
5,754 17,220 - (22,974) -
(24,537) - (24,537)
1,604,955 54,879 512,603 496,680 682,380 9,745,756

949,442 23,662 357,535 363,051 - 3,817,136
144,946 5,888 30,415 40,921 - 501,781

- - - (11,522) - (11,522)
1,094,388 29,550 387,950 392,450 - 4,307,395

510,567 25,329 124,653 104,230 682,380 5,438,361

612,206 20,063 60,914 110,197 121,860 5,173,687

567,909 28,174 138,653 115,936 759,017 6,049,143
(37,378) (1,325) (4,580) (6,872) (14,211)  (328,977)
719,526 23,580 71,592 129,515 143,220 6,080,634

In 2019, 2 boats were transferred from DAERA to Loughs Agency at nil cost, and 1 boat was
transferred from the Department of Communities at nil cost. Insurance value at date of transfer
has been taken as valuation of these assets and boats have been entered into Loughs Agency
asset register at those values.
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10.b) Tangible Fixed Assets belonging to and funded by CatchmentCARE EU
Project

Computer Motor Plant &
equipment vehicles Equipment

£Stg £Stg £Stg
At 1 January 2020 1,106 29,945 18,609 49,660
Additions - - - -
Disposals - - - -
At 31 December 2019 1,106 29,945 18,609 49,660

Depreciation
At 1 January 2020 276 9.712 2,674 12,662
Charge for year 277 4,654 4,652 9,583

Depreciation on disposal - - - -
At 31 December 2020 553 14,366 7,326 22,245

Net Book Value Stg £

At 31 December 2020 553 15,579 1,283 27,415
At 31 December 2019 830 20,233 15,935 36,998
At 31 December 2020 615 17,329 12,550 30,494
Currency Translation Adjustment (49) (1,220) (950) (2,219)
At 31 December 2019 976 23,780 18,728 43,484
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10.c) Tangible Fixed Assets belonging to and funded by SeaMonitor EU Project

Computer Plant &

equipment Equipment

£Stg £Stg
At 1 January 2020 2,290 367,854 370,144
Additions - - -
Disposals - - -
At 31 December 2020 2,290 367,854 370,144

Depreciation
At 1 January 2020 265 10,217 10,482
Charge for year 573 122,606 123,179

Depreciation on disposal - - -
At 31 December 2020 838 132,823 133,661

Net Book Value Stg £

At 31 December 2020 1,452 235,031 236,483
At 31 December 2019 2,025 357,637 359,662
At 31 December 2020 1,615 261,427 263,042
Currency Translation Adjustment (121) (21,098) (21,219)
At 31 December 2019 2,380 420,331 422,711
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11. Receivables

Trade debtors 847 236 942 277
Prepayments 158,238 146,300 176,010 171,946
DAERA Area Enforcement 9,000 7,217 10,011 8,482
Other debtors 563 56,190 626 66,040
Grants receivable 250,423 624,624 278,548 734,121

419,071 834,567 466,137 980,866

12. Payables

2019
restated

2019
restated

€

£Stg

Trade creditors 105,600 60,594 117,460 71,216
Accruals 146,923 219,496 163,424 257,974
Other creditors 43,741 68,032 48,654 79,958
Grant payable 296,680 280,780 330,000 330,000
Deferred Income 353,000 484,857 392,645 569,853
Deferred grant 25,173 - 28,000 -

971,117 1,113,759 1,080,183 1,309,001

Other debtors and creditors in 2019 includes
an amount of £55,125 relating to a settlement,
in lieu of an ongoing pollution case. The funds
of £55,125 were being held by the Agency's
solicitors at 31 December 2019. These funds
were transferred to Loughs Agency on

16 January 2020, to be utilised on habitat
reinstatement schemes.

2019 figures have been restated in relation to
a deferred income figure relating to money
unspent at 31st December but earmarked

for the completion of the Omagh build. A
similar deferred income figure existed at

31st December 2020 in relation to unspent
money drawn down that also related to capital
commitments.
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13. Capital Grants

Local Gov't EU Funds

Gross capital grant £Stg £Stg
At 1 January 4,511,243 897,578 2,525,543
Additions 777,772 - -
Disposals (24,537) - -
At 31 December 2020 5,264,478 897,578 2,525,543

Grant amortisation

At 1 January 2,658,279 724,848 1,176,206
Amortised in year 335,123 35,903 53,636
Eliminated on disposal (11,522) - -
At 31 December 2020 2,981,880 760,751 1,229,842

Unamortised capital grants

At 31 December 2020 2,282,598 136,827 1,295,701
Currency Translation Adjustment

At 1 January 1,852,964 172,730 1,349,337

Currency Translation Adjustment

Capital grant additions above are made up of £294,857 released from deferred income and
£482,915 in year grant as per note 3.
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INTERREG INTERREG SEA

CCARE MONITOR Court Award
£Stg £Stg £Stg
49,660 370,144 . 8354168 9,818,654
1,698 779,470 876,100
- - - (24,537) (27,578)
49,660 370,144 1,698 9109101 10,667,176

12,663 10,482 - 4,582,478 5,385,786
9,582 123,179 142 557,565 626,686
- - - (1,522) (12,950)
22,245 133,661 142 5,128,521 5,999,522

27,415 236,483 1,556 3,980,580 4,667,653
(240,015)
4,427,638

36,997 359,662 - 3,771,690 4,224,344
208,524
4,432,868
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14. Pension Scheme

Loughs Agency employees are members

of the North/South Pension Scheme. This
Scheme consists of a number of sections with
different benefit structures. For further details
see Note 2.

Sponsor Departments will meet pension
liabilities as they fall due on a yearly basis
and within agreed limits. Pension payments
were also made to individuals who retired in
previous years.

FRS 102 requires Financial Statements to
reflect, at fair value, the assets and liabilities
arising from an employer’s retirement benefit
obligations. It requires the operating costs of
providing retirement benefits to employees,
to be recognised in the accounting period in

which benefits are earned by the employees,
and the related finance costs and any other
changes in the value of the liabilities to be
recognised in the accounting periods in which
they arise. FRS 102 also requires the Financial
Statements to contain adequate disclosure of
the cost of providing retirement benefits and
the related gains, losses and liabilities.

The valuation used for FRS 102 disclosures

at 31 December 2020 has been carried out

by a qualified independent actuary (Deloitte
Total Reward and Benefits Limited). The
principal actuarial assumptions used to
calculate scheme liabilities under FRS 102 at 31
December 2020 are:

Assumptions 2020 2019
Discount rate - North 1.35% 2.10%
Discount rate - South 0.80% 1.30%
Rate of inflation - North 2.20% 2.00%
Rate of inflation - South 1.05% 1.15%
Rate of increase in salaries - North 2.20% 2.00%
Rate of increase in salaries - South 2.20% 2.00%
Rate of increase in pensions - North 2.20% 2.00%
Rate of increase in pensions - South (Core mem- 105% 115%
bers)

Rate of increase in pensions - South (all other mem- 220%  2.00%

bers)

Average expected future life at age 65 for

Members currently aged 65

223 24.6 22.0 23.9

Members currently aged 45

23.6 26.0 23.4 25.4
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14.a) Movement in Net Pension Liability during the financial year

2020 2019 2020 2019
£Stg £Stg € €

(Deficit) in the plan at the begin-

. 19,874,798 16,928,964 23,358,850 18,924,889
ning of the year ( ) ) ) )

Benefits paid during the year 384,192 355,384 431,820 404,853
Member contributions (120,880) (112,194) (135,865) (127,811)
gl;:c et;na(r;sfers out of/ (into) the 93,036 ) 104.570 )
Current Service costs (1,019,567) (703,362) (1,145,963) (801,270)
Interest on Scheme Liabilities (408,019) (459,536) (458,601) (523,503)
Actuarial (loss)/gains (5,161,176)  (2,026,126)  (5,801,007) (2,308,163)
Currency translation adjustment 1,324,583 (1,078,067)

(Deficit) in the plan at the end of

the year (26,107,212) (19,874,798) (29,039,313) (23,358,850)

The currency translation adjustment reflects the amount of the movement in the value of the
pension scheme liability which is attributable to the change in exchange rates over the year.

14.b) Analysis of movement in (deficit) in the plan over the period

2020 2019 2020 2019
£Stg £Stg € €
Experience (loss)/gain 183,542 34,509 206,295 39,312
(Loss)/gain due to change in (129.324) ) (145,356) )
demographic assumptions ' '
(Loss)/gain from exchange rate (138,791) 107,359  (155,997) 122,303

movements

(Loss)/gain on change to assumptions (5,076,603) (2,167,994) (5,705,949) (2,469,778)

Actuarial (loss)/gain (5,161,176) (2,026,126) (5,801,007) (2,308,163)
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The main elements of the actuarial loss of
£5,161,176 for 2020 are outlined below.

The increase in the value of the liabilities
is mainly as a result of:

the change in financial assumptions
including a fall in the Northern and
Southern discount rates, which resultsin
anincrease in the value of the liabilities,
as shown in the “gain / (loss) due to

increase in the value of the liabilities, as
shown in the "gain / (loss) due to change
in demographic assumptions” itemin the
disclosures;

anincrease in the liabilities due to
unfavourable currency movements,
as shown in the “gain / (loss) due to
currency movements” itemin the
disclosures.

change in financial assumptions” itemin

the disclosures; These have been partially offset by:

* anexperience gain on the liabilities which
arises due to membership movements,
as shown in the “experience gain / (loss)”

item in the disclosures.

the change in demographic assumptions
including an update to the mortality
assumption, which results in a small

14.c) Analysis of current pension service costs

Loughs Agency recognises as an asset a deferred funding asset of £26,107,212 / €29,039,313 as
at 31 December 2020 (2019: £19,874,798/€23,358,850). The net deferred funding for pensions
recognised in Income and Expenditure in 2020 includes:

2020 2019 2020 2019
Deferred Funding for Pensions

£Stg £Stg € €
Current service cost 1,019,567 703,362 1,145,963 801,270
Other finance cost 408,019 459,536 458,601 523,503

Benefits paid during the year (384,192) (355,384) (431,820) (404,853)

1,043,394 807,514 1,172,744 919,920

14.d) Analysis of current pension service costs

2020 2019 2020 2019
£Stg £Stg € €
Service cost (Note 6b) 1,019,567 703,362 1,145,963 801,270
Interest on pension liabilities (note 9) 408,019 459,536 458,601 523,503

Total operating charge 1,427,586 1,162,898 1,604,564 1,324,773
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14.e) History of Defined Benefit liabilities

2020 2019 2020 2019
£Stg £Stg € €
(Deficit) as at 31 December (26,107,212)  (19,874,798)  (29,039,313) (23,358,850)
Experience (loss) / gain 183,542 34,509 206,295 39,312
Percentage of scheme liabilities (0.7%) (0.2%) (0.7%) (0.2%)
14.f) Deferred Asset for Pensions
2020 2019 2020 2019
£Stg £Stg € €
Balance at 1 January 19,874,798 16,928,964 23,358,850 18,924,889
IISEEED (ECEEED) N C S CHiee 6,232,414 2,945,834 7,005,046 3,355,893
funding for pension assets
Currency translation adjustment (1,324,583) 1,078,068
Balance at 31 December 26,107,212 19,874,798 29,039,313 23,358,850

The currency translation adjustment reflects the amount of the movement in the value of
deferred pension funding which is attributable to the change in exchange rates over the year.

15. General Reserve

2019 2019
restated restated
£Stg €
At 1 January 175,906 483,760 206,742 540,795
(Deficit)/surplus for the year 86,703 (393,109) 97,451 (447,830)
Transfer from revaluation reserve 76,980 85,255 85,734 97,843
Actuarial (loss) / gain on pension (5161176)  (2,026126) (5,801,007) (2,308,163)
scheme
Adjustment for deferred pension asset 5,161,176 2,026,126 5,801,007 2,308,163
Currency translation adjustment Note (12,199) 15,934
17a
At 31 December 339,589 175,906 377,728 206,742
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16. Revaluation Reserve

2020 2019 2020 2019
£Stg £Stg € €
At 1 January 1,786,120 1,611,375 2,099,227 1,801,356
Increase in revaluation reserve - 260,000 - 296,192

Transfer from/ (to) Income and

Expenditure Account (76,980) (85,255) (85,734) (97,843)

Currency translation adjustment (112,399) 99,522

At 31 December 1,709,140 1,786,120 1,901,094 2,099,227

17. Notes to the Cashflow Statement
17.a) Net cashflow from operating activities

2019 2019
restated restated

£Stg €

Operating (deficit)/surplus 86,703  (393,109) 97,451 (447,830)

Loss / (profit) on disposal of

fixed assets (6,182) (14,106) (6,948) (16,069)

Depreciation 10 634,543 496,115 713,207 565,174
Capital grant release 13 (557,565) (415,772)  (626,686)  (473,647)
Net Deferred Pension funding 14 (1,043,394) (807,514) (1,172,744) (919,920)

(Profit) on disposal of capital
grant assets

(Increase)/ decrease in debtors n 415,496  (547,567) 514,729 (660,028)

(13,015) (8,030) (14,628) (9,148)

Increase/(decrease) in creditors 12 (142,642) 746,943  (228,818) 898,938

Pension service cost 14 1,427,586 1,162,898 1,604,564 1,324,773
Pension benefits paid 14 (384,192) (355,384) (431,820) (404,853)
Currency translation adjustment (12,199) 15,934

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from

. P e 417,338 (135,526) 436,108 (126,676)
operating activities
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The currency translation adjustment reflects the amount of the movement in the value of current
assets and liabilities which is attributable to the change in exchange rates over the year.

17.b) Net cash outflow from capital expenditure and financial investment

2020 2019 2020 2019

Note £Stg £Stg € €
Purchase of tangible fixed assets 10 (779,470) (798,060)  (876,101) (909,150)
Proceeds from disposal of tangible 19.196 27 051 21,576 30,816

fixed assets

Net cash outflow from capital

. . o 760,274 771,009) (854,525) (878,334
expenditure and financial investment ( )« ) ) ( )

17.c) Net cash inflow from financing

2020 2019 2020 2019

Note £Stg £Stg € €
Capital grants received 13 779,470 798,057 876,101 909,146
Net cash inflow from financing 779.470 798,057 876,101 909,146
18. Commitments + Asat 31 December 2020, due to breaches
There were capital commitments at 31 of legislation in the oyster fishery on Lough
December 2020 of £353,000/€392,645, Foyle, summons have beenissued to 24
made up of £190,000/€211,339 in relation individuals. These cases are currently
to Omagh office rebuild, £99,000/€110,118 being held at the District Court and another
in relation to Fish Counter projects and 2 cases, which have already been heard
£64,000/€71,188 in relation to office by the District Court, are being held under
refurbishment. (2019 £574,857/ €675,629 all appeal at the Circuit Court. All of these
of which related to Omagh office rebuild). cases are being held pending the outcome
of a case in the High Court in Dublinin
See note 21 for commitments relating to which the Agency is a Co-Defendant. Itis
operating leases. difficult to estimate the costs of the case
being heard before the High Court, not
-|9 Contingent Liabilities knowing what way the outcome will go at
As at 31 December 2020 the Agency was this stage. Summons have beenissuedin

the cases being held at the District Court.

engaged in bringing a number of civil : ) . )
It is estimated to discharge potential cases

legal cases relating to pollution incidents.

These remain ongoing and the Agency and the cases under appeal at the Circuit
would only become liable for legal costs Court could potentially cost £53,942/
(estimated £50,000/€55,615) in the event €60.000.

that the proceedings were unsuccessful. o . .

In the event that the proceedings are « The arbitration process in relation to
successful the estimated settlement costs the alleged removal of the pension
outlined above will be discharged by the augmentation between Loughs Agency
Defendants. and one of its employees concluded in
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2021. Loughs Agency is now in discussions
with its Sponsor Departments and Trade
Unions in relation to the outcome of this
case and any potential liability.

Furthermore, two employment tribunal
cases, in the cases of McCloud and
Sargeant, were brought against the

UK Government in relation to possible
discrimination in the implementation of
transitional protection following changes
made to public service pension scheme
legislation, in the UK, in 2015.

In December 2018, the Court of Appeal
ruled that the transitional protections gave
rise to unlawful discrimination on the basis
of age. The UK Government requested
leave to appeal this decision to the
Supreme Court, however the request was
denied on 27 June 2019.

The Department of Finance (Northern
Ireland) continues to liaise with HM
Treasury for proposals to address age
discrimination in the wider public service
schemes, as a consequence of the
McCloud ruling. The Departments’ public
service pension's consultation to remove
the discrimination identified by the courts
in the 2015 pension reforms closed in
November 2020 and the outcome of the
consultation was published on 25 February
2021. Details of the consultation response
are available at
https://www.finance-ni.gov.uk/
publications/response-consultation-
proposed-changes-transitional-
arrangements-2015-schemes

The rectification process is expected to be
long and time-consuming, and will need to
address fairly the issue of pension accruals
since 2015 and where individuals may have
been better off in new schemes. In this
regard certain staff of Loughs Agency,
who are scheme members of the North/
South Pension Scheme, may need to

be compensated for any discrimination
suffered as aresult of the transitional
protections.

Quantifying the impact of the judgement at

this stage is difficult as it will depend on the
compensation awarded, members' future
salary increases, length of service and
retirement age, and whether (and when)
members withdraw from active service.
The terms of any possible settlement will
require further consideration which will
need approval by both the Department
of Finance (Northern Ireland) and the
Department of Public Expenditure and
Reform (Ireland).

On this basis, no provision has been made
in the accounts for the McCloud/Sargeant
judgment. The North/South Pension
Scheme actuary estimates that any
compensation payable by Loughs Agency
will be up to £350,000 as at 31 December
2020 (2019 £250,000).

20. Events After the Reporting Period
There have been no significant events outside
the year end which affect these accounts.

21. Operating Lease

At 31 December 2020 the Agency had a
number of non-cancellable operating leases
as follows:

* A business letting agreement for the 1st
and 2nd floors of the D'Arcy Magee Court,
Dundalk Street, Carlingford of €16,800 per
annum. The lease agreement is due to be
discontinued in July 2021.

+ Alease agreement for rental of an external
storage unit in Carlingford of £12,000 per
annum. The lease agreement is due to be
discontinued in July 2021.

+ Alease for land at Castlefinn for launching
boats into the river of €2,200 per annum,
renewed annually.

+ Alease agreement for a disaster recovery
site at Pennyburn Industrial Estate of
£4,680 per annum was discontinued in
December 2020.

+ Alease agreement, due to commence on
1st February 2021 has been entered into
with Carlingford Sailing Club at a rate of
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€50,000, plus VAT, per annum for a term of 20 years.

The total future minimum lease payments under these lease are as follows:

Operating Leases 2020 2019 2020 2019
Expiry £Stg £Stg € €
Not later than 1 year 68,396 18,500 76,078 21,743
‘I;:;er;than 1year and not later than 5 221161 _ 246,000 )
Later than 5 years 833,963 - 927,625 -

22. Related Party Transactions

The Foyle, Carlingford and Irish Lights
Commission (Loughs Agency) is a North South
Implementation Body sponsored by DAERA

in the North and DECC in the South. The
Departments are regarded as related parties.
During the period Loughs Agency has had
various transactions with these Departments.

None of the members of key management
staff or other related parties has undertaken
any material transactions with Loughs Agency
during the period.

In 2017, the Agency gained approval of
funding under INTERREG VA for its portion
of the SWELL programme and also a portion
under the CatchmentCARE project. The
partners for INTERREG VA SWELL are:
Northern Ireland Water (Lead), Irish Water,
Agri-Food and Biosciences Institute (AFBI),
Loughs Agency and East Border Region.

The partners for INTERREG VA
CatchmentCARE are: Donegal County Council
(Lead), AFBI, Inland Fisheries Ireland, Loughs
Agency, University of Ulster, Armagh City,
Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council,
British Geological Survey and Geological
Survey Ireland.

In 2018, the Agency again received approval
of funding under INTERREG VA to act as Lead
Partner on another project SeaMonitor. The
partnersinvolved in INTERREG VA SeaMonitor
are: Loughs Agency (Lead), Marine Institute,

University of Glasgow, Queen’s University
Belfast, AFBI, University College Cork, Galway
Mayo Institute of Technology, Ocean Tracking
Network Dalhousie University and University
of California.

None of the members of key management
staff or other related parties has undertaken
any material transactions with Loughs Agency
during the period.

On 22 October 2018, the Agency, actingin
partnership with the fishery owners, received
a high court settlement for damages to

the fishery of £100,000, in relationto a
significant fish kill case. Solicitor’s fees of
£44,875 were deducted from this leaving a
balance of £55,125. In early 2020 this amount
was transferred by the Agency's solicitors

to Loughs Agency bank account. In 2020
approximately £13,000 of this was spent
with the remainder included as a creditor in
Loughs Agency's Financial Statements at 31
December 2020, due to be spentin 2021.

23. Losses and Special Payments
There were no losses or special payments in
2020.

24. Financial Instruments

24.a) Financial Instruments

Due to the non-trading nature of its activities,
and the way in which Loughs Agency is
financed, it is not exposed to the degree

of financial risk faced by business entities.
Loughs Agency has very limited powers to
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borrow or invest surplus funds and financial
assets, and liabilities are generated by day-
to-day operational activities and are not
held to change the risks facing the Agency in
undertaking its activities.

The Agency'’s financial instruments mainly
consist of cash, trade debtors and trade
creditors.

24, b) Liquidity, Interest Rate and

Foreign Currency Risk

The Agency's net revenue resource
requirements are financed by resources voted
annually by the Northern Ireland Assembly and
Dail Eireann, as is its capital expenditure. Itis
not therefore exposed to significant liquidity
risks. The Agency does not access funds from
commercial sources and so is not exposed

to significant interest rate risk. The Agency's
transactions are effected in the currencies

of each part of the island, with realised gains
and losses being taken to the Income and
Expenditure account. The Agency’'s exposure
to foreign currency risk is not significant as

it receives agreed levels of funding from its
Sponsor Departments in Sterling and does not
engage in trading activities.
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25. Prior Period Adjustment

At 31 Dec 2019 At 31 Dec 2019
Reconciliation of reserves

£Stg €
Reserves (as previously stated) 660,763 776,595
Deferred Income Adjustment 2019 (484,857) (569,853)
Reserves (as re-stated) 175,906 206,742
e At 31 Dec 2019 At 31 Dec 2019

Reconciliation of surplus for the year
£Stg €
Surplus for the year (as previously stated) 91,748 104,519
Deferred Income Adjustment 2019 (484,857) (552,349)
Deficit for the year (as re-stated) (393,109) (447,830)

At 31 December 2019 an amount of £484,857 in relation to capital money drawn down from
Sponsor Departments was carried into 2020 relating to the Omagh office rebuild. This grant was
treated asincome in the Income and Expenditure. It is felt prudent that this now be restated as
deferred income in note 12.
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Appendix 1 Accounts Direction

ACCOUNTS DIRECTION GIVEN BY THE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURAL,
ENVIRONMENT AND RURAL AFFAIRS, NORTHERN IRELAND AND THE
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNICATIONS, CLIMATE ACTION AND ENVIRONMENT,
IRELAND, WITH THE APPROVAL OF THE FINANCE DEPARTMENTS, NORTH AND
SOUTH (THE DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE AND THE DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
EXPENDITURE AND REFORM), IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE NORTH/SOUTH CO-
OPERATION (IMPLEMENTATION BODIES) (NORTHERN IRELAND) ORDER 1999
AND THE BRITISH-IRISH AGREEMENT ACT 1999.

The annual accounts shall give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows
for the calendar year, and the state of affairs as at the year end. Subject to this requirement,

the Loughs Agency shall prepare accounts for the calendar year ended 31 December 2018 and
subsequent calendar years in accordance with:

a. The North South Implementation Bodies Annual Reports and Accounts Guidance;

b. Other guidance which the Finance Departments may issue from time to time in respect of
accounts which are required to give a true and fair view; and

c. Any other specific disclosures required by the Sponsor Departments.

Except where agreed otherwise with both Finance Departments, in which case the exception
shall be described in the notes to the accounts.

Signed by authority of the:

Department of Agriculture, Environment Department of Communications,
and Rural Affairs (Northern Ireland) Climate

Action and Environment (Ireland)
John Speers

Matthew Collins
Date 22nd March 2019

Date 22nd March 2019
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